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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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Act. (Check one):
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Non-accelerated file O Smaller reporting compar O
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa
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PART I.

ITEM 1. Business

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and trammsétion services focused on providing a competiédge to our clients. Our
outsourcing services provide front-, middle- andkseffice process outsourcing services for our priilg U.S.-based and U.K.-based clients.
Outsourcing services involve the transfer to usadéct business operations of a client, such @&m€lprocessing, finance and accounting and
customer service, after which we administer andagarthe operations for our client on an ongoingsb&ge also offer a number of
transformation service offerings that include diecisaanalytics, risk and financial management, goerations and process excellence. These
transformation services help our clients improwsrtbperating environments through cost reductamianced efficiency and productivity
initiatives, and improve the risk and control eoviments within our clients’ operations whether ot they are outsourced to us. We serve

primarily the needs of Fortune Global 500 and Rwetl000 companies in the insurance, utilities, baplnd financial services, transportation
and logistics and travel sectors.

Our services for each of the sectors include:

Inmdiranoe Bankirg ond Finenoinl Services | Tronsportasion and Loglatics
PAC, Lile, Healh, fnruliy) [Morigage, Carda, Reinil
Corposate)

» Folioy Admnisrmon » Imbalancs Manageman v Loan Lindoraring Sungaon » Frangd Bl Aud e = Fioporing and Amsiyvios
= fugoncy Mansgomant & [Hspabed Fioads and » - oot Admimsirabon » Bl Gonedions = Blraonoe Aocouning
o fcpcantng and Billeg Wik asnls » Tox Seracng & Heloronoe Audn o Bupplor Seftbomonks. and
* Camms Handing ® Payresd frmnoements amnd * Loan Seradng o Biill Erry Facmncilstnng
s Ieclorce, Premium. Benstis BEng * Feceivabies Managsmen] = Cargo Clams * Fulilimen

AcErnkITaion * Acceunt Managaemaen = Dlakia Vadisleiion = Pyyrmend Processing o Chanl Bilkng

* Fasorvlions

& Fliness s Scoosbing o Dustmar &ogasiion and Retanilon = Ragpdaiory Complercs Azaleuncs ®» Dppscatuniby |okaniiticaiks
& Cplechors and Cradi Cipemtions Aylics = Inlemad Audii Asssinnoe # Pmop=s Aeengneering

= Gustamor Sonnco Markuling Coamyungh Manngsmesi = Entompesa and Cpanmiionad Fask * Prooess Moppieg and

Creschl Flisk & nokgtios Fduni [ fsit
Caolkice= anid Fraud Anakics = i i

Prijact M il Offiea Sugipet

& i iyl & Cosafity Managemen

& perations Anaktios

& Anabyiicn Sl Al

& Mt spomng and Ad-hoe Annkyss
Suppor

ann S Soma

“ml Managament

sangineming intinle Exsculion

* Finance and focounieg Process
it

We combine in-depth knowledge of the industry sesctm which we are focused with proven expertisteainsferring business operations
to our offshore delivery centers and administeeing managing them. We have successfully transfence than 630 processes covering a
broad array of products and services to our opmrattenters, including approximately 110 new preegshat were transferred to us in 2010.

Our largest clients in 2010 were Centrica plc (@ea}, The Travelers Indemnity Company (Travelens) American Express Company
(American Express). Other clients include ovensoftthe leading U.S. insurance companies, oveedii leading global banks and financial
services companies, three European utilities comepand three leading transportation and logistEsgices providers. Our operations centers
are located in India, the Philippines, the Czechu®dic, the U.S. and Romania. Our geographic faotgmables us to leverage the large po
highly qualified and educated technical profesd®mdno are able to handle complex processes anitssithat require functional skills and
industry expertise. While a majority of our professls provide services in the English language operations in the Czech Republic and
Romania have provided us with multi-lingual deliveapabilities. We believe we can offer consistégh quality services at substantially
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lower costs than those available from U.S.- or tbhEsed in-house facilities or U.S.- or U.K.-basatsourcing providers. As of December 31,
2010, we had a headcount of approximately 12,76®isuals, a substantial portion of whom are basdddia. Our operations platforms are
supported by a state-of-the-art infrastructure taat be expanded to meet each client’s needs. Wkleetraur services directly through our sales
and marketing and client management teams, whiehatg out of the United States and the United Kamgdand our business development
support team, which operates out of India. Ouremianagers have extensive experience in the indsesttors on which we are focused and
are well versed in the business practices of lepdinltinational corporations.

We believe our reputation for operational excelieiscwidely recognized by our clients and is anantgnt competitive advantage. We
use Six Sigma and Lean Six Sigma, data-driven ndetlogies for eliminating defects in any processdamtify process inefficiencies and
improve productivity in client and support process&/e deliver continued process enhancements jtew) and implementing process
improvements from employees and through our prégmyesoftware tools. As a part of our commitmengjtlity, we are certified to the 1ISO
9001:2008 standard for our quality management systée are also certified to the ISO 27001:2005ds&h for our information security
management system. This standard requires policieprocesses to be deployed to ensure adequatmatfon security controls in the
organization. Additionally we are also certifiedtbe OHSAS 18001:2007 standard, which relates taocupational health and safety
management processes. We have also received aalifiegugeneral controls and process specific SASype Il opinion from Ernst & Your
LLP, our independent registered public accounting.f

Services
Outsourcing Services

Our outsourcing services are structured aroundsimgdocused business process outsourcing (BP@jcest, such as insurance, utilities,
banking and financial services, transportation lagéstics and travel sectors, as well as crossstrigtBPO services, such as finance and
accounting services, collections and credit openatiand customer services.

Insurance.Within the life insurance, property and casualsuirance, health and disability insurance and regré services business
lines, we provide services in the areas of clainegg@ssing, premium and benefit administration, agenanagement, account reconciliation,
policy research, underwriting support, new busimesesessing, policy servicing, premium audit, hiliand collection and customer service.
have acquired significant experience in transfgrand managing processes in these areas. In caymaadth our acquisition of Professional
Data Management Again, Inc. (PDMA) on May 1, 204/8,acquired an insurance policy administrationfptat called LifePRC> .
Approximately 40 insurance companies use LifePROadiminister their life insurance, health insuraraeuities and credit life and disability
insurance policies. LifePR®clients can easily access their customer datastdra logic, providing important tools for our cite to integrat
with external applications, web interfaces and répg systems. We offer LifePR® as an applicatiervige provider or as a licensed product
to our clients. We also have significant experiisenplementing, maintaining and modifying LifePROFor select clients we provide both
transaction processing and servicing using theAR@©® platform thereby providing a combined technplagd business process outsourcing
service offering to them.

Utilities. We provide end-to-end back-office processing fatamer operations, including metering-related sewiand billing, value
recovery operations, customer transfers and addresges, sales support, account reconciliatiorcahelctions. A large part of these services
involves complex processing of transactions thahoabe managed by customary tools or methodologies

Banking and Financial ServicesWe have expertise in servicing and processing uarzanking products, including residential mortgage
lending, consumer finance, retail banking, credits, transaction services and other banking ssviour activities include customer service,
transaction processing, underwriting support, datation management, loss mitigation and collate@itoring.
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Transportation and Logistics We have developed and acquired expertise in prigesansactions in the areas of end-to-end supply
chain management, warehousing, transloading, toatetn management and international logisticgises. Our activities include freight bill
audit, bill corrections, reference audit, bill gntcargo claims and payment processing.

Travel. We have significant experience and expertise inagary and improving operational, financial and gtiedl functions for travel
management companies and offer similar serviceshter travel industry participants such as airljiegels, cruise operators and global
distribution systems companies. Our activitiesudel reporting and analytics, revenue accountirggrdiulfillment, management of account
receivables and account payables, account setdipearrvations.

Finance and AccountingWe provide certain finance and accounting servicediding accounts payable, research, reconaliatif
accounts, expense accounting, financial accounti@gartmental accounting, treasury managemengdeounting, budgeting and management
information systems reporting.

Collections and Credit Operation§Ve use our proprietary skip-tracing tool to acdesation information instantly through multiple
websites in order to trace people who have movebsconded without notice to avoid paying debts.Haite experience with a wide range of
collection processes, including credit card redals, large mortgage loan payments and businebadiness insurance premium collection:
well as extensive dialer management experiencé, dobur proprietary systems and client systems.

Customer ServicéWe provide a large array of customer managemenwices:; including, voice-based and weéised customer interacti
functions.

Across the BPO services described above, we haeessfully transferred and managed more than 63epses, including the
following:

Insurance Processe

Life, Health and Annuity Property and Casualty Insurance

» Administration of Insurance Ager * New Business Processi
Licensing and contracting renewals, terminatioonsrgspondence, Sales and conversion, quote acceptance, estalglisbin policies,
commissions and brokerage amounts, debt manageatgninistrating  policy upgrades, sales of multiple products, indgxisales and
unclaimed monies by insurance agents customer service support for auto and home, prencinifections

and report:

* New Business Processing » Administration of Current Policies
Prescreening and acquiring new customers, undamgiriitnderwriting Customer service, lapses and renewals, mid-terostdgnts,
support, delivery requirements follow-up, policguance, fund endorsement, account reconciliations, conversion
application, refunds, nesufficient funds, customer inquiris

» Administration of Current Policie » Claims Processin
Title and address changes, beneficiary and owrengds, certificate First notification of loss, initial reporting ofailns and account
reissuance, endorsement, policy transfers, quoigseanstatements, initiation, data capture, customer service, tecirné@ims,
loans, exchanges, policy term conversions, withdiawdividends, documentation, claims based on third party faatgltloss,
surrenders, maturities, direct debit instructiansstomer service, billing, scheduling on-site engineers’ inspection visitajmk coverage,
policy value, interest rates claims adjudication, utility review, auto liabiligdjudication,

subrogation, file quality management, pet claimmpssing,
medical record summarization, construction defecord
summarization, workers compensation claims prong:
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Life, Health and Annuity

e Premium Administratiol

Application of premium, loan and interest adjustineaily premium
balancing, suspended policy research, payment mioaleges, customer

correspondence and serv

e Claims Processin

Examination, data gathering, adjudication, settiemtax compliance,

Property and Casualty Insurance

e Premium Administratiol
Payment mode changes, collection, calculation ewigion of
premium

» Broker Collections
Broker query resolution, payment collection, debinagement,

validation and compliance with state laws, custoomerespondence and payment reconciliation

service, disability and dental claims and procegsinMedicare set-aside

package:
* Fixed and Variable Annuitie

* Supplier Payment

Change of address, beneficiary changes, withdrawsaisender requests, Invoice validation, claim validation and settlemgrdayment

exchanges, rollovers, transfers, suspensionsptaration, document

verification, billing, policy value, policy coveraginterest rate

» Policy Research and Manual Calculati
Research of policy history, manual calculation ofigy values and

correction of records, calculation of tax gain aedails for IRS filing

processing, supplier inquiries

» Appointment Schedulir
Scheduling appointments between auditors and idsure

* Motor Club Services
Initial reporting of vehicle emergency and emergeroad side
services, motor incident management, hire managemedit hire
recoveries

e Premium Audit
Audit scheduling, policy holder file phone and nsildit, premium
calculations, customer surveys, customer sel
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Utilities, Banking and Financial Services, Transpotation and Logistics, Travel and Other Processe

Account maintenance
Credit operations
Customer transfers
Customer address changes
Debt collections
Device management
Disputed readings
Energy payment systems
Metering and billing
Sales support and acquisitions
Withdrawals
Imbalance management
Settlement operations
Prepayment account management
Fraud key meter managem
Consumer Finance
Balance dispute
Billing
Consumer finance processing includ
verification, tracking and recording
Collections
Consumer Finance
Credit approval:
Inbound customer service
Order status
Loan payoff
Telemarketing

Retail Banking and Credit Cards

Collections
Customer service
E-mail response
Query resolution

Portfolio reconciliation and
reporting

Finance and Accounting

Accounts payable managem:
Booked vs. billed reconciliation
Cash reconciliation
Centralized payments

Finance and Accounting

Check reconciliatiol
Collections reconciliation
Credit control

Cash management

Financial closing and month-end
reporting

Manual intervention

Meta-tagging and account
taxonomy

Procurement
Travel and expense reporting
Validation and paymer

5

Mortgage Lending
Broker license verification

Broker due diligence
Document management
Loan underwriting support
Loan verification

Property tax servicing
New loan set-up
Post-close processes
Rate modification
Mortgage customer service
Seller/broker queries
Trailing documentation
Wire approvals

Collections and Credit

Automated dialing systen
Collections from individuals
Collections from businesses
Pre and post chargéf collection

Collections and Credit

Tracking debtor:
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Utilities, Banking and Financial Services, Transpotation and Logistics, Travel and Other Processe

Transportation and Logistics Travel
 Bill correction * Reporting and analytics
» Bill entry * Revenue accounting and balance

. Cargo claims sheet management

» Freight bill audit
+ Payment processing

e Order fulfillment
* Reference audit

» Client billing and account

» Reference audit ;
receivables management
* Reservations

» Supplier settlements and
reconciliations

* Account setuy

Customer Service Processe

» Voice, email and blended process  Fulfilling orders, including -mail queries and online orde

» Customer service, including changes in dejidgate and
desktop configuration, returns, billing issues,-pates
information, concessions and discount voucherofgal
customers, catalogue reque

Transformation Services

In addition to our outsourcing services, we offeruanber of service offerings that we refer to atlieely as transformation services.
These offerings include decision analytics seryidek and financial management services and ojpeiatind process excellence services.

These transformation services focus on helpingctieints by improving their operating environmetitsotigh cost reduction, enhanced
efficiency and productivity initiatives, and impiiag the risk and control environment within oureclis’ operations whether or not they are
outsourced to us. Our transformation services leaabled us to expand our client base by providomgpiementary service offerings to our
clients and also to migrate clients into our longgm BPO services. We have experienced a signfificerease in demand for our annuity-
based transformation services, which are engagenteaitare contracted for one to three year tewesactively cross-sell and, where
appropriate, integrate our transformation servigigs our BPO services as part of an integratedtgwilfor our clients. Our transformation
services team is comprised of approximately 65@gssionals who provide services at our clientsatams or from our offshore delivery
centers.

Decision Analytics

We offer decision analytics services, includingadi@tering, organization and synthesis, managernmatmation system reporting, trend
and variance analysis, statistical and econometoideling and economic and financial markets rese&ar decision analytics services access
and analyze large volumes of data from multiplersesiin order to understand historical performasrdaehavior or to predict a particular
outcome.
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Our decision analytics services include analytixadsulting, management consulting and analytioaices. Analytical consulting and
management consulting services include advisingclemts on customer acquisition and retentionditmisk, customer data integration and
fraud detection, marketing strategy, product amdise strategy, volume forecasting, global resougtimization and scheduling. Analytical
services include lead generation and marketing eggnpmanagement, collections services, primarysaedndary research, data management
and actuarial analysis. Our offerings emphasizes@pertise within our industry focus areas whiagh @@mplemented by quantitative modeling
and business intelligence techniques as well awleuge of relevant technology platforms.

We deliver these services through a team of ingusgtecialists and graduates with mathematicaissit#l, engineering, economics,
business or accounting backgrounds. Most of ouisietanalytics team members have received postugta degrees in business or other
guantitative or financial disciplines.

Risk and Financial Managemen

We offer governance, risk and compliance servisesell as accounting and financial reporting sexsidlany of our professionals who
provide these services are certified accountamstrial auditors and process and technology expg@uaisgovernance, risk and compliance
services include both compliance support and riakaggement and advisory services. Compliance suppnrices include implementation and
controls testing services that assist our clierits their efforts to comply with laws and regulat® such as the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, the EU’s DRtatection Directive and Solvency Il standards,iégulations of the UK’s Financial
Services Authority and industry standards sucthas$yment Card Industry Data Security StandardaMfeprovide compliance advisory
services which include supporting our clients’ ined audit departments, designing and implemereimtgrprise and operational risk
management programs, risk analytics and risk reqgprin addition we also provide assistance wittomation and monitoring of compliance
programs and controls, implementation of specidlizgk management compliance tools and servicagmas to optimize the efficiency and
effectiveness of risk management and compliancegsses.

Our accounting and financial reporting servicedude transaction assurance, general accountirapdial reporting and finance and
accounting process optimization services. Our #efiisn assurance services include account recaticili, transaction data analysis and due
diligence services for corporate transactions.daitéon to providing general accounting services,also provide financial statement analysis
and preparation assistance for regulatory repodgiiings. As part of our finance and accountingqess optimization services, we evaluate
effectiveness of our clients’ finance and accounpnocesses through various diagnostic methodpendde implementation support for new
systems and processes.

Operations and Process Excellence Services

We assist clients in understanding, controlling emplroving their business processes in a numbdifferent industries with a view to
improving the effectiveness and decreasing theafostich processes. Our services identify busipessesses that can be improved by
documenting processes, creating standard opefatimgdures, defining metrics and evaluation ceates well as creating customized
dashboards and reporting using our proprietary auktlogy. By diagnosing existing processes, we ble #® assist our clients in improving
their processes through modifying the processesdibyinating or automating certain activities. We aiso able to assist our clients by
transforming their business processes using Sim&ignd Lean Six Sigma methodologies. Our profeafaran advise on and subsequently
manage and validate the effectiveness of enterpride cost reduction or other projects.

Geographic and Segment Information

Please see the disclosures in notes 4 and 15 twoasolidated financial statements for segmentgaudjraphic information regarding our
business.
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Business Strategy

Our goal is to continue to be a leading provideoutsourcing and transformation services in theistiy sectors on which we are focus
Specific elements of our growth strategy include:

Maintaining Our Focus on Largescale, Long-term Relationships

We intend to continue to maintain our focus ondasgale, long-term client relationships. We belithere are significant opportunities
for additional growth with our existing clients,cawve seek to expand these relationships by inergake depth and breadth of the services we
provide. This strategy should allow us to use awdepth client-specific knowledge to provide mantyfintegrated outsourcing and
transformation services and develop closer relatigos with our clients. Working with a small numloéiarge-scale, long-term relationships
also allows us to focus on quality and to devotetiime and resources necessary to provide savirypracess improvements and fully satisfy
the needs of our clients.

Offering a Broad Range of Outsourcing and Transfoation Services

In servicing our clients, we seek to differentiateselves by emphasizing the broad range of outsauand transformation services that
we provide, including BPO, decision analytics, rgsid financial management and operations and psapellence. We believe that clients
increasingly viewing their service providers asgagarm partners that provide a full range of sexnatferings. Our evolving ability to provide
services in complementary areas (such as decisiagtecs and risk and financial management seryiaélsmaximize opportunities for close
integrating our range of services with our cliefitssiness needs and assisting our clients in tvemgig their outsourced processes to establish
their industry leadership. We intend to continueléoelop additional advisory and related transfdionaservices in order to expand our client
base further, migrate clients into our longer-t&R0 service offerings and provide our clients vifitfegrated outsourcing and transformation
services.

Expanding Our Client Bas¢

We intend to develop long-term relationships thraspnt recurring revenue opportunities with newnts by leveraging our industry
experience and expanding our marketing activities manner designed to strengthen, encourage aptéeate longerm relationship building
We continue to target Fortune Global 500 and FertL®00 companies that have the most complex amuisdiprocesses and accordingly stand
to benefit significantly from the use of BPO. Invatoping these relationships, our primary focusd b to continue to provide complex and
integrated BPO services to clients in the Uniteatedt and United Kingdom, which together represesutistantial majority of the total BPO
market. We believe that our geographically distiéounetwork of operations centers will enable usxpand our client base and range of
services. In developing new client relationships,asntinue to be highly selective and seek inddstaging clients who are committed to long-
term, strategic relationships with us.

Extending Our Industry Expertise

We have developed expertise in transferring andaeg more than 630 BPO processes to our opemmtienters, including more than
410 processes in the insurance industry. This égparontinues to distinguish us from other offghproviders of BPO services and has
established our reputation as a leading provid&RD services. We intend to continue to strengtherprocessing capabilities by focusing on
the more complex and value-enhancing servicesatieatommon to these sectors. We have recentlgdtparforming services for the travel
sector, which yield many processes that fit oureetipe. We intend to selectively identify indusdria which we can develop domain expertise
and provide a range of outsourcing and transfoonaervices.

Continuing to Focus on Complex Processes

We intend to continue to leverage our industry etipeto provide increasingly more complex serviimesour clients. As a result of our
established and developing industry expertise anoviedge of our clients’
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businesses and processes, our employees are dialedle processes that are non-routine and thabtée readily automated or transferred to
other parties. Examples of our newest outsourcinggsses include auditing of insurance premiungsiging support for clients who are
underwriting business insurance, analyzing involzsed on loss experience history, reviewing gaening arrangements, verifying and
settling cargo loss claims and calculating andvedng overpayments. Recent transformation seniitdade the development and usage of
tools to reconcile financial records and minimiperges of revenue leakage and the creation of rdetbgies to use risk-based analysis to
maximize the effectiveness of marketing opportesitind campaigns.

Utilizing Innovative Approaches in our Service Deéry to Enhance Margin Sustainability

We believe that the increased utilization of outeaand transaction-based pricing models will faatiéitthe delivery of increased value to
our clients while enhancing the sustainability of margins. Currently, the significant majorityair revenues are billed to our clients on a
time and materials basis. We intend to increasatimeber of processes in which we utilize outcone teansaction-based pricing to align our
incentives with our clients, thereby assisting theith variable cost structures, and driving seniioprovements. The implementation of this
change in our pricing model will require the useofuired or owned intellectual property, method@e and analytical models and a range of
proprietary technology tools and software platfar@ar increased investment in proprietary tools mrethodologies may serve to increase our
costs in the short run but will allow us to provekrvices with fewer personnel, which will allowtesbecome more insulated from ongoing
inflation or wage pressures in the longer term.

Continuing to Invest in Operational Infrastructure

We intend to continue to invest in infrastructuneluding human resources, process optimizationdatidery platforms, to meet our
growing client requirements. We intend to furthefime and supplement the innovative methods weausecruit, train and retain our skilled
employees. We intend to continue to focus on rédagihighly qualified employees and to develop employees’ leadership skills through
specialized programs, rigorous promotion standandsistry-specific training and competitive compeaicn packages that include incentive-
based compensation. We also intend to continuéoouss on process excellence by building on ourresitte use of Six Sigma and similar
methodologies to identify and eliminate inefficieas; focusing on initiatives to solicit and implemh@rocess improvements from employees at
all levels and continuing to develop proprietarglsoto identify and deliver continued process eigkeaments. We intend to continue to invest in
our operational infrastructure and operations asriteresponse to our growing client requirement @apability enhancements. During 2010,
our new operations centers located in special enanpones in Jaipur and Noida, India became operatiand we also commenced operations
in Cluj, Romania.

Pursuing Strategic Relationships and Acquisitiol

We intend to continue to selectively consider sgat relationships with industry leaders that add fong-term client relationships,
enhance the depth and breadth of our servicesnoplement our business strategy. We also intendlextvely consider acquisitions or
investments that will expand the scope of our égsservices, add new clients or allow us to en&av geographic markets. On March 1, 2010
we acquired the operations of the American Exp&ebal Travel Service Center (GTSC), a businessafrhmerican Express located in
Gurgaon, India and entered into an eight-year eshto provide travel-related BPO services to AgatiExpress. On May 1, 2010, we
acquired PDMA, developer of the LifePRO insuranokay administration platform used by approximatélyinsurance companies. We
intend to cross-sell our existing suite of outsiag@nd transformation services to PDMA clients.

Other Information
ExIService Holdings, Inc. was incorporated in Dedagvon October 29, 2002.
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The Company files annual, quarterly and currenbrsp proxy statements and other information whth 8EC under the Exchange Act.
You may read and copy this information at the RuBkference Room of the SEC, Room 1580, 100 FtSiMee., Washington, D.C. 20549.
You may obtain information about the Public RefeeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. hiitewh, the SEC maintains a website
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, prorg information statements, and other informatiayarding issuers that file electronically
through the EDGAR System.

The Company also maintains a website at http://vexiservice.com. The Company makes available, ffeaharge, on its website its
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#10-Q, proxy statements, current reports on Fdhand amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ord)5(f the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonablyipadte after such reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

The BPO Industry

BPO service providers work with clients to devetoq deliver business operational improvements thithgoal of achieving higher
performance at lower costs. Outsourcing can er@iglanizations to enhance profitability and increeffieiency and reliability, permitting the
to concentrate on their core areas of competere®. B a long-term strategic commitment for compsitti@t, once implemented, is generally
not subject to cyclical spending or informationheclogy budget reductions. Organizations outsotlre& key business processes to third
parties to reduce costs, improve process qualitydie increased transaction volumes and ensuradaduy. Increased global demand, cost
improvements in international communications arelghtomation of many business services have craeatgmificant opportunity for offshore
business process service providers, and many cdaegpare moving select office processes to providéttsthe capacity to perform these
functions from overseas locations.

Companies have historically also used outsourandyitve revenue growth by expanding service offgsithat otherwise would be too
costly to administer or through enhanced receivabliections that would not be cost-efficient tague using internal staff. We believe the
demand for BPO services will be primarily led bgustries that are transactidnven and that require significant customer intécms, such &
insurance, utilities, banking and financial sergiemd transportation. The high cost of servicitarge number of small customer accounts
makes outsourcing a compelling strategic alterediv these industries.

Trend towards Offshore Delivery of BPO Services

Global demand for high quality, lower-cost BPO $s#g from external providers, combined with operai and cost improvements in
international telecommunications and the automatfomany business services, have created a signtf@gpportunity for BPO service
providers that are able to take advantage of eshofe talent pool. Many companies are moving sedeftont-, middle- and back-office
processes to providers with the capacity to perfimese functions from overseas locations.

Over the past decade, India and the Philippines kaverged as preferred locations for organizatiersing to outsource services
ranging from insurance claims processing, paynaltpssing, medical transcription, customer relatdgm management to back-office
operations such as accounting and data procesgiagng and organization. India currently accaaifdr the largest share of the offshore BPO
services market. Recently, in order to take adygntd multiple language capabilities and large atlett talent pools at competitive costs,
companies have engaged service providers with tpesan other geographies such as Eastern Eungéa@in America.
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Sales and Marketing and Client Management

We market our services to new clients directly tigto our sales and marketing team and to our egistiants through our client
management team. Our sales and marketing teamuaradient management team operate out of the UrStates and United Kingdom and are
supported by our business development team, whgehates out of Noida, India.

Our sales and marketing and business developmemistare responsible for new client acquisitionglipuelations and participation in
industry forums and conferences in the United Stdtee United Kingdom and India. Our sales and etarl and business development teams
identify prospective clients based on selectiveedd that apply our industry expertise to the peasive client’'s business lines, goals and
operating constraints, and qualify the long-terfatrenship potential with the client. Our clientagonships typically evolve from a single,
discrete process into a series of additional corypieegrated processes across multiple business.li

Our client management team is responsible for magabe overall client relationships, understandimgir needs and developing
solutions that create value for clients from outesaf outsourcing and transformation services.hEaient relationship is assigned a team w
consists of members from the client management,taaroperations delivery leader, a member of @aumrsiormation services group and a
member of our technology team. The client managéteam is responsible for working closely with thedivery team to ensure high levels of
client satisfaction and is also responsible foriless expansion and revenue growth of their acsount

Our sales and client management professionals epesfaboratively with our business developmewf@gsionals based in India. These
professionals focus on identifying, qualifying andiating discussions with our current and progpecclients, while our business developnr
team prepares responses to requests for propbeats, client visits to our facilities and coordiegmtiue diligence on processes to be outsource
to us.

As of December 31, 2010, we had 28 sales and niagkand client management professionals in theddrBtates and the United
Kingdom. Each member of these teams has signifegmerience in offshore outsourcing and has e)geeiti identifying outsourcing
opportunities and process migration. We intencetectively expand our sales and marketing and tcieanagement teams. Our sales and
marketing, client management and business developt@ams work actively with our service delivergreas the sales process moves clos
the client’s decision process to either selectxpaad their relationship with a service provideneTclient executive or sales executive works
with the service delivery team to define the scageyices, assumptions and execution strategiesafdr proposed project and to develop
project estimates and pricing and sales propoSalsior management reviews and approves each pilopbssselling cycle varies depending
on the type of service required and generally rarigen six months to eighteen months.

Members of our sales and marketing, client manageared business development teams remain actimebhied in a project through t
execution phase. Supporting each client team @@ocate sponsor, executive steering committeeratipas leadership team and, in some
cases, a dedicated human resources, technologpfaastructure team.

Clients

We currently have approximately 120 clients. Ougést clients in 2010 were Centrica, Travelers Aamgrican Express which together
accounted for approximately 41.2% of our total raes in 2010. Other clients include over sixtytwf teading global insurance companies,
over fifteen leading global banks and financia8srs companies, three European utilities compaaniesthree leading transportation services
providers. While we are developing relationshipghwiew clients and expect to continue to diversify client base, we believe that the loss of
any of our three largest clients could have a nedtadverse effect on our
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financial performance. See “ltem 1A. Risk FactorsiskR Related to Our Business—We have a limited rermobclients and provide services
to few industries. In 2010, approximately 41.2%poof total revenues came from three clients.”

Our long-term relationships with our clients typigaevolve from providing a single, discrete progésto providing a series of complex,
integrated processes across multiple business ksoutsourcing services, we enter into long-tagreements with our clients with initial
terms of between typically three and eight yeagre&ments for transformation services generall\etsorter initial terms. Each agreement is
individually negotiated with the client.

We provide services to Centrica under an agreethanexpires in April 2012. Centrica will have thetion to extend the contract for t
annual extension periods. This contract can beitated by Centrica without cause upon three mopitios notice and payment of a breakup
fee. See “Iltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Business—Our client contracts contain certaimteation provisions that could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of opemtind financial condition.”

We provide services to Travelers under a servigesemnent and work assignments and orders gendhateglinder. Although the servic
agreement does not have a fixed term, the worlgasgnts and work orders expire in December 2013@melv every year thereafter unless
either party elects not to renew within a specifiediod before the next renewal date. Travelers tayinate the services agreement, or any
work assignment or work order, without cause up@u®ys prior notice.

We provide services to American Express under ffijeater services agreement for our outsourcingcgesrywhich agreement cannot be
terminated by American Express without cause andhwprovides us with a minimum volume commitmenéioa period of eight years till
February 2018 and thereafter automatically getswed year after year for successive twelve montio@® unless either party provides a
notice of six months prior to the expiration of thiial term and (ii) a master agreement for gansformation services, which agreement may
be terminated by American Express without cause dipe days prior written notice.

In addition, our agreements generally limit oubiidy to our clients to a maximum amount, subjectany cases to certain exceptions
such as indemnification for third-party claims drdaches of confidentiality. In order to meet thecific needs of our clients, we enter into
contracts with varying contractual provisions.

Competition

Competition in the BPO services industry is inteasd growing. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Reldo Our Business—We face
significant competition from U.S.-based and non-th&sed outsourcing and information technology camgs and from our clients, who may
perform outsourcing services themselves, eithdroinse, in the United States or through offshoreigsar other arrangements.” Many
companies, including certain of our clients, chomsperform some or all of their customer serviamlections and back-office processes
internally. Their employees provide these servaepart of their regular business operations. Smmganies have moved portions of their in-
house customer management functions offshore,divajuto offshore affiliates. We believe our key adtage over in-house business processes
is that we give companies the opportunity to foongheir core products and services while we fanuservice delivery and operational
excellence. We believe that clients who operatghaiti business model—partnering with external BROvjaers while handling other BPO
functions in-house—have the opportunity to benclkntiae performance of their internal BPO operatiagainst ours.

We compete primarily against:

. BPO service companies based in offshore locatjpensicularly India, such as Genpact Limited (Gertpand WNS (Holdings)
Limited (WNS);
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. the BPO divisions of large information technologyJT, service companies and global BPO servicespamies located in tt
United States, such as Accenture, Cognizant Teolggdbolutions and International Business Machi

. the BPO divisions of IT service companies locatethtia such as Infosys BPO (owned by Infosys Tetdgies Limited), Tata
Consultancy Services Limited and Wipro BPO (owngd\ipro Technologies Limited); ar

. leading accounting and management consulting fi

We compete against these entities by establishingetves as a service provider with deep industpegise, superior operational
capabilities and process expertise, and uniqusfvemation service capabilities, which enablesougspond rapidly to market trends and the
evolving needs of our clients in this sector. SeeBusiness Strategy—Offering a Broad Range of Outdng and Transformation Services”,
“—Extending Our Industry Expertise” and “—Contingito Focus on Complex Processes.”

We expect that competition may increase. A sigaiftgart of our competitive advantage has histtlyiteeen a wage cost advantage
relative to companies in the United States and [ieiend the ability to attract and retain highlyengnced and skilled employees. We believe,
however, that as a result of rising wage costsdial and other locations of our operations ceraatsthe infrastructure improvements that are
taking place in other emerging markets around tbedyour ability to compete effectively will incasingly depend on our ability to provide
high quality, on-time, complex services that reguxpertise in certain technical areas, to utpimgprietary tools and methodologies and to
expand geographically.

Intellectual Property

We generally use our clients’ software systemsthimd-party software platforms to provide our sees. We customarily enter into
licensing and nondisclosure agreements with oentdiwith respect to the use of their softwareesystand platforms. Our contracts usually
provide that all intellectual property created sfieglly for use of our clients will automaticallye assigned to our clients.

Our principal intellectual property consists of prietary software and the know-how of our managemaie have received approvals for
several trademark applications, including applaadifor our logo and mark, with the U.S. Patent Bratlemark Office and the U.K.
Trademark Office. In addition, we have filed tradekiapplications for the EXL and INDUCTIS markdimlia. We have four unregistered
trademarks that are publicly used: MOST, EXL Cdiltats System (ECS), B-ProMPT and MICROANALYTIX. M@$s a proprietary
opportunity identification and migration methodojoigr processes that we have used in connectidmavitubstantial majority of our process
migrations. Our proprietary software includes asurance policy administration platform called BfRO® , our collections software called
ECS, an automated web-enabled reconciliation soéwalled ETrack, a software to analyze large data sets cMEEROANALYTIX and out
web based process management and performancengyaekivice called B-ProMPT. B-ProMPT uses advareedytics and assists our
managers in process management and performaneetua) including tracking individual performanceagents, supervisors and other
employees. We consider our business processesmabeimentation methodologies to be confidentialppetary information and to include
trade secrets that are important to our busindgnt€ and business partners sign a nondisclogireement requiring confidential treatment of
our information. Our employees are also requiresiga confidentiality agreements as a conditioth&r employment.

Technology

We have a welbeveloped international telecommunications capdoisupport our business operations. We use amattenal wide are
network from India, the Philippines, the Czech Remuand Romania to connect to our points of presen the United States and the United
Kingdom. Our networking and telecommunications hatgssituated in Sunnyvale, California, Jersey Qitgw Jersey and New York,
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New York, providing technology interface locatiams the east and west coasts of the United Statesh@iness continuity management
includes plans to eliminate certain risks inherardritical applications by building redundancieslaesilience into the connectivity and
telecommunications infrastructure, network, systgmosver availability, transportation, physical sétyy and trained manpower availability, as
well as utilizing distributed computing.

To increase stable data and telecommunicationitgpae lease bandwidth from a number of diffenerdviders globally, including
AT&T, Tata Communications, Verizon, Orange and iBhitTelecom. Currently, we have a bandwidth of &W@9 megabits-per-second, or
Mbps, in the United States and over 185 Mbps intthited Kingdom, which we believe is adequate for lousiness. We have implemented
multiprotocol label switching connectivity acrodbpmocessing centers and technology hubs, whidulshallow seamless transition from one
center to the other in case of an outage.

Our infrastructure is built on industry standardd ave work closely with several leading originaligsment manufacturers and principal
technology partners. The robustness of our telecanizations network has allowed us to achieve amagesnetwork availability of over 99.%
for day-to-day operations.

We customize our technology solutions in line vatlr clients’ business and outsourcing requiremédts.technology teams are
comprised of expert professionals from technologyget management, infrastructure management,rirdiion security and technology
operational service delivery, thereby permittingaadapt our infrastructure services to our cightough various phases of our client
engagements. We seek to understand our clientgidsssand outsourcing requirements and their psgglesforms, develop and implement
customized services to our clients and deliveabdd services that facilitate the offshore condunt management of their business processes.

Our methodology on business continuity managemmaahirgformation security involves implementationaof organization-wide
framework, including our business operations, huneaources, technology, facilities and marketing @@mmunications divisions. The
framework involves strategic planning, rigorous rgpienal implementation, scheduled testing and Kitians, reviews and strategy
formulation.

We have the following systems in place to protbeetgrivacy of our clients and their customers anersure compliance with the laws
and regulations governing our activities:

. our information security policies comply with Intetional Standards, including ISO 27001, for optimanagement of variot
aspects of information security, including persdnpkysical, systems and operations center segl

. our information security framework addresses coamulé requirements and protection of our clientd #weir customers’
information;

. specific provisions for complying with the FDIC 8aflarbor Provisions, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act thealth Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act, the EU PrivabByjrective and other clie-specific needs

. information systems teams formed for each clienttie development, implementation and coordinatibpolicies and procedurt
specific to that clier's processes; ar

. periodic internal and external audits and vulndityldssessments of both our information securignagement system a
implemented controls

Process Compliance and Management

We have an independent quality compliance teamaioitor, analyze, provide feedback on and reportgse performance and
compliance. In addition, we have a customer expedgdeam to assess and improve end customer expefigr all processes. Currently, we
have over 290 quality compliance analysts and cust@xperience analysts.
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We report process performance on B-ProMPT, a wekdapplication accessible by both our clientsunthat includes process control
capabilities such as digital dashboards for evalggirocess management and performance at anyMathéh an organization, including
tracking the individual performance of agents, suisers and other employees. B-ProMPT includes aded analytics capacity to provide Six
Sigma-based process analysis, including trend aisalgistribution analysis and correlation analysid tracking.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had a headcount obappately 12,700 individuals, the substantial pmrtof whom are based in India.
We have approximately 200 employees in the UnitateS and United Kingdom, approximately 900 empdsyia the Philippines and an
aggregate of approximately 300 employees in thelCRepublic and Romania. Our employees are nonized. We have never experienced
any work stoppages and believe that our employlaéaes are good.

Hiring and Recruiting

Our employees are critical to the success of oaimness. Accordingly, we focus heavily on recruititrgining and retaining our
professionals.

We have developed effective strategies that erabkfficient recruitment process. We have approteéiyal0 employees dedicated to
recruitment. Some of the strategies we have addpteatrease efficiency in our hiring practiceslinte online voice assessment and a
centralized hiring center. Our hiring policies fean identifying high quality employees who demaaist a high propensity for learning,
contribution to client services and growth. Cantidanust undergo numerous tests and interviewséwfe extend offers for employment. We
also conduct extensive background checks on catedidiacluding criminal background checks as remliby clients or on a sample basis. In
addition, we perform random drug testing on theld@nce on a regular basis. In 2010, we receivedentioan 45,000 applications for
employment and hired approximately 7,000 new psifemls. We also have an employee referral proghatprovides us with a cost effective
way of accessing qualified potential employees.

We offer our professionals competitive compensgpiackages that include significant incenthesed compensation and offer a variel
benefits, including free transport to and from hameertain circumstances, subsidized meals amddceess to recreational facilities that are
located within our operations centers. Our turnaaée for billable employees—employees who exebutness processes for our clients
following the completion of our six-month probatérg period—has increased from approximately 22.6#/4ffe year ended December 31,
2009 to approximately 34.4% for the year ended bdoer 31, 2010. The increased turnover rate is lagéributable to the increase in dem
for professionals as a result of an improved ecoa@mvironment in India and the Philippines whemaibstantial portion of our professionals
are based. However, as competition in our industrseases, our turnover rate could increase furhee “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks
Related to Our Business—We may fail to attractaatdin enough sufficiently trained professionalsupport our operations, as competition
for highly skilled personnel is intense and we eigee significant employee turnover rates.”

Training and Development

We dedicate significant resources to the trainimg) @evelopment of our professionals. At Decembe810, we had over 250 certified
trainers. Our trainers work with professionals um gecruitment, operations and quality control tedmcreate an end-to-end process for value
addition, skill evaluation, skill enhancement amdtification. We also use training to provide canity by linking skill assessment at the point
of recruitment to subsequent assessment and ojofthteaining.

We customize our training design to country, cligmustry and service, closely collaborating vifik client throughout the training
process. Approximately 4,800 employees receivaditrg on the insurance
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industry and processes at an insurance acadenbfisiséal by us in 2009. Training for new employe®dudes culture, voice and accent
training. We also have ongoing training that inelsidefresher training programs and personality ldpweent programs. In addition, we deve
our employees’ leadership skills through variousatdlity development programs, other talent idécdiion and performance management
mechanisms and significant monetary and non-mopétaentives. In 2010, we launched an e-learnirgf@im for web-based in-house
programs for associates and trained over 4,00@¢&dse across a range of educational programsgithinyear. We have also created career
development programs for our middle and junior ng@naent employees that help them define and idetitéy career paths within the
company. In 2010, we launched the EXL School of dgament Development and provided training to oy@@d of our junior and middle
managers.

Regulation

Because of the diversity and highly complex natifreur service offerings, our operations are suliige variety of rules and regulations
and several U.S. and foreign federal and statecg®enegulate aspects of our business. In additiongclients may contractually require that
comply with certain rules and regulations, evethdfse rules and regulations do not actually applyst Failure to comply with any applicable
laws and regulations could result in restrictionsoar ability to provide our products and serviasell as the imposition of civil fines and
criminal penalties, which could have a materialeaade effect on our operations.

We are one of the few service providers that cawige third-party administrator insurance servitesm India in 45 states of the United
States and from the Philippines in 20 states ofdhi¢éed States, having been licensed or exempted,for not subject to, licensing in each of
those states, which may help make us an attras#iméce provider to future clients.

Our debt collection services may be subject td=#ie Debt Collection Practices Act, which reguladedt collection practices. In additi
many states require a debt collector to applyldergranted and maintain a license to engage inaddlection activities within a state. We are
currently licensed (or exempt from licensing reguoients) to provide debt collection services frouiidrin all but two states in the United
States and from the Philippines in 35 states ofthiked States that have non-exempt requirememtdane separate conditional exemptions
with respect to our ongoing collection obligations.

Our operations are also subject to compliance aithriety of other laws, federal and state regotetithat apply to certain portions of «
business such as the Fair Credit Reporting ActGteanm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Health Insurance Ploiltey and Accountability Act of 1996,
the HITECH Act of 2009, the Truth in Lending Adbet Fair Credit Billing Act, the Fair Debt Colleatid’ractices Act and U.S. Federal Deposit
Insurance Company, or FDIC, rules and regulatiéns.client contracts specify what particular rega requirements we must meet in
connection with the services we provide. We trainemployees regarding the applicable laws andlatigas.

Regulation of our business by the Indian governnaffiects our business in several ways. We berefilh fcertain tax incentives
promulgated by the Indian government, includingyattoliday from Indian corporate income taxes Fa dperation of some of our Indian
operations centers. The tax benefit for some ofoperations centers in India has already expirellisset to expire for some of our other
operations centers on April 1, 2011. Our operatimergers in Noida and Jaipur, India, which weratd&hed in special economic zones during
2010, are eligible for tax incentives until 2025e\Also benefit from certain tax incentives for operations in the Philippines. See “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Related to the Internationaulabf our Business—Our financial condition couddrtegatively affected if foreign
governments reduce or withdraw tax benefits andratitentives currently provided to companies withiir industry, or if the same are not
available for other reasons.” Our subsidiarieid are also subject to certain currency trangfgrictions. See “ltem 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations—Foreign Exchange” and “—Inedraxes.”
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related To Our Business

We have a limited number of clients and providedees to few industries. In 2010, approximately 2% of our total revenues came from
three clients.

We have derived and believe that we will contimudérive a substantial portion of our total revenfrem a limited number of large
clients. In 2010, our three largest clients, CeatriTravelers and American Express, accountedpimroximately 41.2% of our total revenues.
We generated 15.2% of our total revenues in 20d f€entrica, 14.4% of our total revenues in 200@fiT ravelers and 11.6% of our total
revenues in 2010 from American Express. We prosétgices to Centrica under an agreement that exirApril 2012. Centrica has the
option to extend the contract for two annual eximgeriods. This contract can be terminated byt@anwithout cause upon three months
prior notice and payment of a breakup fee. We gi®gervices to Travelers under a services agreeameniork assignments and orders
generated thereunder. Although the services agmtetioes not have a fixed term, the work assignmemdswork orders expire in December
2013 and renew every year thereafter unless gty elects not to renew within a specified petefore the next renewal date. Travelers
may terminate the services agreement, or any wasigament or work order, without cause upon 60 gais notice. We provide services to
American Express under a separate agreement fbradaur BPO services and our transformation ses:i@he agreement for transformation
services can be terminated by American Expressowitbause upon five days prior written notice. \Wpezt that a significant portion of our
total revenues will continue to be contributed Hiyrdted number of large clients in the near futurle loss or financial difficulties of either of
our large clients would have a material adversecefn our business, results of operations, firdmandition and cash flows.

General economic and business conditions could nigdy affect our business in multiple ways.

The recent global economic downturn adversely irtgghcompanies in the industries to which we progevices including the banking,
financial services and insurance industries. IN02@pproximately 61.7% of our total revenues weneved from clients in those industries,
including 52.2% of our total revenues that werewg from clients in the insurance industry. Ousibess largely depends on continued
demand for our services from clients and potewtiahts in these industries. Adverse developmantkése industries could further unfavore
affect our business. In particular, we currentlyivis and are likely to continue to derive, a sfgaint portion of our revenues from clients
located in the United States. Any future decre&séise general level of economic activity, sucldasreases in business and consumer
spending, could result in a decrease in demandubservices, particularly our transformation sesgi thus reducing our revenue. Continued
high unemployment rates in the United States caldd adversely affect the demand for our serviogiser developments in response to
economic events, such as consolidations, resting&ior reorganizations, particularly involving ailients, could also cause the demand for
our services to decline.

While economic conditions have recently improvéat trend may not continue and the extent of thieeatieconomic improvement is
unknown. Any future disruptions in the commerciaddit markets may impact liquidity in the globa¢dit market as greatly, or even more,
in recent years, and we may not be able to préuécimpact such worsening conditions will have antargeted industries in general, and our
results of operations specifically. Future turbgkeim global markets and economies may adverstdgtadur liquidity and financial condition,
and the liquidity and financial condition of ouresits, and they may limit our ability to accessfiging or increase our cost of financing to
meet liquidity needs, and affect the ability of austomers to use credit to purchase our servicasmake timely payments to us, resulting in
adverse effects on our financial condition and ltesaf operations. Changes in global economic dioml could also shift demand to services
for which we do not have competitive advantaged,tais could negatively affect the amount of busithat we are able to obtain.
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Our industry may not develop in ways that we curtigranticipate due to negative public reaction ing United States and elsewhere to
offshore outsourcing, recently proposed legislationotherwise.

We have based our strategy of future growth orageessumptions regarding our industry and futeneetbpments in the market for
outsourcing services. For example, we believettiexe will continue to be changes in product amdise requirements, and investments in the
products offered by our clients will continue taiiease. However, the trend to outsource businesggses may not continue and could rev
Offshore outsourcing is a politically sensitive itom the United States and elsewhere, and mangnizgtions and public figures have publicly
expressed concern about a perceived associatisebetoffshore outsourcing providers and the logsld in the United States and elsewhere.
In addition, there has been limited publicity abtihg negative experience of certain companiesusabffshore outsourcing, particularly in
India. Current or prospective clients may elegbéoform such services themselves or may be disgedrfrom transferring these services to
offshore providers to avoid any negative percepti@at may be associated with using an offshoreigesvAny slowdown or reversal of
existing industry trends would harm our abilityclmmpete effectively with competitors that operateaf facilities located in the United States
and elsewhere.

A variety of U.S. federal and state legislation hasn proposed that, if enacted, could restridisirourage U.S. companies from
outsourcing their services to companies outsiddJthieed States. For example, legislation has beepgsed that would require offshore
providers to identify where they are located arat thould require notice to individuals whose peedanformation is disclosed to non-U.S.
companies. Because most of our clients are logatdte United States, any expansion of existingslawthe enactment of new legislation
restricting offshore outsourcing could adverselpatt our ability to do business with U.S. cliems dave a material and adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial conditiad cash flows. In addition, it is possible tlegislation could be adopted that would restrict
U.S. private sector companies that have federsiate government contracts or financing from outsiog their services to offshore service
providers. Such restrictions could affect our &pilo attract or retain clients that have such @msts in the future.

In other countries, such as the United Kingdom clwliomprised 24.3% of our total revenues in 20i€xet has also been some negative
publicity and concern expressed regarding the ptessifect of job losses caused by outsourcingidlation introduced in the United Kingdom
(consolidating past case law) in 2006 provides ifrtompany transfers or outsources its businesspart of its business to a transferee or a
service provider, the employees who were emplogeslich business are entitled to become employeldebtyansferee or service provider on
the same terms and conditions as they had beerogetpbefore the transfer. The dismissal of suchleyeps as a result of such transfer of
business is deemed unfair dismissal and entiteegtiployees to compensation. As a result, we megrbe liable for redundancy payments to
the employees of our clients in the United Kingdehm outsource business to us. We are generallyrindied in our existing contracts with
clients in the United Kingdom to the extent we inlmsses or additional costs due to the applicatfathis legislation to us, and we intend to
obtain indemnification in future contracts withesits. However, if we are unable to obtain inderoation in future contracts with clients, we
may be liable under any agreements we enter intioeiiuture with United Kingdom clients. Similaglelation has also been enacted in certain
other European jurisdictions.

Our client contracts contain certain termination ahother provisions that could have an adverse effec our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Most of our client contracts may be terminated by dients without cause and do not commit oumtieo provide us with a specific
volume of business. Any failure to meet a clieettpectations could result in a cancellation or nremewal of a contract or a decrease in
business provided to us. We may not be able t@cephny client that elects to terminate or notweit® contract with us, which would reduce
our revenues. For example, we provide serviceettri@a under an agreement that can be termingt€khtrica without cause upon three
months prior notice and payment of a breakup feepmvide services to Travelers under a serviceseagent that Travelers may terminate
without cause upon 60 days prior notice and weigeiransformation services to American Expressuath agreement that can be terminated
by American Express without cause
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upon five days prior written notice. We generaté®% of our total revenues in 2010 from Centrica4% of our total revenues in 2010 from
Travelers and 11.6% of our total revenues in 20@thfAmerican Express. The termination of any otheontracts with or without cause cc
have a material adverse impact on the predictglufibur expected revenue stream.

A limited number of our contracts allow a cliemt,dertain limited circumstances, to request a bevach study comparing our pricing and
performance with that of an agreed list of othevise providers for comparable services. Basedherresults of the study and depending o1
reasons for any unfavorable variance, we may beinedjto make improvements in the services we piewer reduce the pricing for services
a prospective basis to be performed under the réngpierm of the contract or our client could electerminate the contract, which could have
an adverse effect on our business, results of ipesaand financial condition. Many of our contsacbntain provisions that would require u
pay penalties to our clients and/or provide ousrdl with the right to terminate the contract if deenot meet pre-agreed service level
requirements or if we do not provide certain prdblity benefits. Failure to meet these requirememtaccurately estimate the productivity
benefits could result in the payment of significaahalties by us to our clients which in turn coluiétve a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial cmmdiMany of our contracts with clients specifatlif a change of control of our company
occurs during the term of the contract, the clieas the right to terminate the contract. Theseigims may result in our contracts being
terminated if there is such a change in contraliliterg in a potential loss of revenues. In additidhese provisions may act as a deterrent tc
attempt by a third party to acquire our company.

We may fail to attract and retain enough sufficidgttrained employees to support our operations casnpetition for highly skilled personne
is intense and we experience significant employ@mover rates.

The BPO industry is very labor intensive and owcsss depends to a significant extent on our gldigttract, hire, train and retain
qualified employees, including our ability to attt@mployees with needed skills in the geograpteasin which we operate. The industry,
including us, experiences high employee turnoveRd10, our turnover rate for billable employees wpproximately 34.4%. There is
significant competition for professionals with $kihecessary to perform the services we offer tacbents. Increased competition for these
professionals, in the BPO industry or otherwisellddave an adverse effect on us. A significantéase in the turnover rate among our
employees, particularly among the highly skilledrkforce needed to provide BPO services, would iaseeour recruiting and training costs
and decrease our operating efficiency, productiaitg profit margins, and could lead to a declindemand for our services. High turnover
rates generally do not impact our revenues as aierféhe attrition rate into our pricing modelstogintaining additional employees for each
process. However, high turnover rates do increaseast of revenues and therefore impact our pnoditgins due to higher recruitment,
training and retention costs as a result of maiirtgilarger hiring, training and human resourcgsadenents and higher operating costs due to
having to reallocate certain business processes@umar operations centers where we have accehs tkilled workforce needed for the
business. In 2010, we incurred approximately $lilliam on recruitment and approximately $1.0 million training costs due to employee
turnover, thereby increasing our costs and reducingorofit margins for that period by $2.7 million

In addition, our ability to maintain and renew eixig engagements and obtain new business will dgperarge part, on our ability to
attract, train and retain personnel with skillsttkeep pace with the demand for outsourcing, emghitidustry standards and changing client
preferences. A lack of sufficiently qualified pemsel could also inhibit our ability to establishepations in new markets and our efforts to
expand geographically. Our failure to attract,rtrand retain personnel with the qualifications seeey to fulfill the needs of our existing and
future clients or to assimilate new employees ssefcdly could have a material adverse effect onbuginess, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.
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We have a long selling cycle for our BPO servichattrequires significant funds and management resoes and a long implementation
cycle that requires significant resource commitment

We have a long selling cycle for our BPO serviegsich requires significant investment of capitasources and time by both our clients
and us. Before committing to use our services,miiateclients require us to expend substantial ttmd resources educating them as to the
value of our services and assessing the feasibilitgtegrating our systems and processes witligh@ur clients then evaluate our services
before deciding whether to use them. Thereforeselling cycle, which generally ranges from sietghteen months, is subject to many risks
and delays over which we have little or no contirdjuding our clients’ decision to choose alteived to our services (such as other providers
or in-house offshore resources) and the timingunfalients’ budget cycles and approval processeadtlition, we may not be able to
successfully conclude a contract after the seltiygje is complete.

Implementing our services involves a significantooitment of resources over an extended periochtd from both our clients and us.
Our clients may also experience delays in obtaiimitgrnal approvals or delays associated with teldgy or system implementations, thereby
delaying further the implementation process. Oiant$ and future clients may not be willing or atuénvest the time and resources necessary
to implement our services, and we may fail to clesles with potential clients to which we have dedaignificant time and resources, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrresults of operations, financial condition aadtcflows.

Once we are engaged by a client, it may take ugsgvmonths before we start to recognize signifitaavenues.

When we are engaged by a client after the sellinggss for our BPO services, it takes from fowsixoweeks to integrate the client’s
systems with ours, and up to three months theretafteuild up our services to the client’s requissts. Depending on the complexity of the
processes being implemented, these time periodsmaignificantly longer. Implementing processes loa subject to potential delays similar
to certain of those affecting the selling cycleefidfore, we do not recognize significant revenuds after we have completed the
implementation phase.

We enter into long-term contracts with our BPO dtits, and our failure to estimate the resources aime required for our contracts may
negatively affect our profitability.

The initial terms of our BPO client contracts tygllg range from three to five years. In many of 88O contracts we commit to long-
term pricing with our clients and therefore bear tisk of cost overruns, completion delays, wadlation and adverse movements in exchange
rates in connection with these contracts. If wetéagstimate accurately the resources and timeimed| for a contract, future wage inflation
rates or currency exchange rates (or fail to atelyréaedge our currency exchange rate exposuriéa fail to complete our contractual
obligations within the contracted timeframe, owrareues and profitability may be negatively affected

Consistency in our revenues from period to periogheénds in part on our ability to reflect the chamgj demands and needs of our existing
and potential BPO clients. If we are unable to adjuour pricing terms or the mix of products and s@es we provide to meet the changing
demands of our BPO clients and potential BPO clienbur business, results of operations and finarlatandition may be adversely affecte

Most of our BPO contracts use a pricing model gravides for hourly or annual billing rates. Indysgpricing models are evolving,
however, and we anticipate that clients may inéngfhg request transaction-based or other pricinglet® If we are unable to adapt our
operations to evolving pricing protocols, our réswlf operations may be adversely affected or we mod be able to offer pricing that is
attractive relative to our competitors.
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In addition, the BPO services we provide to ouerds and the revenues and income from those semviag decline or vary as the type
and quantity of services we provide under thoséraots changes over time, including as a resudt gifift in the mix of products and services
we provide. Furthermore, our clients, some of wiiiakie experienced significant and adverse chamgieir prospects, substantial price
competition and pressures on their profitabilitstyé in the past and may in the future demand peidections, automate some or all of their
processes or change their outsourcing strategydwng more work in-house or to other providers, afwhich could reduce our profitability.
Any significant reduction in or the elimination thfe use of the services we provide to any of adentd, or any requirement to lower our prices,
would harm our business.

Our transformation services are cyclical and based specific projects involving short-term contracts

Our transformation services, such as our decisiaytics services and our risk and financial managy® services, are cyclical and can
be significantly affected by variations in businegsles. Changes in the deadlines or the scopedf vequired for compliance with the
requirements of legislation applicable to our disecould have a significant impact on certain sEnagfferings of our risk and financial
management services business.

In addition, a majority of our decision analyties\wces and our risk and financial management sesvionsist of specific projects with
contract terms generally not exceeding one yeamadnot produce ongoing or recurring businessifoonce the project is completed. These
contracts also usually contain provisions perngttiermination of the contract after a short nofieeiod. The short-term nature and specificity
of these projects could lead to material fluctuadiand uncertainties in the revenues generatedtiiese businesses.

Our operating results may experience significantrigbility and as a result it may be difficult for sito make accurate financial forecasts.

Our operating results may vary significantly froeripd to period. Although our existing agreemenith wriginal terms of three or more
years provide us with a relatively predictable ravebase for a substantial portion of our businésslong selling cycle for our services and
budget and approval processes of prospective slimake it difficult to predict the timing of newieht acquisitions. The timing of revenue
recognition under new client agreements also vakigending on when we complete the implementatims@. The completion of
implementation varies significantly based upondbmplexity of the processes being implemented.

Our period-to-period results have in the past aag aiso in the future fluctuate due to other fagtaorcluding client losses, delays or
failure by our clients to provide anticipated besis, variations in employee utilization rates msglfrom changes in our clients’ operations,
delays or difficulties in expanding our operati@esiters and infrastructure (including hiring newpéogees or constructing new operations
centers), changes to our pricing structure orafaur competitors, currency fluctuation, seasamanges in the operations of our clients and
other events identified in this Annual Report omrRd.0-K. Our revenues are also affected by chaimgpscing under our contracts at the time
of renewal or by pricing under new contracts. Barmple, because the majority of our revenues amerdmated in U.K. pounds sterling or
U.S. dollars while most of our expenses are incuamrd paid in Indian rupees and the Philippine pegorevenues can decrease or increase
significantly if the exchange rates among the Indigpee, the U.K. pound sterling, the Philippinegand the U.S. dollar fluctuate
significantly. In addition, some of our contractsmbt commit our clients to provide us with a sfieciolume of business. These factors may
make it difficult to make accurate financial forstsor replace anticipated revenues that we doegeive as a result of delays in implementing
our services or client losses. If our actual resddi not meet any estimated results that we aneowndf we underperform market expectations
as a result of such factors, trading prices forammmon stock could be adversely affected.
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Our senior management team is critical to our camtied success and the loss of one or more membemiptenior management team cot
harm our business.

Our future success substantially depends on théncmd services and performance of the membersiofmranagement team and other
key employees possessing technical and busineabitiips, including industry expertise, that aifficult to replace. Specifically, the loss of
the services of Vikram Talwar, our Executive Chamuntil March 31, 2011 and our non-Executive Ghain thereafter, or of Rohit Kapoor,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, couldaesly impair our ability to continue to managelaxpand our business. There is intense
competition for experienced senior management anslopnel with technical and industry expertisehmindustry in which we operate, and we
may not be able to retain these officers or keyleyges. Although we have entered into employmedtraon-competition agreements with all
of our executive officers, certain terms of thogeeements may not be enforceable and in any elesétagreements do not ensure the
continued service of these executive officers. esBalwar and Kapoor and certain of their affésbhave certain registration rights with
respect to their shares of common stock.

In addition, we currently do not maintain “key pam$insurance covering any member of our manageteam. The loss of any of our
key employees, particularly to competitors, coudgtdna material adverse effect on our businessltsesfioperations, financial condition and
cash flows.

Our inability to effectively manage our rapid infgtructure and personnel growth could have a maté@averse effect on our operations,
results of operations and financial condition.

Since we were founded in April 1999, we have exgraed rapid growth and significantly expanded qarations. We have twelve
operations centers in India and one each in thigpPlmes, the Czech Republic, the U.S. and Romabia.headcount has increased from
approximately 1,800 on December 31, 2002 to apprateély 12,700 on December 31, 2010. We expectueldp and improve our internal
systems in the locations where we operate in daladdress the anticipated growth of our busindé&sare in the process of establishing new
operation centers in India and are also contintorlgok for operation centers at additional locasi@utside of India, the Philippines, the Czech
Republic, the U.S. and Romania. We believe expandur geographic base of operations will providghkr value to our clients by decreasing
the risks of operating from a single country (irtthg potential shortages of skilled employees,gases in wage costs during strong economic
times and currency fluctuations), while also giving clients access to a wider talent pool andotistang a base in countries that may be
competitive in the future. However, we may not bkedo effectively manage our infrastructure angkayee expansion, open additional
operations centers or hire additional skilled emipés as and when they are required to meet tharapgeeds of our clients, and we may not
be able to develop and improve our internal systéuos inability to execute our growth strategyettsure the continued adequacy of our
current systems or to manage our expansion effdgtoould have a material adverse effect on ouiniess, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

We may engage in strategic acquisitions or transans, which could have a material adverse effectaur business, results of operations
and financial condition.

As part of our business strategy, we intend toinamrtto selectively consider acquisitions or inuemtts, some of which may be material.
Through the acquisitions we pursue, we may seekrbppities to expand the scope of our existingises/we provide, add new clients or to
enter new geographic markets. We have made adquisih the past, including our acquisition in 2@d3he back office operations of
Schneider S.R.O. in the Czech Republic and ourisitiqgun in 2010 of the American Express Global TebS8ervices Center located in Gurga
India and PDMA, developer of the LifePRO insurapoéicy administration platform. There can be nauaasce that we will successfully
identify suitable candidates in the future for ggc transactions at acceptable prices, havecseifti capital resources to finance potential
acquisitions or be able to consummate any desiegdactions. Our failure to close transactions wétential acquisition targets for which we
have invested significant time and resources chale a material adverse effect on our financialit@mn and cash flows.
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Acquisitions, including completed acquisitions,dhxe a number of risks, including diversion of mgement’s attention, ability to
finance the acquisition on attractive terms, falto retain key personnel or valuable customegs| lgabilities and the need to amortize
acquired intangible assets, any of which could reweaterial adverse effect on our business, restitiperations, financial condition and cash
flows. Future acquisitions may also result in theurrence of indebtedness or the issuance of additequity securities.

We could also experience financial or other setbédfckkansactions encounter unanticipated problénts ding problems related to
execution, integration or underperformance relativprior expectations. Our management may notibeta successfully integrate any
acquired business into our operations or maintairstandards, controls and policies, which coulkehammaterial adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial cmmiConsequently, any acquisition we do compfeéy not result in long-term benefits to us.

Following the completion of an acquisition, we niggve to rely on the seller to provide administ@tiwnd other support, including
financial reporting and internal controls, to tlegjaired business for a period of time. There candassurance that the seller will do so in a
manner that is acceptable to us.

If more stringent labor laws become applicable te ar if our employees unionize, our profitability ay be adversely affecte

India has stringent labor legislation that protestgployee interests, including legislation thas detth detailed procedures for dispute
resolution and employee removal and legislatiot ithaoses financial obligations on employers upstnenchment. Though we are exempt
from some of these labor laws at present underpixees in some states for providers of IT-enabkedises, there can be no assurance that
such laws will not become applicable to us in theife. If these labor laws become applicable toewaployees, it may become difficult for us
to maintain flexible human resource policies arichat and employ the numbers of sufficiently quetifcandidates that we need or discharge
employees, and our compensation expenses may secsagmificantly.

In addition, our employees may in the future formoms. If employees at any of our operations carttecome eligible for union
membership, we may be required to raise wage l@rajsant other benefits that could result in aréase in our compensation expenses, in
which case our profitability may be adversely atiéec

Employee wage increases may prevent us from susigiour competitive advantage and may reduce ouofitrmargin.

Our most significant costs are the salaries aratedlbenefits of our operations staff and otherleyegs. For example, wage costs in
India have historically been significantly loweathwage costs in the United States and Europeofoparably skilled professionals, which has
been one of our competitive advantages. Howeveguse of rapid economic growth in India, increadeehand for BPO services from India
and increased competition for skilled employeemdia, wages for comparably skilled employees widrare increasing at a faster rate than in
the United States and Europe, which may reducecthigpetitive advantage. We may need to increasketieds of employee compensation
more rapidly than in the past to remain competitivattracting and retaining the quality and numtfeemployees that our business requires.
Wages are generally higher for employees perforrdagision analytics services and risk and finantiahagement services than for emplo
performing BPO services. As the scale of our denisinalytics services and our risk and financiahag@ment services increases, wages as a
percentage of revenues will likely increase. Toekgent that we are not able to control or shargenacreases with our clients, wage increases
may reduce our margins. We will attempt to constath costs by our efforts to add capacity in lacetiwhere we consider wage levels of
skilled personnel to be satisfactory, but we matylhosuccessful in doing so. Additionally, becaaigeajority of our employees are based in
India and paid in Indian rupees, while our reveraresprimarily in U.S. dollars and U.K. pounds ey, our employee costs as a percentage of
revenues may increase or decrease significantyeiexchange rates among the Indian rupee, thepgddhd sterling and the U.S. dollar
fluctuate significantly.
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We face significant competition from U.S.-based amon-U.S.-based outsourcing and information techiegly companies and from our
clients, who may perform outsourcing services thatves, either in-house, in the United States ordbgh offshore groups or other
arrangements.

The market for outsourcing services is highly cofitipe, and we expect competition to intensify andrease from a number of sources.
We believe that the principal competitive factarour markets are breadth and depth of processteseqyeservice quality, the ability to attract,
train and retain qualified people, compliance riggobal delivery capabilities, price, knowledgemdustries served and marketing and sales
capabilities. We also face competition from non-th&sed outsourcing and IT companies (including¢ha the United Kingdom and India)
and U.S.-based outsourcing and IT companies. litiaddthe trend toward offshore outsourcing, ineional expansion by foreign and
domestic competitors and continuing technologibanges, such as cloud computing, will result in mend different competition for our
services. These competitors may include entraaota the communications, software and data networkidgstries or entrants in geographic
locations with lower costs than those in which werate. Some of these existing and future competitave greater financial, personnel and
other resources, a broader range of service offgrigreater technological expertise, more recogtedarand names and more established
relationships in industries that we currently sesvenay serve in the future. In addition, some wf competitors may enter into strategic or
commercial relationships among themselves or waithdr, more established companies in order to &seréheir ability to address client needs,
or enter into similar arrangements with potentie@rds. The trend in multi-vendor relationships bagn growing, which could reduce our
revenues to the extent that we are required to fyntiuié terms of our relationship with clients oatltlients obtain services from other vendors.
Increased competition, our inability to competecassfully against competitors, pricing pressurdess of market share could result in redt
operating margins, which could harm our businesslts of operations, financial condition and cialvs.

We expect competition to intensify in the futurenagre companies enter our markets. Increased cdiopahay result in lower prices
and volumes, higher costs for resources, espegathple, and lower profitability. We may not beeatd supply clients with services that they
deem superior and at competitive prices and we losgybusiness to our competitors. Any inabilitictonpete effectively would adversely
affect our business, results of operations andfirzd condition.

We may disrupt our clients’ operations as a resoftinadequate service or other factors, includinglécommunications or technology
downtime or interruptions.

The services we provide are often critical to dients’ businesses, and any failure to provide ¢hgervices could result in a reduction in
revenues or a claim for substantial damages agasnsegardless of whether we are responsiblentdrfailure. Most of our agreements with
clients contain service level and performance memgoénts, including requirements relating to theliguaf our services. Failure to consistently
meet service requirements of a client or errorsentadour employees in the course of deliveringisessto our clients could disrupt the client’
business and result in a reduction in revenuesctaim for damages against us. Additionally, weldancur liability if a process we manage
a client were to result in internal control failarer impair our client’s ability to comply with itsvn internal control requirements. Under a
majority of our agreements with our clients, oability for breach of certain of our obligationsgenerally limited to actual damages suffered
by the client and is typically capped at the greatean agreed amount or the fees paid or payahlis for a period of time under the relevant
agreement. These limitations and caps on liahiiy be unenforceable or otherwise may not protedtam liability for damages. In addition,
certain liabilities, such as claims of third pastfer which we may be required to indemnify ouents or liability for breaches of
confidentiality, are generally not limited undeogle agreements. Our agreements are governed byfawdtiple jurisdictions, therefore the
interpretation of such provisions, and the avaligbof defenses to us, may vary, which may contrito the uncertainty as to the scope of our
potential liability.

Our dependence on our offshore operations cerggrsres us to maintain active voice and data conications among our operations
centers, our international technology hubs andcbents’ offices.
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Although we maintain redundant facilities and cominations links, disruptions could result from, argather things, technical breakdowns,
computer glitches and viruses and weather conditid'e also depend on certain significant vendaréafality storage and related maintena
of our main technology equipment and data at thesenology hubs. Any failure by these vendors tdquen those services, any temporary or
permanent loss of our equipment or systems, od#typtions to basic infrastructure like power aglécommunications could impede our
ability to provide services to our clients, haveegative impact on our reputation, cause us todberts, reduce our revenues and harm our
business.

Our business could be materially and adversely aféal if we do not protect our intellectual propenty if our services are found to infringe
on the intellectual property of others.

Our success depends in part on certain methodslogjiactices, tools and technical expertise wezatih designing, developing,
implementing and maintaining applications and offreprietary intellectual property rights. In orderprotect our rights in these various
intellectual properties, we rely upon a combinatdmondisclosure and other contractual arrangesnasivell as trade secret, copyright and
trademark laws. We also generally enter into canfiility agreements with our employees, consudtaritents and potential clients and limit
access to and distribution of our proprietary infation. We also have submitted United States féd@hforeign trademark applications for
the names of additional service offerings. We matytre successful in maintaining or obtaining tradeks for these trade names. India is a
member of the Berne Convention, an internationalliectual property treaty, and has agreed to neicegprotections on intellectual property
rights conferred under the laws of other foreignrtdes, including the laws of the United Stateser® can be no assurance that the laws, rules
regulations and treaties in effect in the Uniteat&, India and the other jurisdictions in whichaperate and the contractual and other
protective measures we take, are adequate to prgtdmom misappropriation or unauthorized usewfiotellectual property, or that such laws
will not change. We may not be able to detect umanized use and take appropriate steps to enfanceaghts, and any such steps may not be
successful. Infringement by others of our intelletiproperty, including the costs of enforcing ouellectual property rights, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultpefations and financial condition.

Although we believe that we are not infringing e intellectual property rights of others, claimaymonetheless be successfully
asserted against us in the future. The costs ehdéig any such claims could be significant, andsarccessful claim may require us to moc
discontinue or rename any of our services. Any sinanges may have a material adverse effect obuminess, results of operations and
financial condition.

Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidert@ient and customer data, whether through breaohour computer systems or otherwi
could expose us to protracted and costly litigatiand cause us to lose clients.

We are typically required to collect and store garesdata in connection with our services, inchglnames, addresses, social security
numbers, credit card account numbers, checkingsawihgs account numbers and payment history receuds as account closures and
returned checks. In addition, many of our agreemeiith our clients do not include any limitation ouar liability to them with respect to
breaches of our obligation to keep the informati@receive from them confidential. We take prea@msito protect confidential client and
customer data. However, if any person, including @our employees, penetrates our network secarittherwise mismanages or
misappropriates sensitive data, we could be subjesignificant liability and lawsuits from our efits or their own customers for breaching
contractual confidentiality provisions or priva@mwis. Penetration of the network security of ouadanters could have a negative impact on
our reputation, which could have a material advefgect on our business, results of operationgyaial condition and cash flows.

We may not be fully insured for all losses we magur.

Although we attempt to limit and mitigate our lidyi for damages arising from negligent acts, esror omissions through contractual
provisions, limitations of liability set forth inun contracts may not be enforceable
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in all instances or may not otherwise protect osfliability for damages. In addition, certain liiies, such as claims of third parties for wh
we may be required to indemnify our clients, areggally not limited under those agreements. Althowg have general liability insurance
coverage, including coverage for errors or omissi@noperty damage or loss and breaches of prizadynetwork security, that coverage may
not continue to be available on reasonable ternts be available in sufficient amounts to cover onenore large claims, and our insurers may
disclaim coverage as to any future claim. The ss&foéassertion of one or more large claims agaisshat exceed available insurance
coverage, or changes in our insurance policiesu@lireg premium increases or the imposition of ladgeuctible or co-insurance requirements),
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmeputation, results of operations, financialditon and cash flows.

Oak Hill Capital Partners and its affiliates, andidram Talwar and Rohit Kapoor exercise significaimfluence over us, and their interests
in our business may be different than yours.

A majority of the issued and outstanding sharesunfcommon stock are currently beneficially owngddak Hill Capital Partners L.P.
and certain of its affiliates, and our ExecutiveaZiman, Vikram Talwar, and our President and Chiedcutive Officer, Rohit Kapoor. As of
December 31, 2010, Oak Hill Capital Partners LRl eertain of its affiliates beneficially owned 882,504 shares (or 35.8%) of our
outstanding common stock; Mr. Talwar and certaists for his benefit and that of his family colieety beneficially owned 1,069,318 shares
(or 3.6%) of our outstanding common stock; and K&apoor and certain trusts for his benefit and tfdtis family collectively beneficially
owned 1,777,647 shares (6.0%) of our outstandingnoon stock. Accordingly, each of these partieseoarcise significant influence over our
business policies and affairs and all matters réyga stockholders’ vote, including the compositaf our board of directors, the adoption of
amendments to our certificate of incorporation drelapproval of mergers or sales of substantidlligfaour assets. This concentration of
ownership also may delay, defer or even prevetiaage in control of our company and may make soamséactions more difficult or
impossible without the support of these stockhad&he interests of these stockholders may confiiitt your interests.

We may choose to expand operations to additionalrddes and may not be successful in maintainingrocurrent profit margins in our new
locations due to factors beyond our control.

We are currently continuing to evaluate additidonahtions other than India, the Philippines, the&€@rRepublic, the U.S. and Romanii
which to invest in an operations center. We capnedlict the extent of government support, avaitghdf qualified workers, or monetary and
economic conditions in other countries. Althougimsoof these factors will influence our decisiorestablish operations in another country,
there are inherent risks beyond our control, incigeéxposure to currency fluctuations, politicatartainties, foreign exchange restrictions and
foreign regulatory restrictions. One or more ofstéactors or other factors relating to expandéestiational operations could result in
increased operating expenses and make it moreuiffor us to manage our costs and operationssiwduld harm our business and
negatively impact our operating results.

We may increase the range of services that we gtevb our clients and our business and future presgs are difficult to evaluate.

We are exploring opportunities to provide outsodrservices that we have not provided to date. $heel decide to expand our service
offerings, our results of operations may be negétiaffected during any transition or growth perlmefore such offerings achieve profitability.
For example, we may need to expand our traininguofexisting employees or recruit new, specialfirted employees to provide these
services, which could increase our costs of reveisproportionately to the revenues generatedibly services. Other challenges we may
face include the diversion of our management'snditia, attracting and retaining clients for suchvgees, integrating any new services into our
current suite of services and managing any regugnowth in our operations.
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Failure to adhere to the regulations that govern obusiness could have an adverse impact on our ggiens.

Our clients are often subject to regulations thay mequire that we comply with certain rules argltations in performing services for
them that would not otherwise apply to us. Deblemtion services, for example, may be subject éoRhir Debt Collection Practices Act, wh
regulates debt collection practices. In additioansnU.S. states require a debt collector to apmlytfe granted and maintain a license to en
in debt collection activities in a state. We arerently licensed (or exempt from licensing requiests) to provide debt collection services in
the United States from India in all but two U.&tses and from the Philippines in 35 U.S. statestthae non-exempt requirements and have
separate conditional exemptions with respect tooogoing collection obligations. Other U.S. feddaas and regulations that apply to certain
portions of our business include the Fair Credpdéténg Act, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Healttsurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, the Truth in Lending #\¢he Fair Credit Billing Act and the FDIC rulesdaregulations. If we do not maintain our
licenses or other qualifications to provide ounvgms, we may not be able to provide services istieg customers or be able to attract new
clients and could lose revenues, which could haveterial adverse effect on our business. Our aggats with some of our clients require us
to remain knowledgeable about and comply with almemof relevant consumer protection laws. Failorpdrform our services in a manner
that complies with any such requirement could tdsubreaches of contracts with our clients. Oulufa to comply with any applicable laws
and regulations could subject us to civil fines arithinal penalties.

Risks Related to the International Nature of our Bsiness

Our financial condition could be negatively affeaef foreign governments reduce or withdraw tax kefits and other incentives currently
provided to companies within our industry, or if ¢hsame are not available for other reasol

Under the Income-Tax Act, 1961 of India, we havediited from a holiday from Indian corporate incotages applicable under the
Software Technology Parks of India or STPI schefvgea result, our service operations have to dad@ lsebject to relatively lower tax
liabilities. We incurred lower income tax expense€010 as a result of the STPI tax holiday, conghéweapproximately $4.2 million that we
would have additionally incurred if the STPI taxXitlay had not been available for that period (withaccounting for double taxation treaty set-
offs). The STPI tax holiday in respect of some wf operations centers has already expired and te sxpire for some of our other operations
centers in India on April 1, 2011. Consequently,dperations centers that are not eligible for$fi@I tax holiday, our tax expense will
materially increase and our after-tax profitabiligill materially decrease. During 2010, we havekkshed operations centers in Noida and
Jaipur, India in special economic zones that dgebéd for tax incentives for services providedrfreauch locations until 2025 under the Special
Economic Zones Act, 2005. If we are not able talggh or acquire operations in India that are tedan special economic zones, our tax
expense will materially increase and our aftergeofitability will materially decrease.

We currently benefit from a four-year income tafiday in the Philippines that is extendable foraalditional two years. Our current
income tax holidays in the Philippines are expetbegipire in the middle of 2012, unless extend&tile we intend to apply for extensions of
these holidays, it is possible that such extensiontd be denied, or these holidays could be recheveirely due to changes in the government
of the Philippines. Should either of these evertain our Philippine tax liability could increase.

We may be required to pay additional taxes in coatien with audits by the Indian taxing authorities.

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regiirat any international transaction involving @ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-length
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidianmg the Company may be required to satisfy semphirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its assocetéetprises on the basis of detailed functiondlesonomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsaife not under common control. The tax authertigve jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determinetiie transfer price applied was not appropriate,
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Company may incur increased tax liability, inclugliaccrued interest and penalties. The Companyrismly involved in disputes with the
Indian tax authorities over the application of sashés transfer pricing policies for past yearked®e see note 16 to our consolidated financial
statements for details.

Based on advice from our Indian tax advisors, #uotsfunderlying our position and our experiencé wiese types of assessments, we
continue to believe that the probability of lossemote and have not accrued any amount with réspdéitese matters in our consolidated
financial statements. Any amount paid by us as siégpwill be refunded to us with interest or apglteward outstanding disputes at such time
if we succeed in our appeals with the appropriateauthorities. We cannot assure you that our dppéth be successful or that these appeals
will be finally resolved in the near future.

Introduction of tax legislation and disputes witlax authorities may have an adverse effect on oueggtions and our overall tax rate

Governments in countries in which we operate ovigi@services could enact new tax legislation whidluld have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition. In addition, our ability to r&piate surplus earnings from our operations
centers in a tax-efficient manner is dependent uptanpretations of local laws, possible changesuich laws and the renegotiation of existing
double tax avoidance treaties. Changes to anyesktmay adversely affect our overall tax rate, Wwhiould have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financiatltion. Additionally, if a tax authority in anwijisdiction reviews any of our tax returns and
determines that the transfer prices and terms we &pplied are not appropriate, or that other ire@four affiliates should be taxed in that
jurisdiction, we may incur increased tax liabilitycluding accrued interest and penalties, whichild@ause our tax expense to increi
possibly materially, thereby reducing our profitapiand cash flows.

Currency fluctuations among the Indian rupee, the.Kl. pound sterling, the Philippine peso and the Udbllar could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

Although a substantial portion of our revenuesdiEeominated in U.K. pounds sterling (24.3% in 2040).S. dollars (72.0% in 2010),
most of our expenses (58.4% in 2010) are incurnedpaid in Indian rupees. We report our finanaésiults in U.S. dollars. The exchange rates
among the Indian rupee, the U.K. pound sterling,Rhilippine peso and the U.S. dollar have chasgédtantially in recent years and may
fluctuate substantially in the future. Although ta&e steps to hedge a substantial portion of aliminrupee/U.S. dollar foreign currency
exposures, our results of operations may be adyaaffected if the Indian rupee fluctuates sigrafitly against the U.K. pound sterling or the
U.S. dollar, the U.K. pound sterling further depages against the U.S. dollar, our hedging strategymsuccessful or if the hedging markets
have insufficient liquidity or depth to allow usitoplement our hedging strategy in a cost-effecthanner. Any failure by our hedging
counterparties to meet their contractual obligaticould materially and adversely affect our praitity. We are subject to legal restrictions on
hedging activities as well as the convertibilityonfrrencies in India. This could limit our ability use cash generated in one country in another
country and could limit our ability to hedge oumpesures. Finally, our hedging policies only prowvig&r term protection from exchange rate
fluctuations.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence invislg India, the Philippines, the United States orhmr countries could adversely affect the
financial markets, result in a loss of client corféence and adversely affect our business, resultsdrations and financial condition

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or,\wenduding those involving India, the Philippingse United States or other countries,
may adversely affect worldwide financial markets aould potentially lead to economic recession chitould adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition. Thegents could adversely affect our clients’ lewdlbusiness activity and precipitate sudden
significant changes in regional and global econarpitditions and cycles. These events also posdisagtt risks to our people and to our
operations centers. South Asia has, from timente tiexperienced instances of civil unrest and
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hostilities among neighboring countries, includindia, Pakistan and China. In recent years theve baen several instances of military
confrontations along the Indo-Pakistan border. &lwentinues to be potential for hostilities betwaatia and Pakistan due to recent terrorist
activities and the geopolitical climate along tloeder. Although this has not been the case to dath political tensions could create a
perception that there is a risk of disruption ofvgms provided by India-based companies, whicHedthave a material adverse effect on the
market for our services. Furthermore, if India weErdecome engaged in armed hostilities, partibutaostilities that were protracted or
involved the threat or use of nuclear weapons, Wwghtmot be able to continue to operate. Our inscegolicies may not insure us against
losses and interruptions caused by terrorist agtackl other acts of violence or war.

We may face difficulties as we expand our operasidnto countries in which we have no prior operagjrexperience.

We intend to continue to expand our global footpirnnorder to maintain an appropriate cost striemd meet our clientglelivery need:
This may involve expanding into countries othemntliaose in which we currently operate. It may imeoéxpanding into less developed
countries, which may have less political, sociatoonomic stability and less developed infrastmecand legal systems. As we expand our
business into new countries we may encounter régylgoersonnel, technological and other difficgtihat increase our expenses or delay our
ability to start up our operations or become padifié in such countries. This may affect our retathips with our clients and could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operatimd financial condition.

A substantial portion of our assets and operaticer® located in India, and we are subject to regulat, economic and political uncertaintie
in India.

Our principal operating subsidiaries are incorpedldh India, and a majority of our assets and oafgssionals are located in India. We
intend to continue to develop and expand our ofisiiacilities in India. In the early 1990s, Indigerienced significant inflation, low growth
in gross domestic product and shortages of foreigrency reserves. The Indian government, howdazes exercised and continues to exercise
significant influence over many aspects of thedndtconomy. India’s government has provided sicguifi tax incentives and relaxed certain
regulatory restrictions in order to encourage fgmanvestment in specified sectors of the econanghiding the BPO industry. Certain of the
programs, which have benefited us, include taxdagi, liberalized import and export duties andgneftial rules on foreign investment and
repatriation. We cannot assure you that liberabrgpolicies will continue. Various factors, such@hanges in the current federal government,
could trigger significant changes in India’s ecomoliberalization and deregulation policies andrdig business and economic conditions in
India generally and our business in particular.

In addition, the Government of India is considerimgoducing a reservation policy to the privatetsein India, pursuant to which all
private sector companies operating in India, incigadur subsidiaries, would be required to resercertain percentage of jobs for the
economically underprivileged population in the atsatvhere such companies are incorporated. If tisypis adopted, our ability to hire
employees of our choice may be affected due toictens on our pool of potential employees and petition for these professionals.

The choice of India as an outsourcing destinatimhur financial performance may be adversely &fby general economic conditic
and economic and fiscal policy in India, includicltanges in exchange rates and controls, interest aad taxation policies, as well as social
stability and political, economic or diplomatic @édepments affecting India in the future. In part&gyindia has experienced significant
economic growth over the last several years, lméganajor challenges in sustaining that growtthéytears ahead. These challenges include
the need for substantial infrastructure developraedtimproving access to healthcare and educa@ionability to recruit, train and retain
qualified employees, develop and operate our opp@stenters, and attract and retain clients cbalddversely affected if India does not
successfully meet these challenges.
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The Philippines periodically experiences political economic instability, which could disrupt our epations, increase our costs and harm
our business.

The Philippines has experienced significant inflaticurrency declines and shortages of foreign @&xgl. We are exposed to the risk of
cost increases due to inflation in the Philippinelsich has historically been at a much higher tlaga in the United States. These conditions
could create political or economic instability tliatuld harm businesses operating in the Philippines

In addition, the Philippines has and may contirsuexXperienced civil unrest, terrorism and politizamoil, resulting in temporary work
stoppages and telecommunication or other technaaggges. These instabilities and any adverse ésanghe political environment in the
Philippines could increase our operational costsgiase our exposure to legal and business riskenake it more difficult for us to operate «
business in the Philippines.

Restrictions on entry visas may affect our abiltty compete for and provide services to clientshie tynited States, which could have
material adverse effect on future revenues.

The vast majority of our employees are Indian megtis. The ability of some of our executives and leyges to work with and meet our
U.S. and European clients and our clients fromratbentries depends on their ability to obtaintleeessary visas and entry permits. In
response to terrorist attacks, the global econamienturn and public sentiments about the high udeympent rates in their respective
economies, U.S. and European immigration autheriigeve increased the level of scrutiny in grantisgs. Immigration laws in those count
may also require us to meet certain levels of carepon and comply with other legal requirementa asndition to obtaining or maintaining
entry visas. These restrictions have increasedpbpécation fees for certain types of visas andehsignificantly lengthened the time
requirements to obtain visas for our personnelctvhias in the past resulted, and may continuestdtrén delays in the ability of our person
to meet with our clients. In addition, immigratitaws are subject to legislative change and vargtagdards of application and enforcement
due to political forces, economic conditions orastBvents, including terrorist attacks. We canmetljzt the political or economic events that
could affect immigration laws or any restrictivedact those events could have on obtaining or mongentry visas for our professionals. If
we are unable to obtain the necessary visas faopael who need to get to our clients’ sites, ¢héf duration of such visas is shortened or if
such visas are delayed, we may not be able togemarvices to our clients or to continue to prewlikse services on a timely and cost
effective basis, which could have a material advefffect on our business, results of operationgnitial condition and cash flows.

An outbreak of an infectious disease or any otherisus public health concerns in Asia or elsewhareuld have a material adverse effect
our business and results of operations.

The outbreak of an infectious disease in Asia sewhere or any other serious public health conasyakl have a negative impact on the
economies, financial markets and business actyvitiehe countries in which our end markets aratied, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business. Past outbreaks of SevemgeARespiratory Syndrome, avian influenza, or Birdor HIN1 across Asia and Europe h
adversely affected a number of countries and coiepaAlthough we have not been adversely impacyetthése recent outbreaks, we can give
no assurance that a future outbreak of an infestiisease among humans or animals or any otheusgsublic health concerns will not have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We are vulnerable to natural disasters that coulkeverely disrupt the normal operation of our busireeand adversely affect our business,
results of operation and financial condition.

India is susceptible to natural disasters, inclgdiphoons, tsunamis, floods and earthquakes. hilppines is additionally susceptible
volcanic eruptions. Substantially all of our operas centers and employees are located in Indigran@hilippines. If our operations centers
are damaged by a typhoon, tsunami, flood, eartrejuadcanic eruption or other natural disaster,apgrations and our ability to provide
services to
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our clients could be interrupted or delayed sigaifitly. Our insurance coverage may not be suffidieicover all of our potential losses. In
addition, although all of our operations centergehaccess to other power sources, disaster managédities in India may not be adequate
to protect against potential losses. In additidients may terminate their contracts with us if @@not resume providing services quickly
enough. As a result, a natural disaster in IndignerPhilippines could have a material adversecefie our business, results of operation and
financial condition.

If more stringent labor laws or other industry staards in India become applicable to us, our profiitity may be adversely affecte

India has stringent labor legislation that proteébesinterests of workers, including legislatioattkets forth detailed procedures for
dispute resolution and employee removal and Ieipsidhat imposes financial obligations on emplsyepon retrenchment. In addition, we are
subject to certain industry standards regardingeouployees, particularly with regard to overtimel &arnsportation of employees. Our
employees may also in the future form unions. ésthlabor laws or industry standards become mongent or are more strictly enforced, ¢
our employees unionize, it may become difficult dierto maintain flexible human resource policiescliarge employees or downsize, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on ogirtess, results of operations, financial conditiod cash flows.

The Government of India has recently focused orottoeipational health and safety concerns experiebgavorkers in the outsourcing
industry. The introduction of legislation imposirestrictions on working hours or conditions of @edionals in the outsourcing industry could
have an adverse effect on our business, resuttparhitions and financial condition.

Investors may have difficulty effecting service pfocess or enforcing judgments obtained in the WrdtStates against our subsidiaries
India or our executive officers

Our primary operating subsidiaries are organizedide the United States and a number of our exexuofficers reside outside of the
United States. Most of our assets are locateddialrAs a result, you may be unable to effect seraif process upon our affiliates who resic
India outside their jurisdiction of residence. bidéion, you may be unable to enforce against tipegssons outside the jurisdiction of their
residence judgments obtained in courts of the driftetes, including judgments predicated solelynupe federal securities laws of the United
States.

Sections 44A and Section 13 of the Indian Civild&dure Code, 1908, or the Civil Code, govern reitimgnand enforcement of foreign
judgments. Section 44A of the Civil Code providesriecognition and enforcement of a foreign judgtweithout having to file an original st
in India, provided such judgments have been remdeyecourts in a country or territory outside Indihich the Government of India has
declared to be a reciprocating territory. We haserbadvised by our Indian counsel that the UnitateS and India do not currently have a
treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and @eement of judgments (other than certain arb@ragiwards) in civil and commercial matters.
Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of morendered by any federal or state court in thaednStates based on civil liability, whether
or not it is predicated upon the federal securia@ss of the United States, would not be enforoe@blndia as such.

However, if the party in whose favor such finalgaaent is rendered brings a hew suit in a competaumtt in India based on a final
judgment that has been obtained in the United §t&ection 13 of the Civil Code provides that theeiign judgment will be conclusive as
certain matters. The suit must be brought in Indtain three years of the date of the foreign judgn It is unlikely, however, that a court in
India would award damages on the same basis asrticdhe United States if an action is broughinidia. It is also unlikely that an Indian
court would enforce judgments obtained in the Uhiates if it viewed the amount of damages awaadeskcessive or inconsistent with
Indian practice.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

ITEM 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is located in New YNew York. We have twelve operations centers indndine in Manila, Philippines,
one in Olomouc, Czech Republic and one in Cluj, Roia with an aggregate area of approximately 9&8s8gft. and a current installed
capacity of approximately 9,243 agent workstatithrad operate on an uninterrupted 24/7 basis andwaiéable to be staffed on a three-shift
basis. We also have an operations center in Ind@isa Indiana and a sales office in London, U.Kir @etworking and telecommunication
hubs are located in Sunnyvale, California, Jerséy, Gew Jersey and New York, New York. All of ooperations centers are equipped with
fiber connectivity and have access to other powarces. Substantially, all of our operations cengee leased under long-term leases with
varying expiration dates, except for an operatienter in Pune, India with an approximate area ¢83@®86 sq. ft. and containing 1,141 agent
workstations which we own. We do not have the gptinder our present lease agreements to buy atmesé properties should we desire to do
so except for our operations center in a spec@h@wnic zone in Noida, India.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of our normal business activitiesious lawsuits, claims and proceedings may betirtstl or asserted against us. We
believe that the disposition of matters institubedsserted will not have a material adverse efiaaiur consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. Please see note tb6rteonsolidated financial statements for detaitgarding our tax proceedings.
ITEM 4. (Removed and Reservec
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PART II.

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock trades on the Nasdag Global Skladtet under the symbol “EXLS.”

The following table sets forth for the periods tatied the high and low sales prices for sharesio€ommon stock as reported by the
Nasdag Global Select Marki

Price Range

Calendar Period High Low
2010

First Quarte! $19.51 $15.6¢
Second Quarte $19.0¢ $14.61
Third Quartel $20.0¢ $15.9¢
Fourth Quarte $22.0¢ $18.3¢
2009

First Quartel $ 9.4¢ $ 5.8¢
Second Quarte $11.4( $ 8.1C
Third Quartel $14.9¢ $ 9.7¢
Fourth Quarte $18.3¢ $13.4:

As of February 28, 2011, there were 24 holdergodrd of our outstanding common stock.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividendsuomommon stock. We currently expect to retairoathur earnings for use in
developing our business and do not anticipate gegity cash dividends in the foreseeable futuraurBuwtash dividends, if any, will be paid at
the discretion of our board of directors and wdpénd, among other things, upon our future opersitamd earnings, capital requirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractesitrictions and such other factors as our boadire€tors may deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the three months ended December 31, 20&0C&mpany did not acquire any shares of commolik $tom employees in
connection with withholding tax payments relatedh®e vesting of restricted stock. During the yeasteed December 31, 2010, the Company
acquired 5,472 shares of common stock from empkireeonnection with withholding tax payments rethto the vesting of restricted stock
for a total consideration of $92,500. The purchasee of $16.96 per share was the average of titedmd low price of the Company’s shares
of common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Maskethe trading day prior to the vesting date ofghares of restricted stock. These shares
are held as treasury stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Ded®er 31, 2010 with respect to the shares of oumeomstock that may be issued
under our existing equity compensation plans. Wes liae following equity compensation plans, eactvieich has been approved by our
stockholders: (1) our 2003 Stock Option Plan, (&) 2003 India Stock Employee Option Plan and (3)2006 Omnibus Award Plan (includi
two India sub plans thereunder). For a descriptiosach of our equity compensation plans, pleasesste 13 to our consolidated financial
statements.

Number of Securities Weighted
Average Exercisi Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon Available for Future
Exercise/Vesting of Price of Issuance Under Equity
Outstanding Outstanding
Plan Category Equity Awards Options Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans that have been approy:
security holder: 4,028,31 $ 12.17 3,430,47.
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
Total 4,028,31 $ 12.15 3,430,47.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock with the clative total return of the Nasd.
100 Index (capitalization weighted), our peer grofipompanies for the period beginning OctoberZB6. Our peer group of companies is
comprised of two companies that we believe arectngest reporting issuer competitors: WNS and Gemgée returns of the component
entities of our peer group index are weighted atiogrto the market capitalization of each entity&the beginning of each period for which a
return is presented. The stock performance showthegraph below is not indicative of future prperformance.
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ITEM 6.

The following table sets forth our selected cordald historical financial data as of the datesfanthe periods indicated. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as e€&@mber 31, 2010 and 2009 and for each of the yle@®es in the period ended December 31,
2010 has been derived from our consolidated firmstatements included elsewhere in this AnnualoRem Form 10-K. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as e€@mber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 and for each gfethies ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 are derived from our audited financial statetsiewvhich are not included in this Annual RepartForm 10-K. Our selected consolidated
financial information for 2010, 2009 and 2008 slibioé read in conjunction with our consolidated fiicial statements and the notes theretc
“ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis afaficial Condition and Results of Operations” whach included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Selected Financial Date

Year ended December 31

2006
2010 2009 2008 2007 (Unaudited)
(in millions, except share and per share date

Consolidated Statement o

Operations Data:
Total revenue® $ 252.¢ $ 191.( $ 181.7 $ 152.( $ 98.7
Cost of revenues (exclusive of

depreciation and amortizatio® 151.c 109./ 112.¢ 100.1 62.€
Gross profil 101.t 81.€ 69.2 51.¢ 36.1
Selling, general and administrati

expense®) 59.1 45.¢ 42.L 37.¢ 23.2
Depreciation and amortization

expense® 15.€ 11.4 11.2 9.2 7.1
Income from continuing operatiol 26.5 24.L 15.7 4.8 5.€
Total other income/(expens 5.6 (4.9 (5.9 11.¢ 0.8
Income from continuing operations

before income taxe 32.1 19.5 9.8 16.€ 6.4
Income tax provision/(benefi 5.5 3.7 (1.9 (1.0 (0.9
Income from continuing operatiol 26.€ 15.¢ 11.1 17.€ 6.7
Income/(loss) from discontinued

operations, net of taxe — (0.7) 3.2 9.4 3
Net income 26.€ 15.7% 14.¢ 27.C 14.C
Dividend and accretion to preferred

stock — — — — (0.6)
Net income to common stockhold $ 26.€ $ 15.7 $ 14.¢ $ 27.C $ 13.2
Earnings per shar
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 0.91 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.62 $ 0.27
Discontinued operatior $ = $ — $ 0.11 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3Z
Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 0.8¢ $ 0.54 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6C $ 0.2¢
Discontinued operatior $ — $ — $ 0.11 $ 0.32 $ 0.32
Weighted average number of

common shares outstandir
Basic 29,281,36 28,963,77 28,811,04 28,480,03 22,863,53
Diluted 30,388,52 29,417,91 29,212,04 29,191,19 23,033,26
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Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Date
Cash and cash equivalel $111.2 $132.2 $112.2 $101.¢ $ 84.7
Working capital®) 123.¢ 139.t 118.¢ 119.¢ 85.C
Total asset 305.7 249.¢ 212.( 218.¢ 169.2
Other long term obligatior® 6.4 5.6 0.2 0.3 0.2

Stockholder equity $248.t $205.7 $171.% $174.( $127.2

1)
(2)

3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

Revenues include reimbursable expenses of $11l®miih 2010, $9.6 million in 2009, $11.8 million 2008, $7.1 million in 2007 ar
$4.4 million in 2006. Revenues also include con-termination fee of $5.1 million in 2009 and $0.4lion in 2008.

Cost of revenues for the years ended December30, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 include $1.6 mill&in4 million, $1.1 million, $1.
million and $0.5 million, respectively, as neash amortization of stock compensation expensginglto the issuance of equity award
employees directly involved in providing serviceour clients

SG&A expenses for the years ended December 31, 200@, 2008, 2007 and 2006 include $6.9 millidh7$nillion, $4.2 million, $3.:
million and $1.5 million, respectively, as neash amortization of stock compensation expensdéiniglto the issuance of equity award
our nor-operations stafi

Depreciation and amortization for the yearseshBecember 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 200&dies $2.0 million, $0.2 million,
$0.5 million, $1.6 million and $1.2 million, resgaely, as amortization of intangible

Working capital means total current assets lesd toirrent liabilities
Other lon¢-term obligations includ“ASC No. 741-10" reserves, retirement benefits and capital le:
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ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conioactvith our consolidated financial statements dinel related notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Sofithe statements in the following discussion are&rd looking statements. See “—
Forward looking statemen”

Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and tramsétion services focused on providing a competiédge to our clients. Our
outsourcing services provide front-, middle- andksaffice process outsourcing services for our priilg U.S.-based and U.K.-based clients.
Outsourcing services involve the transfer to usadéct business operations of a client, such @&m€lprocessing, finance and accounting and
customer service, after which we administer andagarthe operations for our client on an ongoingsb&¥e also offer a number of
transformation services that include decision aiedyrisk and financial management and operatiomsprocess excellence services. These
transformation services help our clients improwrtbperating environments through cost reductamianced efficiency and productivity
initiatives, and improve the risk and control eowniments within our clients’ operations whether ot they are outsourced to us. A significant
portion of our business relates to processes thdielieve are integral to our clients’ operatiarg] the close nature of our relationships with
our clients assists us in developing strong stiategg-term relationships with them. We serve ity the needs of Fortune Global 500 and
Fortune 1000 companies in the insurance, utilitkasiking and financial services, transportation lagistics and travel sectors.

We market our services directly through our salebraarketing and client management teams, whichad@eut of the United States and
the United Kingdom, and our business developmemhievhich operates out of Noida, India. We curseafierate twelve operations centers in
India, including two new operations centers in dagnd Noida, India, which became operational ig 2010 and November 2010,
respectively, one operations center in Cluj, Romavtiich became operational in February 2010, oreeatipns center in the Philippines, one
operations center in Olomouc, the Czech Republicare operations center in Indianapolis, Indiana.aké also in the process of expanding
some of our operations centers in India.

On March 1, 2010, we acquired the operations of GTésbusiness unit of American Express locatedurg&on, India, that provides the
travel-related business process outsourcing serat@merican Express. The purchase price of @estction, which was paid in cash, was
approximately $29.1 million. Through this transantiwe have started to provide services to theetrsector, deepened our relationship with a
significant client and expanded our capabilityisetnalytics, exception processing and transagiiogessing.

On May 1, 2010, we acquired a 100% stake in PDMAvetbper of the LifePR® insurance policy administraplatform used by
approximately 40 insurance companies. The purcpase for PDMA, which was paid in cash, was appnaiely $14.1 million (including ca
acquired of $1.0 million), net of working capitaljastments. The PDMA acquisition has provided pslicy administration platform for our
insurance clients along a wide range of products.

Revenues

We generate revenues principally from contracirtwide outsourcing and transformation services.th® year ended December 31,
2010, we had total revenues of $252.8 million coragdo total revenues of $191.0 million in 2009 @erease of $61.8 million or 32.3%.
Revenues from outsourcing services were higherdigy@bmillion in 2010 when compared to 2009 (exahgdthe receipt of a one-time contract
termination fee of $5.1 million in 2009), primaritiue to revenues of $29.1 million from new cliemts]uding the acquisitions of
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GTSC and PDMA, net volume increases within existiignts of approximately $12.5 million and an ie&se of $3.0 million, primarily due to
the appreciation of the Indian rupee against tt& dollar, excluding the impact of currency moveteam the acquired businesses. Revenues
from transformation services were higher by $22ifian in 2010 when compared to 2009, primarily doea combination of increased
revenues in recurring or annuity decision analydevices and an increase in project-based engaggeimeour decision analytics, risk and
financial management and operations and procesdlence practices.

We anticipate that our revenues will grow as weaxpour service offerings and client base, bottawigally and through acquisitions.
We provide our clients with a range of outsourdegvices, including insurance services, bankingfarahcial services, utilities support
services, finance and accounting services andatimteservices. Our clients transfer the managemedtexecution of their processes or
business functions to us. As part of this transferhire and train employees to work at our operaticenters on the relevant outsourcing
services, implement a process migration to theseatipns centers and then provide services eithétret client or directly to the client’s
customers. Each client contract has different tdyased on the scope, deliverables and complexityeofngagement. The outsourcing services
we provide to any of our clients (particularly under general framework agreements), and the reageand income that we derive from those
services, may decline or vary as the type and ifyaftservices we provide under those contractnge over time, including as a result of a
shift in the mix of products and services we previd

For outsourcing services, we enter into long-tegreaments with our clients with initial terms ramgifrom three to five years. Some
client contracts have significantly longer term#thAugh these agreements provide us with a relgtjwedictable revenue base for a substa
portion of our business, the long selling cycledar outsourcing services and the budget and appprecesses of prospective clients make it
difficult to predict the timing of new client acgitions. Revenues under new client contracts adsp depending on when we complete the
selling cycle and the implementation phase.

Our transformation services include various ses/migch as decision analytics services, which @gemded to facilitate more effective
data-based strategic and operating decisions bgliaumts, risk and financial management servicesaperations and process excellence
services.

Our transformation services can be significantfeeted by variations in business cycles. In addjtmur transformation services consist
primarily of specific projects with contract terrgenerally not exceeding one year and may not peduagoing or recurring business for us
once the project is completed. These contractsuedsally contain provisions permitting terminatiminthe contract after a short notice period.
The short-term nature and specificity of thesegatsj could lead to further material fluctuationd ancertainties in the revenues generated
from these businesses.

We serve clients mainly in the United States arddhited Kingdom, with these two regions generatipgroximately 72.0% and 24.3%,
respectively, of our total revenues for the yeateghDecember 31, 2010 and approximately 63.8% ari¥@ respectively, of our total
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009.

We derive a significant portion of our revenuesrira limited number of large clients. In the yearder December 31, 2010 and 2009,
our total revenues from our three largest cliergsen$104.2 million and $81.3 million, respectivedgcounting for 41.2% and 42.6% of our
total revenues, respectively, during these periods.

We provide services to Centrica, which represefi&815 million, or 15.2%, of our total revenues ttoe year ended December 31, 2010
and $39.2 million, or 20.5% of our total revenuessthe year ended December 31, 2009, under anragreehat is scheduled to expire in April
2012. Centrica may terminate the agreement witbause upon three months prior notice and paymeatoéakup fee.

We provide services to Travelers, which represefig&i3 million, or 14.4%, of our total revenues tioe year ended December 31, 2010
and $25.1 million, or 13.2% of our total revenuessthe year ended
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December 31, 2009, under a services agreementel€ravmay terminate the services agreement, owanly assignment or work order
thereunder, each of which expires in December 2@itBput cause upon 60 days prior notice.

We provide services to subsidiaries of Americanresp Company (American Express) under (i) a mast®ices agreement for our
outsourcing services, which agreement cannot beiteted by American Express without cause and wpiokides us with a minimum volur
commitment over a period of eight years and (inaster agreement for our transformation servicésgwagreement may be terminated by
American Express without cause upon five days priditen notice. Our aggregate revenues from outsng services and transformation
services to American Express represented $29.8milbr 11.6% of our total revenues for the yeateshDecember 31, 2010 and $4.5 million
or 2.3% of our total revenues for the year endedeber 31, 2009.

We derived revenues from twenty-one and nineteanatients for our services in the years ended Déxgr81, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Although we are increasing and dif@rsy our client base, we expect in the near fattivat a significant portion of our revenues
will continue to be contributed by a limited numloédarge clients.

Revenues also include amounts representing reirablerexpenses that are billed to and reimburseslibglients and typically include
telecommunication and travel-related costs. Thewarhof reimbursable expenses that we incur, and@sylting revenues, can vary
significantly from period to period depending ormtlealient’s situation and on the type of servicesvfgled. For the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, 4.7% and 5.0%, respectively, otatat revenues represent reimbursement of suchnegge

To the extent our client contracts do not contaovisions to the contrary, we bear the risk ofatifin and fluctuations in currency
exchange rates with respect to our contracts. Vidgéha substantial portion of our Indian rupee/dd@lar, Philippine peso/U.S. dollar and U
pound sterling/U.S. dollar foreign currency expesur

Our management has observed in recent periodstarsimdustry pricing models toward transactiorsed pricing and other pricing
models. We believe this trend will continue andha&e begun to use transaction-based and othengricodels with some of our current
clients and are seeking to move certain other ifom a billing rate model to a transaction-basedther pricing model. Such models place
the focus on operating efficiency in order to maimtour operating margins. In addition, we have alsserved that prospective larger clients
are entering into multi-vendor relationships widgard to their outsourcing needs. We believe tiatrend toward multi-vendor relationships
will continue. A multi-vendor relationship allowscéient to seek more favorable pricing and otherti@xt terms from each vendor, which can
result in significantly reduced operating margirei the provision of services to such client focresendor.

Expenses
Cost of Revenues
Our cost of revenues primarily consists of:

. employee costs, which include salary, retention@hedr compensation expenses; recruitment andrngagosts; non-cash
amortization of stock compensation expense; anetlirey and lodging costs; at

. costs relating to our facilities and communicatioesvork, which include telecommunication and I'Btso facilities and custom:
management support; operational expenses for daoorcing centers; and rent expen:

The most significant components of our cost of nexss are employee compensation, recruitment, tiguaund retention. Salary levels in
India, employee turnover rates and our abilityffwiently manage and utilize our
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employees significantly affect our cost of reveni&alary increases are generally awarded eacheffeative April 1. Accordingly, employee
costs are generally lower in the first quarter afleyear compared to the rest of the year. We reedry effort to manage employee and
capacity utilization and continuously monitor seevievels and staffing requirements. Although weegally have been able to reallocate our
employees as client demand has fluctuated, a ain&anination or significant reduction in work @gged to us by a major client could cause
us to experience a higher-than-expected numbenagsigned employees, which would increase ourafastvenues as a percentage of
revenues until we are able to reduce or reallogatédheadcount. A significant increase in the tusraate among our employees in India,
particularly among the highly skilled workforce de€e to execute outsourcing services, would increaseecruiting and training costs and
decrease our operating efficiency, productivity anafit margins. In addition, cost of revenues afsdudes a non-cash amortization of stock
compensation expense relating to our issuanceusfyegwards to employees directly involved in pdikg services to our clients.

We expect our cost of revenues to continue to aggeas we continue to add professionals in Indld@raour other operating centers
globally to service additional business and as wagatinue to increase in India. In particular,ex@ect training costs to continue to increase
as we continue to add staff to service new cliefitere is significant competition for professionaigh skills necessary to perform the services
we offer to our clients. As our existing competit@ontinue to grow, and as new competitors ententarket, we expect competition for skil
professionals in each of these areas to continuetease, with corresponding increases in our @ostvenues to reflect increased
compensation levels for such professionals. Howevsignificant portion of our client contractsliumbe adjustments towards inflation to our
billing rates year over year which partially offseich increase in cost of revenues. We also exjpeatost of revenues to increase due to
employee turnover resulting in higher recruitmemd &aining costs. See Iltem 1A—"Risk Factors—Employvage increases may prevent us
from sustaining our competitive advantage and neayce our profit margin.”

Cost of revenues is also affected by our longrsgltiycle and implementation period for our outsmgaervices, which require
significant commitments of capital, resources amethy both our clients and us. Before committiogise our services, potential clients rec
us to expend substantial time and resources edgddem as to the value of our services and asgpts feasibility of integrating our systems
and processes with theirs. In addition, once atbagages us in a new contract, our cost of ree@may represent a higher percentage of
revenues until the implementation phase for thatreat, generally three to four months, is complete

SG&A Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses are coatpatexpenses relating to salaries of senior memagt and other support personnel,
legal and other professional fees, telecommunioafiatilities and other miscellaneous administeatests. Selling and marketing expenses
primarily consist of salaries of sales and marlgetind client management personnel, travel and Waitding. We expect that sales and
marketing expenses will continue to increase agwest in our front-end sales and client managerherdtions to better serve our clients. We
also expect our costs to increase as we continggdngthen our back-end support and enabling ifumeaind invest in leadership
development, performance management and trainimgrams. However, our SG&A as a percentage of reeghas declined from 24.0% in
2009 to 23.4% in 2010. SG&A expenses also inclydefessional fees, which represent the costs of fharty legal, tax, accounting and other
advisors, bad debt allowance and non-cash amadtizaf stock compensation expense related to suiaisce of equity awards to senior
management, members of our board of directors dnida@ry board, other support personnel and consisita
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Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization pertains to deprémednd amortization of our tangible assets, inclgahetwork equipment, cabling,
computers, office furniture and equipment, motdrigies and leasehold improvements and intangitdetasAs we add facilities, including our
three new operations center in Cluj Romania, Ndiddia and Jaipur, India which became operatiom@0d10, we expect that depreciation
expense will increase, reflecting additional inmesiits in equipment such as desktop computers,rseame other infrastructure. Amortization
of intangible assets acquired is included in daptiEn and amortization. Amortization of intangilalesets has increased substantially in 2010
due to our recent acquisitions of GTSC and PDMA aeExpect this to increase further as we pursagesfic relationships and acquisitions.

Foreign Exchange
Exchange Rate

We report our financial results in U.S. dollarsvéwer, a significant portion of our total revenissarned in U.K. pounds sterling
(24.3% and 33.9%, respectively, of our total revenfor the year ended December 31, 2010 and 200 & significant portion of our
expenses are incurred and paid in Indian rupeed¥and 57.1%, respectively, of our total costdlieryear ended December 31, 2010 and
2009) and the Philippine peso (5.9% and 6.0%, tisdy, of our total costs for the year ended Deber 31, 2010 and 2009). The exchange
rates among the Indian rupee, the Philippine piagol).K. pound sterling and the U.S. dollar havangfed substantially in recent years and
may fluctuate in the future. The results of ourratiens could be substantially impacted as theaimdupee and U.K. pound sterling appreciate
or depreciate against the U.S. dollar. See noteslZ to our consolidated financial statementsltamd 7A—"Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk—Foreign Currency Risk

Currency Regulation

According to the prevailing foreign exchange regjates in India, an exporter of outsourcing and sfarmation services that is registered
with a software technology park in India, such asladian subsidiaries in India, is required tolizsits export proceeds within a period of 12
months from the date of exports. Similarly, in gheent that such exporter has received any advayaiast exports in foreign exchange from its
overseas customers, it will have to render theis@iguservices so that the advances so receivedaained within a period of 12 months. If th
subsidiaries in India did not meet these conditidimsy would be required to obtain permission fithe Reserve Bank of India.

Income Taxes

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actseod March 31. Certain of our operations centetadi| qualify for an exemption
from corporate tax under section 10A or 10B ofltidian Income Tax Act. This exemption is availafdea period of ten consecutive years
beginning with the financial year in which the ogt@wns center begins to manufacture or producégigioods and services and expires on
April 1, 2011. The tax holiday period for some of @perations centers has already expired and te xpire for some of our other operations
centers on April 1, 2011. Therefore, any profitagmted from the services provided from such opmraicenters will be fully taxable after that
date. As a result of the expiration of the tax dtayi period during 2011, our tax expense will siigaifitly increase in and after 2011.

During 2010, we have established operations ceirtéd®ida and Jaipur, India in special economicemothat are eligible for tax
incentives for services provided from such locatiantil 2025 under the Special Economic Zones 2@05.
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Ex| Philippines, our subsidiary that conducts opemtions in the Philippines, enjoys a four yeapme tax holiday extendable up to six
years beginning April 2008, the date of commencdroéoperations. The income tax holiday is subjectalidation by the Philippine
Economic Zone Authority based on certain minimurestments. If Exl Philippines does not attain thguired investments it will not qualify
for the income tax holiday and will be subject t6% gross income tax.

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilitieseimporary differences between the financial statg carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebasnd operating loss carry forwards. We deterihim&aluation allowance is required or not on
the basis of an assessment of whether it is mikeé/lthan not that a deferred tax asset will béized.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations are based upon tlaadial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, which have been prepéreaccordance with U.S. GAAP. The notes to ounrsatidated financial statements
contain a summary of our significant accountingges. We consider the policies discussed belobetaritical to an understanding of our
consolidated financial statements, as their apjiticglaces the most significant demands on managémjudgment regarding matters that are
inherently uncertain. These policies include reweracognition, estimating tax liabilities, stocksbd compensation, goodwill, intangibles and
long-lived assets, derivative instruments and menplan liabilities. These accounting policies #mg associated risks are set out below. Future
events may not develop exactly as forecast anthats routinely require adjustment.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsouramgteansformation services. Revenues from outsogregrvices are recognized
primarily on a time-and-material, cost-plus or ywiiced basis; revenues from transformation sesvare recognized primarily on a time-and-
material, fixed price or contingent fee basis. $hevices provided within our contracts generallgtad one unit of accounting. Revenues are
recognized under our contracts generally when psige evidence of an arrangement exists, the palesis fixed or determinable, services
have been performed and collection of amountsileeasonably assured.

Revenues under time-and-material contracts argyrézed as the services are performed. Revenugs@rgnized on cost-plus contracts
on the basis of contractually agreed direct an@tésticosts incurred on a client contract plus gmeed upon profit markup. Revenues are
recognized on unit-price based contracts baseti@number of specified units of work (such as theber of email responses) delivered to a
client. Such revenues are recognized as the redatites are provided in accordance with the thentract. When the terms of the client
contract specify service level parameters that heshet (such as turnaround time or accuracy), omitor such service level parameters to
determine if any service credits or penalties Haaen incurred. Revenues are recognized net ofamics credits that are due to a client. We
have experienced minimal service credits and pesdly date.

Revenues from software licensing arrangementsemagnized at the later of time of delivery or eapon of significant termination
rights. Revenues from fixed-term maintenance ampgat contracts are recognized ratably on a morithlis over the period of the contract.
Revenues from contracts for software modificatimgenerally fixed price contracts and are recaghimder the proportional performance
method as described below.
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Revenues are recognized on fixed-price contradtguke proportional performance method. We estntla¢ proportional performance
of a contract by comparing the actual number ofrbiou days worked to the estimated total numbérwofs or days required to complete each
engagement. The use of the proportional performaretbod requires significant judgment relative gtireating the number of hours or days
required to complete the contracted scope of windkuding assumptions and estimates relative tdethgth of time to complete the project ¢
the nature and complexity of the work to be perfedmWe regularly monitor our estimates for complef a project and record changes in
period in which a change in an estimate is detegthiif a change in an estimate results in a pregeldss on a project, such loss is recognized
in the period in which it is first identified.

We make accruals for revenues and receivableeforces rendered between the last billing datethadalance sheet date. Accordingly,
our accounts receivable include amounts for ses\icat we have performed and for which an invo&e ot yet been issued to the client.
These are included in accounts receivable on awsalmated balance sheet and the amounts are skstio the notes to our consolidated
financial statements.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-lived Assets

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) topic 83usiness Combinations{ASC No. 805), requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combinatiohs.guidance specifies criteria as to intangiblesscquired in a business combination that
must be recognized and reported separately frordwitloln accordance with ASC topic 350ntangibles—Goodwill and Other{ASC
No. 350), all assets and liabilities of the acoiibeisinesses including goodwill are assigned tonteyy units. We evaluate goodwill f
impairment at least annually, or as circumstancasamt. When determining the fair value of our mépg units, we utilize various
assumptions, including projections of future cdelw$. Any adverse changes in key assumptions aioutusinesses and their prospects or an
adverse change in market conditions may causerayehia the estimation of fair value and could resuln impairment charge.

We review long-lived assets and certain identifiaibtangibles for impairment whenever events ongea in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recbiertn general, we will recognize an impairmersslevhen the sum of undiscounted
expected future cash flows is less than the cagrgmount of such asset. The estimate of undiscduateh flows and the fair value of assets
require several assumptions and estimates likevétighted average cost of capital, discount raieksfree rates, market rate of return and risk
premiums and can be affected by a variety of factocluding external factors such as industry @amehomic trends, and internal factors such
as changes in our business strategy and our ihtemegasts. Although we believe the historicaluasptions and estimates we have made are
reasonable and appropriate, different assumptindsatimates could materially impact our reportedrfcial results.

Stock-based Compensation

Under the fair value recognition provisions of AgPic 718,“Compensation—Stock Compensatig@SC No. 718), cost is measured at
the grant date, based on the fair value of the @aad is amortized on a straight-line basis over#guisite service periods of the awards,
which is generally the vesting periods. Determirtimg fair value of stock-based awards at the gitate requires significant judgment,
including estimating the expected term over whiwh tock awards will be outstanding before theyearsrcised, the expected volatility of our
stock and the number of stock-based awards thabgrected to be forfeited. In order to determireedhtimated period of time that we expect
employees to hold their shabased options, we have used data on the histexeatise pattern of employees. We use the histaradatility of
our common stock and the volatility of stocks of oamparative companies in order to estimate fushisre price trends. We use historical «
to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and rd@tock-based compensation expense only for thaseds that are expected to vest. The risk-
free interest rate that we use in the option vaaanodel is based on U.S. treasury zero-coupoddaiith a remaining term similar to the
expected term of the options. We do not anticipatgng any cash dividends in the foreseeable fiantetherefore use an expected dividend
yield of

44



Table of Contents

zero in the option valuation model. If the actuaféiture rate differs significantly from our estites, our stock-based compensation expense
and our results of operations could be materiafipacted.

Derivative Instruments and hedging activitit

In the normal course of business, we actively ltofnitigate the exposure of foreign currency markgi by entering into various
hedging instruments, authorized under our policiét counterparties that are highly rated finahiriatitutions. Our primary exchange rate
exposure is with the U.K. pound sterling and thdidn rupee. We also have exposure in Philippinegdszech koruna and other local
currencies where we operate. We use derivativeuimgnts for the purpose of mitigating the undedy@&xposure from foreign currency
fluctuation risks associated with forecasted tratisas denominated in certain foreign currenciedtanminimize earnings and cash flow
volatility associated with the changes in foreigimrency exchange rates and not for speculativénigaalrposes.

We hedge anticipated transactions that are sutgjdoteign exchange exposure with foreign curremoghange contracts that are
designated effective and that qualify as cash fiedges under ASC topic 815D¥rivatives and Hedginj(ASC No. 815). Changes in the fair
value of these cash flow hedges which are deenfedtiek, are deferred and recorded as a comporietcaomulated other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of tax (AOCI) until the hedgeshsactions occur and are then recognized in theotidated statements of income. Changes
in the fair value of cash flow hedges deemed imdiffe are recognized in the consolidated stateroiimcome and are included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss).

We also use derivatives consisting of foreign auryeexchange contracts not designated as hedgstrgiments under ASC No. 815 to
hedge intercompany balances and other monetartsagséabilities denominated in currencies othwart the functional currency. Changes in
the fair value of these derivatives are recognindtie consolidated statements of income and ataded in foreign exchange gain/(loss).

We value our derivatives based on market observaplés including both forward and spot pricesdarrencies. Derivative assets and
liabilities included in Level 2 primarily represeforeign currency forward contracts. The quotestaken primarily from highly rated financial
institutions.

We evaluate hedge effectiveness at the time aaxrifr entered into as well as on an ongoing bHdsiring this time, a contract is
deemed ineffective, the change in the fair valuederded in the consolidated statements of incanakis included in foreign exchange gain/
(loss). For hedge relationships that are discortifaecause the forecasted transaction is not eegpéxbccur by the end of the originally
specified period, any related derivative amountsmged in equity are reclassified to earnings.

Income Taxes

We utilize the asset and liability method of acdmgnfor income taxes. Under this method, incomeetgpense is recognized for the
amount of taxes payable or refundable for the atiyear. In addition, deferred tax assets andliiagds are recognized in respect of future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existiagets and liabilities and their tax bases
and operating losses carried forward, if any. Defiétax assets and liabilities are measured ubm@uticipated tax rates for the years in which
such temporary differences are expected to be ezedwor settled. We recognize the effect of a chamgax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the period in which the new taate was enacted or the change in tax status lealsdii approved. Deferred tax assets are
recognized in full, subject to a valuation allowartbat reduces the amount recognized to that wkiotore likely than not to be realized. In
assessing the likelihood of realization, we cons@gimates of future taxable income. With respeemny entity that benefits from a corporate
tax holiday, deferred tax assets or liabilitiesdaisting temporary differences are recorded omlthe extent such temporary differences are
expected to reverse following the expiration of tidve holiday.
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We also evaluate potential exposures related tedakingencies or claims made by the tax autharitievarious jurisdictions in order to
determine whether a reserve may be required. Avesg recorded if we believe that a loss is mikely than not to occur and if the amount of
such loss can be reasonably estimated. Such resgrwdased on estimates and, consequently, geetstthchanging facts and circumstances,
including the progress of ongoing audits, changesise law and the passage of new legislation. &lievie that we have established adequate
reserves to cover any potential additional tax sssents.

We generally anticipate that we will indefinitelginvest the undistributed earnings of our foreigbsidiaries or have the ability to
repatriate in a tax-free manner. Accordingly, wendbaccrue any material income, distribution cthiwblding taxes that would otherwise arise
if such earnings were repatriated in a taxable reann

We employ a two-step process for recognizing andsmeng uncertain tax positions. The first stefpisvaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining, based on the techmiualits, that the position will, more likely thantpbe sustained upon examination. The
second step is to measure the tax benefit as tpesteamount of the tax benefit that has a grehser 50% likelihood of being realized upon
settlement. Our provision for income tax expense &kes into account any interest or penaltiegedlto unrecognized tax benefits.

Retirement Benefit:

We provide our employees in India and the Philippiwith benefits under a defined benefit plan, Whie refer to as the Gratuity Plan.
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment siegcemployees on retirement or on terminatiomgleyment in an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and years of employmigh us. We determine our liability under the Giity Plan by actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Under this methvael determine our liability based upon the dis¢edrvalue of salary increases until the date
of separation arising from retirement, death, mesiign or other termination of services. Criticasamptions used in measuring the plan
expense and projected liability under the projecteit credit method include the discount rate, exge return on assets and the expected
increase in the compensation rates. We evaluase ttritical assumptions at least annually. If datessults differ significantly from our
estimates, our gratuity expense and our resultperfations could be materially impacted.
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Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our results of opiers:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(in million)

Revenue® $252.¢ $191.( $181.7
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréiration) @ 151.c 109.¢ 112.¢
Gross profil 101.t 81.€ 69.2
Operating expense

General and administrative expen®) 40.2 31.¢ 31.1

Selling and marketing expens® 18.¢ 13.¢ 11.2

Depreciation and amortization expen® 15.¢ 11.4 11.2
Total operating expens 75.C 57.2 53.6
Income from continuing operatiol 26.5 24.4 15.7
Other income/(expense

Foreign exchange gain/(los 4.2 (5.9 (9.9

Interest and other incon 14 1.C 3.E
Income from continuing operations before incomess 32.1 19.5 9.8
Income tax provision/(benefi 5.E 3.7 (1.9
Income from continuing operatiol 26.€ 15.¢ 11.1
Income/(Loss) from discontinued operations, nebgés — (0.7) 3.2
Net income $ 26.€ $ 15.7 $ 144

(1) Revenues include reimbursable expenses of $ailliBn in 2010, $9.6 million in 2009 and $11.8lkoin in 2008. Revenues also include
contract termination fees of $5.1 million in 20081e$0.4 million in 2008

(2) Cost of revenues includes $1.6 million, $1.4 milend $1.1 for the years ended December 31, 2@D® &nd 2008, respectively, as -
cash amortization of stock compensation expensgimglto the issuance of equity awards to emplogéestly involved in providing
services to our clients as described in note X&itcconsolidated financial statemer

(3) General and administrative expenses and sdlmgmarketing expenses include $6.9 million, $Billon and $4.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respsgtasehon-cash amortization of stock compensatipemse relating to the issuance
of equity awards to our n-operations staff as described in note 13 to ousalictated financial statemen

(4) Depreciation and amortization includes $2.0 milli$f.2 million and $0.5 million for the years end@ecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2(
respectively, of amortization of intangibles asalié®ed in note 5 to our consolidated financial estagnts

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2009

RevenuesRevenues increased 32.3% from $191.0 million ferytkar ended December 31, 2009 to $252.8 millioth® year ended
December 31, 2010. Revenues from outsourcing snicreased from $152.6 million during the yeateghDecember 31, 2009 to $192.1
million during the year ended December 31, 201@ iflerease in revenues from outsourcing servic&g4fé million (excluding the receipt of
a one-time contract termination fee of $5.1 millinrR009) is primarily driven by revenues of $2fnillion from new clients, including the
acquisitions of GTSC and PDMA, net volume incredsa® existing clients aggregating to $12.5 milliand revenues of $3.0 million due to
the appreciation of the Indian rupee against tt& dollar during the year ended December 31, 20thtpared to the year ended December 31,
2009.
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Revenues from transformation services increased $88.4 million during the year ended December2BD9 to $60.7 million during the
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase is piyrdae to a combination of increased revenuagaurring or annuity decision analyti
services and an increase in project-based engageimeth in our decision analytics and risk andritial management practices. Revenues
from new clients for transformation services wefeldmillion and $1.8 million during the years end2ecember 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues increased 38.3% from $109.4amifor the year ended December 31, 2009 to $1&lli®n for the
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase irotostenues is primarily due to a $13.4 millionrigase in employe«related costs as a res
of an increase in the number of our personnel thréovolved in providing services to our clienhe increase in costs of revenues can also be
attributed to $13.7 million of employee-relatedtsdacurred in connection with acquisitions, a $iion increase in reimbursable expenses
(resulting in an increase in revenues), a $7.lionilincrease in facilities and other operating exges (primarily due to acquisitions and the
creation of new operating centers to meet busigessth), and a $5.4 million aggregate increasetdube appreciation of the Indian rupee .
the Philippine peso against the U.S. dollar dutivegyear ended December 31, 2010 compared to Hreepeled December 31, 2009. Cost of
revenues as a percentage of revenues increased@% for the year ended December 31, 2009 td%6%08 the year ended December 31,
2010.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 24.3% from $81.6 million floe year ended December 31, 2009 to $101.5 miltiothe year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase in gross profitwiasarily due to an increase in revenues of $&dilBon, offset by the increase in cost of
revenues of $41.9 million. Gross profit as a petaga of revenues decreased from 42.7% for thegreded December 31, 2009 to 40.1% for
the year ended December 31, 2010, primarily dubdaeceipt of a contract termination fee of $5illiom in 2009 and the impact of
appreciation of the Indian rupee against the UoBad

SG&A ExpensesSG&A expenses increased 29.1% from $45.8 milliarttie year ended Decemigk, 2009 to $59.1 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2010. The increase in SG&A esgeis primarily due to an increase in employeatedl costs of $8.0 million, including
our continued investment in front-end sales arehtlmanagement personnel, an increase in facititlesed costs of $2.2 million, primarily
related to our new operations centers in JaipuNoida, India, an increase in other SG&A costs hB$nillion including our acquisition
related expenses and an increase of $1.0 milliertalthe appreciation of the Indian rupee agafrestt.S. dollar during the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended Dexe3ihp2009. As a percentage of revenues, SG&Aedsed from 24.0% for the year
ended December 31, 2009 to 23.4% for the year eDdedmber 31, 2010.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 38.8% f#drh.4 million for the year ended December 31, -
to $15.9 million for the year ended December 31L2@ he increase is primarily due to the increasamortization of acquisition-related
intangibles of $1.8 million, depreciation relatedour new operations centers including our acdaisitof $2.0 million and an increase of $0.7
million due to the appreciation of the Indian rupeginst the U.S. dollar. As we add more operatiemiers, we expect that depreciation
expense will increase to reflect the additionakstment in equipment and operations centers negdssaeet our service requirements.

Income from Operationslncome from operations increased 8.7% from $24Manifor the year ended December 31, 2009 to $26.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Agentage of revenues, income from operationsdsed from 12.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2009 to 10.5% for the year ended Dieeei, 2010. The decrease in income from opemtisra percentage of revenues was
primarily due to the receipt of a contract termioatffee of $5.1 million during the year ended Debem31, 2009.

Other Income/(Expense)Other income/(expense) is comprised of foreign arge gains and losses, interest income, interesinse an
other items. Other income/(expense) increased {f&h®) million for the
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year ended December 31, 2009 to $5.6 million fenjbar ended December 31, 2010, primarily as dtrefsnet foreign exchange gain of $¢
million during the year ended December 31, 2010pmaned to net foreign exchange losses of ($5.9)anitiuring the year ended December
2009 attributable to movement of the U.S. dollaaiagt the Indian rupee. The average exchange faébe dndian rupee against the U.S. dollar
was 45.65 during the year ended December 31, 2@dpared to 48.39 during the year ended Decembet(R1B.

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes increased from $3.7ianilfor the year ended December 31, 2009 to $5liomr
for the year ended December 31, 2010. The effetdiveate decreased from 19.0% for the year endemtmber 31, 2009 to 17.1% for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in effaativiate in 2010 was primarily due to the realmaibf a contract termination fee of $5.1
million in 2009 and was partially offset by the h& income in the U.S and our recent acquisitiohgkvare fully taxable. Please see note 1
our consolidated financial statements for furthetiads.

Net Income.Net income increased from $15.7 million for the yeaded December 31, 2009 to $26.6 million forytear ended
December 31, 2010, primarily due to an increasgperating income of $2.1 million and other incom&b0.5 million, partially offset by an
increase in provision for income taxes of $1.8 il As a percentage of revenues, net income isetkrom 8.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2009 to 10.5% for the year ended DieeeB1, 2010.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008

RevenuesRevenues increased 5.1% from $181.7 million foryts@r ended December 31, 2008 to $191.0 millioritferyear ended
December 31, 2009. Revenues from outsourcing swreased from $138.8 million during the yeateghDecember 31, 2008 to $152.6
million during the year ended December 31, 200%® iflerease is primarily due to volume increasehiwiéxisting clients and the addition of
approximately 120 processes during 2009 aggregtiifd.2.5 million, receipt of a contract terminatiiee of $5.1 million, revenues of $4.2
million from new clients, including the acquisitiof Schneider S.R.O., which increases were partadfset by a $7.9 million reduction due to
the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the .Ubund sterling.

Revenues from transformation services decreased $42.9 million during the year ended December2BD9 to $38.4 million during tt
year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease inueveprimarily due to reduced client spending mecrétionary projects in 2009 and $
million of the reduction is due to the appreciatafrthe U.S. dollar against the U.K. pound sterliRgvenues from new clients for
transformation services were $1.8 million and $8iBion during the year ended December 31, 200920G8B, respectively.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues decreased 2.7% from $112.4 miltiothe year ended December 31, 2008 to $109 kbmflor the
year ended December 31, 2009. Employee costs decré@m $78.4 million for the year ended Decen#igr2008 to $76.1 million for th
year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease isrjyimhae to the depreciation of the Indian rupeaiagt the U.S. dollar, resulting ir
decrease in of $6.2 million and a decrease in eyegldransportation costs of $2.1 million as pawf cost management initiatives. This
decrease is partially offset by an annual incréasalaries and other related costs of $3.8 miliod costs of $2.2 million related to our new
operations center in Olomouc, the Czech Republiteoperating costs decreased from $34.1 milloorttfe year ended December 31, 2008 to
$33.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2@@@narily due to the depreciation of the Indiapea against the U.S. dollar. As a
percentage of revenues, cost of revenues decréased1.9% for the period ended December 31, 20087t3% for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Gross Profit .Gross profit increased 17.8% from $69.3 million floe year ended December 31, 2008 to $81.6 milbothe year ended
December 31, 2009. The increase in gross profitpuasarily due to an increase in revenues of $9IBam and decrease in cost of revenues of
$3.0 million. Gross profit as a percentage of rexenincreased from 38.1% for the year ended Dece®ihe@008 to 42.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2009, primarily due to an improvenoérit60 basis points as a result of the receiptadraract
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termination fee, approximately 200 basis pointa assult of higher productivity in our outsourcisgrvices and a balance increase due to a
decrease in cost of revenues, as mentioned above.

SG&A ExpensesSG&A expenses increased 7.9% from $42.4 milliontleryear ended December 31, 2008 to $45.8 milbothe year
ended December 31, 2009. The increase in SG&A esgeis primarily due to an increase in selling anradketing expenses of $2.6 million ¢
acquisitionrelated transaction costs of $0.5 million. As acpatage of revenues, SG&A increased from 23.4%heyear ended December
2008 to 24.0% for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 2.2% frdrh.% million for the year ended December 31, 2008
to $11.4 million for the year ended December 3D @rimarily due to an increase in depreciatidates to our operations centers in India
Philippines of $1.0 million and $0.2 million reldtéo our new operations center in Olomouc, the 8&epublic. This increase is offset by the
depreciation of the Indian rupee against the UoBad resulting in a decrease in cost of $1.0iomill As we add more operations centers, we
expect that depreciation expense will increasefiect the additional investment in equipment apdrations centers necessary to meet our
service requirements.

Income from Operationsincome from operations increased 55.8% from $15llfomfor the year ended December 31, 2008 to $24.
million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Ag@entage of revenues, income from operationgésed from 8.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to 12.8% for the year ended Dieeei, 2009. The increase in income from operatiwas primarily due to an increase
revenues.

Other Income/(expensePther income/(expense) is comprised of foreign arge gains and losses, interest income, intergsnse an
other. Other expenses decreased from $(5.9) miliothe year ended December 31, 2008 to $(4.9)amifor the year ended December 31,
2009 as a result of a decrease in net foreign exghbosses by $3.4 million attributable to movenwrihe Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar
and the U.K. pound sterling relative to our fore@xthange hedged position. This decrease is panigiset by lower interest income of $2.4
million during the year ended December 31, 200@, tduower interest rates.

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes increased from a beéfftl.3 million for the year ended December 308
an expense of $3.7 million for the year ended Ddxar1, 2009. The effective rate of taxes has asd significantly from a benefit of 13.7%
for the year ended December 31, 2008 to an exprk®0% for the year ended December 31, 2009,giiyndue to higher income in the U
and realization of a contract termination fee afi§fillion. Please see note 12 to our consolidétexhcial statements for further details.

Income/(loss) from Continuing Operationsncome from continuing operations increased frorh. $Imillion for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to $15.8 million for the yearezhBecember 31, 2009, primarily due to increadegher operating income, partially off:
by a higher provision for taxes. As a percentagewénues, income from continuing operations insgddrom 6.1% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to 8.3% for the year ended Deee3th 2009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2010, we had $114.3 million in caisti cash equivalents and short-term investments.

Cash flows provided by operating activities incexhfrom $35.7 million in the year ended December28D9 to $36.5 million in the ye
ended December 31, 2010. Generally, factors tfi@ttabur earnings—including pricing, volume of Sees, costs and productivity—affect our
cash flows provided by or used for operations &nailar manner. However, while management of wagldéapital, including timing of
collections and payments, affects operating resullg indirectly, the impact on the working capigald cash flows provided by operating
activities can be significant. The increase in dé&shis provided by operations for the year endedddeber 31, 2010 was predominantly due to
an increase in net income adjusted for non-casfsitey
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$23.3 million, offset by a decrease in working ¢alpdf $22.5 million. The increase in net incomguated for non-cash items is primarily due
to an increase in net income of $10.9 million, éeption and amortization of $4.4 million and des® in deferred taxes of $6.0 million dur
the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared ye#neended December 31, 2009.

Changes in working capital are primarily due tdrarease in trade accounts receivable of $8.2anillis a result of higher revenues,
income taxes payable of $8.4 million due to paynuérdvance tax and an increase in other ass&s.8fmillion as of December 31, 2010
compared to December 31, 2009. Our days’ salesamalisig decreased from 58 days as of December0®B, t 57 days as of December 31,
2010.

Cash flows used for investing activities increasech $17.3 million in the year ended December 30Pto $61.0 million in the year
ended December 31, 2010. The increase is primduigyto the payment of the purchase considerati@ppfoximately $29.1 million for the
GTSC acquisition and $13.0 million for the acquisitof PDMA (net of cash acquired) during the yeaded December 31, 2010.

Cash flows provided by financing activities increédrom $0.5 million in the year ended December2BD9 to $2.9 million during the
year ended December 31, 2010, primarily represgitiia increase in proceeds from exercises of siptkns.

We expect to use cash from operating activitiamaintain and expand our business. As we have fdooisexpanding our cash flow
from operating activities, we continue to make tapnvestments, primarily related to new faciltiand capital expenditures associated with
leasehold improvements to build out our facilittesl purchase of telecommunications equipment angbater hardware and software in
connection with managing client operations. We iredi approximately $19.9 million of capital expemdeés in the year ended December 31,
2010. We expect to incur capital expenditures divben $20.0 million to $25.0 million in the calengaar 2011, primarily to meet the growth
requirements of our clients, including addition®to existing facilities in India as well as to imge our internal technology. The timing and
volume of such capital expenditures in the futuiklve affected by new client contracts we may eim# or the expansion of business under
our existing client contracts.

In connection with the tax assessment orders isagathst Ex| India and Exl Inc. we may be requiedeposit additional amounts with
respect to the assessment orders received by Usasidhilar orders for subsequent years that neyegeived by us. Refer to note 16 to our
consolidated financial statements for further detai

We anticipate that we will continue to rely uporstcdrom operating activities to finance our smadlequisitions, capital expenditures and
working capital needs. Based on economic conditaengf December 31, 2010, we believe that cashfilom operations will be sufficient to
meet our ongoing capital expenditure, working a@hd other cash needs in the near term. If we bgnificant growth through acquisitions,
we may need to obtain additional financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2010, we had no off-balancetsdmeangements or obligations.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2010:

Payment Due by Period

Less thar 1-3 4-5 After 5
1 year years years years Total
(in millions)
Capital lease $ 032 $0.4 $— $— $ 0.7
Operating lease 5.1 5.7 1.2 1.8 13.¢
Purchase obligatior 4.1 — — — 4.1
Other obligations(a 1.C 1.8 1.6 2.4 6.8
Total contractual cash obligations $ 10t $7.¢ $2.8 $ 4.2 $25.4

(@) Represents estimated payments under the Cor’s Gratuity Plan

(b) Excludes $4.1 million related to uncertain tax gioss, since the extent of the amount and timingayment is currently not reliab
estimable or determinabl

Certain units of our Indian subsidiaries have bestablished as 100% Export-Oriented units undeExp®rt Import Policy or Software
Technology Parks of India units (STPI) under théBguidelines issued by the Government of India e provided us with certain incenti
on imported and indigenous capital goods on faf@ht of certain conditions. In the event that thasiés are unable to meet those conditions
over the specified period, we may be required fone those incentives along with penalties andsfikdowever, we believe that these units
have in the past and will continue to satisfy theseditions.

Ex| Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT gpmige with the Philippines Economic Zone Autharithe registration has provided the
Company with certain incentives on the import giital goods. ExI Philippines has an export obligatf approximately $39.3 million during
the three year period ending March 2011.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsd&ASB) issued ASC 85%ubsequent Evenishich provides guidance on events
that occur after the balance sheet date but prithve issuance of the financial statements. ASCdi&tthguishes events requiring recognition in
the financial statements and those that may regiis@osure in the financial statements. In Fely 2810, the FASB released Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-09, an update 16 855,Subsequent Eventshich revised various terms and definitions witttie
guidance and provided new guidance upon the daihveimtities must evaluate subsequent events.ABi$ requires that we must evaluate
subsequent events through the date on which thadial statements are issued, rather than thettiafinancial statements are available to be
issued, and the disclosure of this date is no lorgguired in the notes to the financial statemeéms have evaluated subsequent events thr
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In September 2009, the FASB issued Update No. 2@)9-Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a consenéthe FASB
Emerging Issues Task For.” It updates the existing multiple-element revean@ngements guidance currently included under @ 605-
25, which originated primarily from the guidanceBITF Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple DeliverableEhe revised
guidance primarily provides two significant chang@s eliminates the need for objective and rebadVidence of the fair value for the
undelivered element in order for a delivered itenbé treated as a separate unit of accounting(reliminates the residual method to allocate
the arrangement consideration. In addition, thelgnuie also expands the disclosure requiremente¥enue recognition. ASU 2009-13 will be
effective for the first annual reporting period bedng on or after June 15, 2010, with early admppermitted provided that the revised
guidance is retroactively applied to the beginrofithe year of adoption. We have chosen to adephéw
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guidance from January 1, 2011. Currently we doexpeect there to be any impact from the adoptioASi) 2009-13 as the number of multiple-
deliverable revenue arrangements are insignificant.

In January 2010, the FASB issued Update No. 2010+@iproving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurenieiotamend the disclosure
requirements related to recurring and nonrecuffdirgvalue measurements. The guidance requiresdissiosures on the transfers of assets
liabilities between Level 1 (quoted prices in aetmarket for identical assets or liabilities) arel&l 2 (significant other observable inputs) of
the fair value measurement hierarchy, includingré@sons and the timing of the transfers. Additignghe guidance requires a roll forward of
activities on purchases, sales, issuance andrsetits of the assets and liabilities measured wsgrgficant unobservable inputs (Level 3 fair
value measurements). This guidance is effectivénterim and annual reporting periods beginningraltecember 15, 2009, except for the
disclosures regarding Level 3 fair value measuréswhich are effective for fiscal years beginnifigaDecember 15, 2010. The adoption of
this new guidance did not have a material impaatumnconsolidated financial statements. See noteoir consolidated financial statements
further details.

In December 2010, the FASB issued authoritativelgiuie which specifies that if a public entity preasecomparative financial
statements, the entity should disclose revenuesanmngs of the combined entity as though the lessitombinations that occurred during the
current year had occurred as of the beginning®ttmparable prior annual reporting period onlythermore, this guidance expands the
supplemental pro forma disclosure requirement. @htboritative guidance is effective prospectivielybusiness combinations with an
acquisition date on or after the beginning of & fannual reporting period beginning on or aBecember 15, 2010. We do not expect the
adoption of this guidance to have a material eféecour consolidated financial statements.

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddimg statements. You should not place undue rediam those statements because
they are subject to numerous uncertainties andracglating to our operations and business enmison, all of which are difficult to predict
and many of which are beyond our control. Forwanking statements include information concerningpassible or assumed future result
operations, including descriptions of our busirgsategy. These statements often include words asi€may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimateor similar expressions. These statements are lmasadsumptions that we have made in
of our experience in the industry as well as oucggtions of historical trends, current conditiomgpected future developments and other
factors we believe are appropriate under the cistantes. As you read and consider this Annual RepoForm 10-K, you should understand
that these statements are not guarantees of penfieeror results. They involve known and unknowkstisincertainties and assumptions.
Although we believe that these forward looking esta¢nts are based on reasonable assumptions, yold sigoaware that many factors could
affect our actual financial results or results pémtions and could cause actual results to diffaerially from those in the forward looking
statements. These factors include but are notdaftib:

. our dependence on a limited number of clientslimaed number of industrie:

. worldwide political, economic or business condii

. negative public reaction in the United States sewhere to offshore outsourcir

. fluctuations in our earning

. our ability to attract and retain clien

. restrictions on immigratior

. our ability to hire and retain enough sufficierttigined employees to support our operatit
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. our ability to grow our business or effectively rage growth and international operatio
. increasing competition in our industi
. telecommunications or technology disruptic

. fluctuations in exchange rates between the curesriniwhich we receive our revenues and the cueenie which we incur our
costs;

. regulatory, legislative and judicial developmeinsgjuding changes to or the withdrawal of governtakfiscal incentives
. technological innovatior

. political or economic instability in the geographie which we operate

. our ability to successfully consummate or integsdtategic acquisitions; ar

. adverse outcome of our disputes with the Indiaratathorities

These and other factors are more fully discusssgdlere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Thes®a@ther risks could cause actual
results to differ materially from those implied foyward looking statements in this Annual Reportramm 10-K.

You should keep in mind that any forward lookingtetment made by us in this Annual Report on Fora16r elsewhere, speaks only
as of the date on which we make it. New risks amzkttainties come up from time to time, and inipossible for us to predict these events or
how they may affect us. We have no obligation tdaip any forward looking statements in this AnriReport on Form 10-K after the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as requingdederal securities laws.

ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
General

Market risk is the loss of future earnings, faitues or future cash flows that may result from ande in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument rehginge as a result of changes in the interest, faieign currency exchange rates,
commodity prices, equity prices and other markeingfes that affect market risk sensitive instrumevitgket risk is attributable to all market
sensitive financial instruments including foreigmmency receivables and payables.

Our exposure to market risk is a function of oypenses and revenue generating activities in foreigrencies. The objective of market
risk management is to avoid excessive exposureéarnings and equity to loss. We manage marklethirough our treasury operations. Our
senior management and our board of directors apprav treasury operation’s objectives and policlés activities of our treasury operations
include management of cash resources, implemeh#&dging strategies for foreign currency exposuresowing strategies, if any, and
ensuring compliance with market risk limits andipiels.

Components of Market Risk

Foreign Currency RiskOur exposure to market risk arises principally frexchange rate risk. Although substantially albof revenues
are denominated in U.S. dollars (72.0% in the yealed December 31, 2010) or U.K. pounds sterlidg3® in the year ended December 31,
2010), substantial portion of our expenses wereariied and paid in Indian rupees and Philippine p¢58.4% and 5.9%, respectively, in the
year ended December 31, 2010). We also incur ergandJ.S. dollars, the Czech koruna and the caiesrof the other countries in which
have operations. The exchange rates primarily antftum¢ndian rupee, the Philippine peso, U.K. postatling, Czech koruna and the U.S.
dollar have changed substantially in recent yeadsmaay fluctuate substantially in the future.
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Our exchange rate risk primarily arises from ouefgn currency revenues, expenses incurred byaraigh subsidiaries and foreign
currency accounts receivable and payable. Based oypolevel of operations during the year endeddbdmer 31, 2010 and excluding any
hedging arrangements that we had in place duriagpériod, a 5.0% appreciation/depreciation inubi€. pound sterling against the U.S. do
would have increased/decreased revenues in theepdad December 31, 2010 by approximately $0.5anilSimilarly, a 5.0%
appreciation/depreciation in the Indian rupee agjaime U.S. dollar would have increased/decreaseéxpenses incurred and paid in Indian
rupees in the year ended December 31, 2010 by sppately $6.4 million.

We have sought to reduce the effect of Indian regrekePhilippine peso and certain other local cuwyerxchange rate fluctuations on our
operating results by purchasing forward foreignhexmge contracts to cover a substantial portioruofeapected cash flows. Further, a
significant number of our customer contracts inelpdotection against foreign exchange rate fluainatwhich minimizes the impact of
volatility in the exchange rates on our operatieguits. Forward exchange contracts with notionaluats of $129.1 million were outstanding
at December 31, 2010 and of $80.7 million weretantding at December 31, 2009. At December 31, 20i0cash flow hedging derivatives
had maturity periods of one to thirty-three monifisese contracts must be settled on the day ofrityatr may be cancelled subject to the
payment of any gains or losses in the differendeden the contract exchange rate and the markbtege rate on the date of cancellation.
use these instruments as cash flow hedges andmany speculative purposes. We may not purchasieamts adequate to insulate ourselves
from Indian rupee and Philippine pesos foreign exgje currency risks. In addition, any such congrawdy not perform adequately as a
hedging mechanism. We may, in the future, adopenactive hedging policies, and have done so ip#se.

We hedge our net recognized foreign currency assetdiabilities with foreign exchange forward a@uts to reduce the risk that our
earnings and cash flows will be adversely affettedhanges in foreign currency exchange rates.eTtiegvative instruments hedge assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign curriescand are carried at fair value with changesénfair value recorded as foreign exchange
gain/(loss). These derivative instruments do nbfestt us to material balance sheet risk due toaxgé rate movements because gains and
losses on the settlement of these derivativesnéeaded to offset revaluation losses and gainhiemssets and liabilities being hedged. For
exchange contracts with notional amounts of $36l8om, GBP 8.4 million and EUR 0.79 million weraitstanding at December 31, 2010 and
of $9.3 million and GBP 7.7 million were outstangliat December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2010, ubs&tanding balance sheet hedging
derivatives had maturities of 30 days or less.

Interest Rate RiskWe had cash, cash equivalents and short-term imess$ totaling $114.3 million at December 31, 20ese
amounts were invested principally in a short-temrrestment portfolio primarily comprised of highlgted mutual funds, money market
accounts and time deposits. The cash and cashadepiiy are held for potential acquisitions of coenptntary businesses or assets, working
capital requirements and general corporate purpd¥egio not enter into investments for tradingmeclative purposes. We believe that we
have no material exposure to changes in the fairevaf our investment portfolio as a result of ofgesin interest rates. The interest income
from these funds will be subject to fluctuation®da changes in interest rates. Declines in inteatss would reduce future investment incc
A 1.0% change in short term rates would impactiotarest income for the year ended December 310 B@lapproximately $0.9 million.

Credit Risk.As of December 31, 2010, we had accounts receival$d4.2 million. Accounts receivable from our tfemgest clients
accounted for 17% and 15% of our total outstandé&ugivable as of December 31, 2010. We believeainatredit policies reflect normal
industry terms and business risk. We do not argteimon-performance by the counterparties andrdicggy, do not require collateral. Credit
losses and write-offs of accounts receivable baamave historically not been material to our foiahstatements and have not exceeded our
expectations.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The financial statements required to be filed pansuo this Item 8 are appended to this Annual RepoForm 10-K. A list of the
financial statements filed herewith is found aefit 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.”

ITEM 9.  Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Aoanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaeess that are designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed in the
reports the Company files under the Securities Bngh Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act) is recorded¢g@ssed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s sudand forms, and that such information is accuradland communicated to the Company’s
management, including its Chief Executive Offic8EQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), to allowngly decisions regarding required
financial disclosure. In connection with the pregsimm of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Compa management carried out an
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigipdtion of the CEO and CFO, of the effectivenasd operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 31, 2010. Basedthpbavaluation, the CEO and CFO have concludeg dlsaof December 31, 2010, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Managemen’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

Responsibility for the objectivity, integrity andgsentation of the accompanying financial statesyand other financial information
presented in this report rests with the Companydsagement. The accompanying financial statements lbeen prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates. The financial statements include ansahat are based on estimates and
judgments which management believes are reasooabkr the circumstance

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered puddicounting firm, is retained to audit the Compargonsolidated financial
statements and the effectiveness of the Compantgsnial control over financial reporting. Its acqmanying reports are based on audits
conducted in accordance with the standards of thididCompany Accounting Oversight Board.

The Audit Committee of the board of directors isngmsed solely of independent directors and is mesipte for recommending to the
Board the independent public accounting firm todtained for the coming year. The Audit Committesets regularly and privately with the
independent public accountants, with the compaimy&snal auditors and with management to reviewoanting, auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.

Managemen’'s Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Management of the Company is responsible for estdby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated undex Exchange Act. Those rules define internal cordvelr financial reporting as a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatamgliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principageglly accepted in the United States. The Comipamtgrnal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras th

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoealsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trenactions of the Compar
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. provide reasonable assurance that transactionmree@oeded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iadstatements in accordar
with accounting principles generally accepted i thited States

. provide reasonable assurance that receipts andheitpees of the Company are being made only in @zrae with the
authorization of management and board of direaibteke Company; an

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esalisposition of the
Compan'’s assets that could have a material effect ondhsatidated financial statemen

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehdgsesCompany'’s internal control over financieporting as of December 31,
2010. In making this assessment, management usexitbria described inlhternal Control—Integrated Framewotkissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission. Management’s assessment includedanation of the design of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiaugd testing of the operational effectivenesssoiriternal control over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessmtnthve Audit Committee of the board of directdsased on this assessment and those
criteria, management concluded that the Companyptaiaed effective internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2010. See
Ernst & Young LLP’s accompanying report on theidiwf the Company’s internal controls over finaalaieporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportmn

During the three months ended December 31, 20&6€e there no changes in our internal control overfcial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchang® that have materially affected, or are reasonéibély to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.

On March 15, 2011, ExIService Holdings, Inc. exedudeverance protection arrangements for two ofaitsed executive officers, Pavan
Bagai and Rembert de Villa. Each severance proteetirangement provides that in the event the execis terminated by us without
“cause” (as defined in the severance agreemeriftfloe executive resigns for “good reason’ (defined in the severance agreement) follow
“change of control” (as defined in the ExIServiceltings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan), the exeutill receive an amount equal to
twelve months’ of the executive’s then-current bselary. Mr. Bagai’'s severance payments are payalieelve equal monthly installments,
and Mr. de Villa's severance payments are payabjmit as a lump sum equal to three months’ of bakey and nine equal monthly
installments beginning three months following Me. \dilla’s termination of employment. Each executivgeverance payments are subject to
his execution of a waiver and release of all clagmainst us. Mr. de Villa's arrangement required tte remain employed for at least six
months following a change in control before he mesgign for good reason. Additionally, Mr. de Viliaust actively seek comparable
employment during the last nine months of the ssaves period. Our severance obligation will be reduzy the amount of Mr. de Villa’'s new
base salary, if any.
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PART III.

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Code of Ethics.

We have adopted a code of conduct and ethics pipdiea to all of our directors, officers and empey, including our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal aoanting officer, and persons performing similardtions. Our code of conduct and ethics can be
found posted in the investor relations section mnveebsite at http://www.exlservice.com.

We incorporate by reference the information respent® this Item appearing in the definitive prastatement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which we refer to as owaxly Statement, which we intend to file with theGtithin 120 days after the fiscal year
end of December 31, 2010.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.
We incorporate by reference the information respen® this Iltem appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
We incorporate by reference the information respent® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.
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PART IV.

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ 1. Financial Statemen
The consolidated financial statements are listetbuttem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedul

Financial statement schedules as of December 30, 20d 2009, have been omitted since they arereititeequired, not material
or the information is otherwise included in our solidated financial statements or the notes tacousolidated financial statemer

3. Exhibits.

The Exhibits filed as part of this Annual Reportfeorm 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediatpreceding such Exhibits,
which Exhibit Index is incorporated in this AnnirRéport on Form 10-K by reference.

(b) Exhibite—see Item 15(a)(3) abov
(c) Financial Statement Schedi—see Item 15(a)(2) abov
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedRegistrant has duly caused
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed orbébalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized

Date: March 16, 201 EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /'s/ VisHAL C HHIBBAR
Vishal Chhibbar
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Signatory, Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual RepoRam 10-K has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Regnt and in the capacities and on the datesarel.

Signature Title Date
/s/ ROHITK APOOR Chief Executive Officer, March 16, 2011
Rohit Kapoor President and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ VISHAL C HHIBBAR Chief Financial Office March 16, 201!
Vishal Chhibbar (Principal Financial and Accounting Office
/sl VIKRAM T ALWAR Executive Chairman March 16, 2011

Vikram Talwar

/s/ STEVENB. GRUBER Director March 16, 201:
Steven B. Gruber
/s/ EDwARD V. D ARDANI Director March 16, 2011
Edward V. Dardani
/s/  KIRAN K ARNIK Director March 16, 2011
Kiran Karnik
/s/ DAaviD B. KELSO Director March 16, 201
David B. Kelso
/s/ CLYDEW. OSTLER Director March 16, 2011

Clyde W. Ostler

/s/ DR.M OHANBIR S AWHNEY Director March 16, 201:
Dr. Mohanbir Sawhney

/sl GARENK. STAGLIN Director March 16, 2011
Garen K. Staglin
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are being filed as part bistAnnual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1**

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinoofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€ntr Report on Form 8-K
filed on October 25, 2006

Second Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporatedfbrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current ReporfFonm 8-K filed on
April 30, 2008).

Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeegio Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment 6 to our Registnati&tatement on Form-1
(No. 33:-121001)).

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated bynefee to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on F8-K filed on October 25
2006).

Professional Services Agreement, dated March 76, 208&tween The Travelers Indemnity Company and é&xiSe Holdings, In
as amended by Amendment 3, effective January 19 @f@6orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to AahReport on Form 10-
K filed on March 16, 2010

Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 2009, betwedseexce.com (India) Private Limited and Vishal @tyar (incorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Annual Report omrrd (-K filed on March 16, 2010

Letter Agreement, effective June 1, 2009, betwedBé&tvice Holdings, Inc, and Vishal Chhibbar (inporated by reference
Exhibit 10.3 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2010

Employment Contract, as amended, effective Oct8p2006, by and between ExIService Inc. and Amé@sblank (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Amendment 6 to Baegistration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33--121001)).

Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competitgyreement entered into by and among ExIServicalidgk, Inc. and
Vikram Talwar (incorporated by reference to Exhiit10 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2009

Amendment, effective June 2, 2010, to the AmenaebiRestated Employment and Non-Competition Agreénuzned
December 16, 2008 between Vikram Talwar and Exliemdoldings, Inc. (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.1 to Quarter|
Report on Form 1-Q filed on August 9, 2010

Summary of terms of compensation for Vikram Taliacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QerdytReport on Forn
10-Q filed on November 9, 201C

Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competitgyreement entered into by and among ExIServicalidgk, Inc. and
Rohit Kapoor (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit11 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2009

Amendment to the Amended and Restated EmploymehNan-Competition Agreement entered into by and ragriexIService
Holdings, Inc. and Rohit Kapoor (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.7 to Annual Report on FormKLfiled on March 16,
2010).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 India Stock OptidarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1&\afendment 6 to oL
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plarc@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Ameedtr6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExlIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Plan (inavgted by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Amendmetd 6ur Registration
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Subplalincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Aofendment 6 to oL
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).
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10.14

10.1¢

10.1¢€

10.17

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.22Z

10.2¢

10.24

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢€

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Onmilmdia Subplan 1 (incorporated by reference toilkik10.22 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. Management Incentive Rlanorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Aweent 6 to ou
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under20@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referg¢ondexhibit 10.31 o
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Forin S
(No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Oniward Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibiB2 of Amendment
6 to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus India Subplan 1 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.3
of Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement omF8r1
(No. 33:-121001)).

Amended and Restated Nonqualified Stock Option Awsgreement between Amit Shashank and the Compategddune 1,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3%nfendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fg-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Sub@a(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3&ofendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Ommilndia Subplan 2 (incorporated by reference toilkik10.39 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under20@6 Omnibus India Subplan 2 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.4
of Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement omF8r1
(No. 33:-121001)).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement between VikranwBaland the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.41 of Amendment 6 to our Registratioat8ment on
Form £-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Rohit 8@pand the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.42 of Amendment 6 to our Registratioat8ment on
Form &1 (No. 33-121001)).

Amendment to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 OmniBugard Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibidB of Amendment
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1 underab@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referandexhibit 10.44 o
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Forin S
(No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2 under2a@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referandexhibit 10.45 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Forin S
(No. 33:-121001)).

Amendment No. 2 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 200@rbus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toiltiki0.46 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Letter Agreement, dated March 20, 2008, betweeB&ixlice.com, Inc. and Rembert de Vi
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10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35*

10.36

10.37**

10.38

211
23.1
311

31.2

31.3

32.1

32.2

32.3

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1d¢mporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the QurReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2dmporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the QurReport on Form-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 3dmporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the QurReport on Form-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 4dimporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the QuirReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 5¢iporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the QuirReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 4, 2010

Framework Agreement, dated July 25, 2005, betwesntrea plc, the Company and ExIService.com (InBidyate Limited
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to Aalnkeport on Form K filed on March 16, 2009

Notice of Extension between Centrica plc and then@any, dated July 11, 2008 (incorporated by refegen Exhibit 10.1 to tt
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed on November 10, 200¢

Amendment No. 6, dated April 1, 2009, to the FramdwAgreement between Centrica plc, the CompanyEad8ervice.con
(India) Private Limited (incorporated by refererioeexhibit 10.36 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2010’

Amendment No. 3 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 200@rGbus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toiltixH.6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (No. 33:-157076)).

Subsidiaries of the Registra
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of the Executive Chairman of ExISeeviHoldings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Brge Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb~-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Es&rvice Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) offkehange Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the President and Chief Execut®#icer of ExIService Holdings, pursuant to RuleaiB4(a) of the Exchange
Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of thea®ar-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Executive Chairman pursuanRitde 13-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Sectior013a5 adopte
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Sectior01a5
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the President and Chief Execut®éicer pursuant to Rule 1384 (b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Sec
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 cSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstamonfidential treatment granted by the Commiss

**  Certain portions of this exhibit have been omiitedonnection with an application for confidentisdatment therefo
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ExIService Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subseliaas of December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the related consolidated stateméirisame, stockholders’ equity and comprehensiveine (loss) and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31). AZhese consolidated financial statements areeponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdasa our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated financial
position of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsitiaras of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the bdatsal results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years ingigéod ended December 31, 2010, in conformity WwitS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), ExIService
Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal controkovinancial reporting as of December 31, 2010etam criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cagsion and our report dated
March 16, 2011 expressed an unqualified opiniorethre

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of ExISaruioldings, Inc.

We have audited ExIService Holdings, Inc. and sligges’ internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2010, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integraksdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringp@irzations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). ExIService Holdings. and subsidiaries’ management is respon§ilnlmaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assasnt of the effectiveness of internal control dugancial reporting included in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Inte@uaitrol over Financial Reporting. Our respondipiis to express an opinion on the
company'’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etést#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, ExIService Holdings, Inc. and sulisiies maintained, in all material respects, aifecinternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on theCCO#eria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of ExIService Holdingsand subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 868,2and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity and celmgnsive income (loss) and cash flows for eachethree years in the period ended
December 31, 2010 and our report dated March 181 28pressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2011
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 December 31
2010 2009
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 111,18: $ 132,21!
Shor-term investment 3,08¢ 4,00¢
Restricted cas 231 65
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $246 at December 31, 2010 and
at December 31, 20( 44,18¢ 34,85¢
Prepaid expenst 3,311 2,48¢
Deferred tax assets, r 1,721 1,12¢
Advance incom-tax, net 5,36¢ —
Other current asse 5,24¢ 3,04t
Total current asse 174,32¢ 177,79¢
Fixed assets, ni 34,73: 23,96¢
Restricted cas 3,43: 3,89t
Deferred tax assets, r 14,33: 12,22¢
Intangible assets, n 18,59! 627
Goodwill 43,37( 19,61¢
Other asset 16,89¢ 11,48:
Total asset $ 305,68 $ 249,62(
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 4,86( $ 5,34t
Deferred revenu 5,10¢ 4,74¢
Accrued employee co 23,94 16,02(
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 16,56( 11,53(
Income taxes payab — 543
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 231 144
Total current liabilities 50,70¢ 38,321
Capital lease obligations, less current por 38¢ 137
Non-current liabilities 6,042 5,43¢
Total liabilities 57,13i 43,90z
Commitments and contingenci
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 15,000,000 steuthorized, none issu — —
Stockholder equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 steart®rized, 29,690,463 shares issued and
29,437,961 shares outstanding as of December 30, &@d 29,278,103 shares issued
and 29,031,073 shares outstanding as of Decembh@089 30 29
Additional paic-in capital 136,17: 124,49:
Retained earning 112,26¢ 85,67
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(lt 1,12¢ (3,515)
249,59! 206,68
Less: 252,502 shares as of December 31, 2010 ah@3Mshares as of December 31, 2009, he
treasury, at cos (1,069 (97€)
ExIService Holdings, Inc. stockhold’ equity 248,52¢ 205,70!
Non-controlling interes 20 13
Total stockholdel equity 248,54¢ 205,71¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 305,68 $ 249,62(

See accompanying notes
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue! $ 252,75 $ 190,99
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andrtization) 151,28! 109,38¢
Gross profi 101,46¢ 81,60¢
Operating expense

General and administrative expen 40,27¢ 31,85(

Selling and marketing expens 18,83: 13,95(

Depreciation and amortizatic 15,83t 11,40t
Total operating expens: 74,94 57,20¢
Income from continuing operatiol 26,52 24,40!
Other income/(expense

Foreign exchange gain/(los 4,19¢ (5,929

Interest and other income, r 1,36 1,02¢
Income from continuing operations before incomess 32,08¢ 19,49t
Income tax provision/(benefi 5,491 3,70:
Income from continuing operatiol 26,59: 15,79:
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, ndagés — (139
Net income $ 26,59 $ 15,65¢
Earnings per share(e
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 0.91 $ 0.5¢
Discontinued operatior — —

$ 0.91 $ 0.54
Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 0.8¢ $ 0.54
Discontinued operatior — —
$ 0.8¢ $ 0.5¢

Weighte-average number of shares used in computing earpemgshare

Basic 29,281,36 28,963,77

Diluted 30,388,52 29,417,91

(@) Per share amounts may not foot due to rounc

See accompanying notes
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2008
$ 181,71
112,43¢
69,27¢

31,118
11,34«
11,15¢
53,61:
15,66¢

(9,276)
3,40¢

9,797
(1,340
11,13
3,271

$  14,40¢

$ 0.3¢
0.11

$ 0.5C

$ 0.3¢
0.11

$ 0.4¢

28,811,04
29,212,04
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Treasury Stock Non -
Retainec ~ Comprehensive Controlling
Paid-in
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Shares Amount Interest Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( 28,891,04 $ 2¢ $ 110,98¢ $ 55,70¢ 3% 7,57(C (163,69) $ (316¢) $ —  $173,98(
Adjustment for change in measurement date purgoant
FAS 158, net of taxes of $6 Service cost and ist
cost — — — (7C) — — — — (7C)
Amortization of actuarial los — — — (25) 25 — — — —
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 163,10: — 62C — — — — — 62C
Non-employee stock optior — — (7C) — — — — — (7C)
Stocl-based compensatic — — 5,27¢ — — — — — 5,27¢
Excess tax expense from stock based compens — — (141) — — — — — (141)
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (73,390 (587) — (587)
Comprehensive incom
Translation adjustmen — — — — (10,199 — — — (10,19¢)
Unrealized (loss) on cash flow hedges, net ¢
taxes $( — — — — (15,647) — — — (15,647)
Retirement benefits, net of taxes — — — — 82 — — — 82
Reclassification adjustment
Realized loss on cash flow hedges, net of taxes
$0 — — — — 3,671 — — — 3,671
Net income — — — 14,40¢ — — — — 14,40¢
Total comprehensive lo: — — — — — — — — (7,67¢)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 29,054,14 $ 29 $ 116,67t $ 70,02 $ (14,497 (237,08) $ (903 $ — $171,33:
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 223,95¢ — 97¢ — — — — — 97¢
Non-employee stock optior — — 8C — — — — — 8C
Stocl-based compensatic — — 7,092 — — — — — 7,092
Excess tax expense from stock based compens — — (349) — — — — — (349)
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (9,950 (73) — (73)
Non-controlling interes — — 8 — — — — 13 21
Comprehensive incom
Translation adjustmen — — — — 3,02¢ — — — 3,02¢
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of
taxes $56¢ — — — — 1,72¢ — — — 1,72¢
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $: — — — — (24¢) — — — (24¢)
Reclassification adjustment
Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax
$0 — — — — 6,39¢ — — — 6,39¢
Retirement benefits net of taxes — — — — 73 — — — 73
Net income — — — 15,65: — — — — 15,65
Total comprehensive incon — — — — — — — — 26,62¢
Balance as of December 31, 2( 29,278,10 $ 28 $ 124,49 $ 8567: $ (3,515 (247,030 $ (97¢) $ 13 $205,71¢
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 412,36( 1 3,02¢ — — — — — 3,02¢
Non-employee stock optior — — 58 — — — — — 58
Stocl-based compensatic — — 8,491 — — — — — 8,491
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens. — 107 — — — — — 107
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (5,472 (93) — (93)
Non-controlling interes — — — — — — — 7 7
Comprehensive incom
Translation adjustmen — — — — 3,48¢ — — — 3,48¢
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of
taxes $1,52 — — — — 3,92¢ — — — 3,92¢
Retirement benefits, net of taxes § — — — — (147 — — — (147)
Reclassification adjustment
Realized gain on cash flow hedges, net of ta
$916 — — — — (2,745 — — — (2,74%)
Retirement benefits, net of taxes 4 — — — — 12C — — — 12C
Net income — — — 26,59: — — — — 26,59:
Total comprehensive incon — — — — — — — — 31,23!
Balance as of December 31, 2( 29,690,46 $ 3¢ $ 136,17 $11226t B 1,12¢ (252,50:) $ (1,069 $ 2C  $248,54¢

See accompanying notes
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Loss/ (income) from discontinued operations, nabgés
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stock-based compensation expel
Non-employee stock optior
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/lc
Deferred income taxe
Excess tax expense/(benefit) from s-based compensatic
Non-controlling interes
Change in operating assets and liabilities (netffgict of acquisitions)
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a
Accounts payabl
Deferred revenu
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Income taxes payab
Other asset
Net cash provided by operating activi—continuing operation
Net cash provided by operating activi—discontinued operatior
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of fixed asse
Business acquisitions (net of cash acqui
Purchase of shc-term investment
Proceeds from redemption of si-term investment
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat
Net cash used for investing activit-continuing operation
Net cash used for investing activit-discontinuing operatior
Net cash used for investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Principal payments on capital lease obligati
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess tax expense/(benefit) from s-based compensatic
Proceeds from issuance of stock to minority shdd=s
Acquisition of treasury stoc
Net cash provided by/ (used for) financing actes
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casraénts
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis:
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxes, net of refu

Assets acquired under capital le.

See accompanying notes
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Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
$2659: $1565: $ 14,408
— 13¢ (3,27))
15,83t 11,40¢ 11,15¢
8,491 7,00: 5,27¢
58 14C 28¢
1,05( (98) 1,597
(2,375) (8,400) (2,065)
(107) 34z 141

7 — —
431 (3,25¢) (51)
(8,449 (287) 6,19¢
(2,166) (54) (2,796
(148) 1,211 (1,609)
(2,767) 3,33¢ (1,016)
9,082 3,84¢ 6,53¢
(5,850) 2,51¢ (2,806)
(3,187) 2,117 (3,129)
36,50¢ 35,60 28,87:
— — 5,501
36,50¢ 35,69 34,37:
(19,860) (11,416 (14,83:)
(42,142 (3,529) (2,156)
(2,42¢) (3,987) —
3,45¢ 152 —
— 1,44¢ 1,03¢
(60,97%) (17,33)) (15,95()
— — (40
(60,97%) (17,33)) (15,990)
(88) (114) (139)
3,02 97¢ 62C
107 (343) (142)
(93) (73) (587)
2,95( 47C (241)
487 1,207 (8,179)
(21,03 20,04 9,961
132,21 112,17 102,21
$111,18;  $132,211  $112,17-
$ 43 $ 22 $ 52
$12,81F $ 4845 $ 4,19¢
$ 547 $ 108 $ 228
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

ExIService Holdings, Inc. (ExIService Holdings)iganized as a corporation under the laws of e stf Delaware. ExIService
Holdings, together with its subsidiaries (colleetiy the Company), is a leading provider of outsmg services and transformation services.
The Company’s clients are located principally ia thnited States and the United Kingdom.

Basis of Presentatio
Certain amounts in the prior year's financial staats and related notes have been reclassifieohforen to the 2010 presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Principles of Consolidatic

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiesnte been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengradicepted accounting principl
The accompanying financial statements have begraped on a consolidated basis and reflect the dinhstatements of ExIService Holdings
and all of its subsidiaries. All intercompany bales and transactions have been eliminated in ddasioh.

The non-controlling interest represents the migqgudrtners interest in the operation of exIService.com @jdirivate Limited (ExI Indi¢
and the profits associated with the minority parfthénterest in those operations, in the consolidatddnce sheet and consolidated stateme
income, respectively. The minority partner’s ingtrie the operations for the year ended Decembge2@0 and 2009 was insignificant and is
included under general and administrative expeimstt®e consolidated statements of income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stegets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedcamting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liakslidied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahasitatements and the consolidated statementsafie during the reporting period. Estimates
are based upon management's best assessmentooifrteet business environment. Actual results cdiffér from those estimates. The
significant estimates and assumptions that affecfihancial statements include, but are not lichite allowance for doubtful receivables,
future obligations under employee benefit plangemled tax valuation allowances, income-tax unéetiess and other contingencies, valuation
of derivatives financial instruments, stock-basethpensation expense, depreciation and amortizpgands, recoverability of longerm asse
including goodwill and intangibles, and estimatesamplete fixed price contracts.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of each entity in the Compas its respective local country currency whistaiso the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates excepEidService Mauritius Limited. Monetary assets &iabilities in foreign currencies are re-
measured into functional currency at the ratescohange prevailing at the balance sheet datessactions in foreign currencies are re-
measured into functional currency at the ratesxohange prevailing on the date of the transac#dirtransaction foreign exchange gains and
losses are recorded in the accompanying consalidgasgements of income.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiariesafbich the functional currency is other than the .Wi&lar are translated into U.S. dollars,
the reporting currency, at the rate of exchangeailiag on the balance sheet dates. Revenues grehsgs are translated into U.S. dollars ¢
exchange rates prevailing on the last busines®flagich month, which approximates the average nhoaikthange rate. Resulting translation
adjustments are included in accumulated other cehgrsive income/(loss).

Revenue Recognitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsourambteansformation services. Revenues from outsogreervices are recognized
primarily on a time-and-material, cost-plus or ymitced basis; revenues from transformation sesvéze recognized primarily on a time-and-
material, fixed price or contingent fee basis. Shevices provided within our contracts generallgtam one unit of accounting. Revenues are
recognized under our contracts generally when psige evidence of an arrangement exists, the palesis fixed or determinable, services
have been performed and collection of amountsieeasonably assured.

Revenues under time-and-material contracts argyrézed as the services are performed. Revenugs@rgnized on cost-plus contracts
on the basis of contractually agreed direct aniétéeticosts incurred on a client contract plus gread upon profit mark-up. Revenues are
recognized on unit-price based contracts basedenumber of specified units of work (such as thealber of e-mail responses) delivered to a
client. Such revenues are recognized as the redatites are provided in accordance with the thentract. When the terms of the client
contract specify service level parameters that rbeshet (such as turnaround time or accuracy), weitor such service level parameters to
determine if any service credits or penalties Hzeen incurred. Revenues are recognized net ofeamice credits that are due to a client. We
have experienced minimal service credits and piesald date.

Revenues from software licensing arrangementsesagnized at the later of time of delivery or e&fion of significant termination
rights. Revenues from fixed-term maintenance apgart contracts are recognized ratably on a moritalis over the period of the contract.
Revenues from contracts for software modificatimgenerally fixed price contracts and are recaghimder the proportional performance
method as described below.

Revenues are recognized on fixed-price contradtg uke proportional performance method. We estntia¢ proportional performance
of a contract by comparing the actual number ofrbiou days worked to the estimated total numbérwofs or days required to complete each
engagement. The use of the proportional performaretbod requires significant judgment relative stireating the number of hours or days
required to complete the contracted scope of wiadluding assumptions and estimates relative tdehgth of time to complete the project ¢
the nature and complexity of the work to be perfedmWe regularly monitor our estimates for complef a project and record changes in
period in which a change in an estimate is detezthiif a change in an estimate results in a pregeldss on a project, such loss is recognized
in the period in which it is first identified.

The Company accrues for revenue and receivablesefoices rendered between the last billing datktlam balance sheet date.
Accordingly, our accounts receivable include amsdat services that we have performed and for whitlnvoice has not yet been issued to
the client.

During the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2889Company received $0 and $5,075 of contract textioin fees, respectively.
These amounts are included in revenues in the tidated statements of income.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses receieen €lients have been included as part of reveituascordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) topic 605-45-14ntome Statement Characterization of Reimbursenfetgived for “Out-of-Pocket”
Expenses Incurre”.

Revenues for the following periods include reimieanents of out-of-pocket expenses:

Year ended December 31, 2C $11,82(
Year ended December 31, 2C $ 9,56¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $11,80:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investmegmnischased with an original maturity of three manth less to be cash equivalents.
Pursuant to the Company’s investment policy, itplsis funds are kept as cash or cash equivaledtsu@invested in highly-rated mutual
funds, money market accounts and time depositsdoae its exposure to market risk with regard gs¢hfunds.

Current restricted cash represents amounts on dlegtdsbanks against bank guarantees issued tirbagks for equipment imports that
will mature on various dates before December 31120

Non-current restricted cash represents amounts on lle@gtsbanks against bank guarantees issued thrbagks for equipment impor
amounts in an escrow account related to acquisitom for demands against pending income tax assess (see note 16 for details), that will
mature on various dates after December 31, 2011.

Investments

The Company'’s investments consist of time depaéits financial institutions which are valued at taad approximate fair value.
Interest earned on such investments is includéaténest income. Investments with maturities o§l#san twelve months from the balance s
date are classified as sheetm investments. Investments with maturities gnetitan twelve months from the balance sheet datelassified ¢
long-term investments.

Accounts Receivabl
Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowafmedoubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful acots are established through the
evaluation of accounts receivables ageing and pdbection experience to estimate the ultimatéectdbility of these receivables.

Accounts receivable include unbilled accounts reddle which represents revenues for services pagdrbut yet to be billed to the
client. As on December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Compad $560 and $1,000 of unbilled accounts rebégyvaespectively.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulgpeeoiition and amortization. Equipment held undsgital leases is stated at the lower of
present value of minimum lease payments at theptiwre of the leases or its fair value. Advances paiwards acquisition of fixed assets and
the cost of fixed assets not yet placed in sefvafere the end of the period are classified astooction in progress.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment at leastially or whenever events or changes in circunestgimdicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable through an assessrhtng estimated future undiscounted cash floleged to such assets. In the event that
assets are found to be carried at amounts tha axcess of estimated undiscounted future cassflthe carrying value of the related asset or
group of assets is reduced to a level commenswitiidair value based on a discounted cash flowyasig

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehnoé over the estimated useful lives of the as§preciation and amortization on
equipment held under capital leases and leaseimgtbivements are computed using the straight-linhogeover the shorter of the assets’
estimated useful lives or the lease term.

The estimated lives used in determining depreciai®@ as follows:

Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Network equipment, cabling and comput 3-5
Buildings 30
Land —
Leasehold improvemen 3-5
Office furniture and equipmel 3-7
Motor vehicles 3-5

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other IntangébAsset:

ASC topic 850,Business Combinations{ASC No. 850), requires that the purchase methatobunting be used for all business
combinations. The guidance specifies criteria dntangible assets acquired in a business combmétiat must be recognized and reported
separately from goodwill. Under ASC topic 35hitangibles—Goodwill and Other{ASC No. 350), all assets and liabilities of the@ced
businesses, including goodwill, are assigned tontém units.

Goodwill represents the cost of the acquired bissieg in excess of the fair value of identifiableggtale and intangible net assets
purchased. Goodwill is not amortized but is testedmpairment at least on an annual basis, relgings number of factors including operating
results, business plans and estimated future éask.fRecoverability of goodwill is evaluated usimgwo-step process. The first step involves
a comparison of the fair value of a reporting wvith its carrying value. The fair value of the refrag unit is measured by discounting
estimated future cash flows. If the carrying amafrthe reporting unit exceeds its fair value, skeeond step of the process involves a
comparison of the fair value and carrying valuéhef goodwill of that reporting unit. If the carrgwvalue of the goodwill of a reporting unit
exceeds the fair value of that goodwill, an impanmloss is recognized in an amount equal to tisessx Goodwill of a reporting unit will be
tested for impairment between annual tests if @amegccurs or circumstances change that would fil@ly than not reduce the fair value of
the reporting unit below its carrying amount.

Intangible assets are initially valued at fair merkalue using generally accepted valuation metlapgsopriate for the type of intangible
asset. Intangible assets with definite lives arerimed over the estimated useful lives and areeresd for impairment, if indicators of
impairment arise. The evaluation of impairmentasda upon a comparison of the carrying amounteofrttangible asset to the estimated fu
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be gemkbgtéthe asset. If estimated future undiscountatt flaws are less than the carrying amount
of the asset, the asset is considered impairediripairment expense is determined by comparing#tienated fair value of the intangible a:
to its carrying value, with any shortfall from faialue recognized as an expense in the currerdgeri

74



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

The Company'’s definite lived intangible assetsamortized over their estimated useful lives agdidielow using a straight-line method
or a method of amortization that reflects the patte which the economic benefits of the intangitdssets were consumed or otherwise
realized:

Customer relationshif 3-10 years
Leasehold benefit 3 years
Developed technolog 10 years
Non-compete agreemer 1-2 years
Trade names and tradema Indefinite

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company elgtleoks to mitigate the exposure of foreign coogmarket risk by entering into
various hedging instruments, authorized under Compalicies, with counterparties that are highlgethfinancial institutions. The Company
uses derivative instruments for the purpose ofgaithg the underlying exposure from foreign cursefigctuation risks associated with
forecasted transactions denominated in certaingioreurrencies and to minimize earnings and cash flolatility associated with changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, and not for spdigel trading purposes.

The Company hedges anticipated transactions thadudnject to foreign exchange exposure with foreigmency exchange contracts that
are designated effective and that qualify as clast liedges under ASC topic No. 819)é&rivatives and Hedging(ASC No. 815). Changes in
the fair value of these cash flow hedges whichdaemed effective, are recorded in accumulated athraprehensive income/(loss) (AOCI)
until the hedged transactions occur and at that tine recognized in the consolidated statemerite&ofme. Changes in the fair value of cash
flow hedges deemed ineffective are recognizedeérctinsolidated statement of income and are includéteign exchange gain/(loss). The
Company also uses derivatives instruments congisfifioreign currency exchange contracts not degaghas hedging instruments under ASC
No. 815 to hedge intercompany balances and othaetany assets or liabilities denominated in curienother than the functional curren
Changes in the fair value of these derivativesecegnized in the consolidated statements of incanaeare included in foreign exchange gain/
(loss).

The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrtieegticontract is entered into as well as on aniagduasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in @lirevilue is recorded in the consolidated statemehincome and is included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss). For hedge relationshipsatetliscontinued because the forecasted transastimt expected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatamounts recorded in equity are reclassified taiegs.

Retirement Benefit:

Contributions to defined contribution plans arergeda to the consolidated statements of incomedrptriod in which services are
rendered by the covered employees. Current secaists for defined benefit plans are accrued irpthéod to which they relate. In accordance
with ASC No. 715, ‘Compensation-Retirement Benefitthe liability in respect of defined benefit plaasalculated annually by the Company
using the projected unit credit method. Prior ss\dost, if any, resulting from an amendment téaa s recognized and amortized over the
remaining period of service of the covered emplsy@&&e Company recognizes its liabilities for congaed absences in accordance with .
topic 710, “Compensation-General
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Share-Based Compensation

The Company follows ASC topic 718 ompensation—Stock Compensatig@SC No. 718), which requires the recognition afckt:
based compensation expense in the consolidatencfalastatements for awards of equity instrumentsniployees and non-employee directors
based on the grant-date fair value of those awditts Company recognizes these compensation cestsf an estimated forfeiture rate, over
the requisite service period of the award.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC topic 740;Income Taxes”(ASC No. 740). Under ASC No. 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogni@etuture tax consequences attributable to difiees between the financial statement carrying
value of existing assets and liabilities and thespective tax basis and all operating lossesexhforward, if any. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using tax rates expedexpply to taxable income in the years in whichapplicable temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effected@rred tax assets and liabilities of a changeirrates or tax status is recognized in the
statement of income in the period in which the gjeais identified. Deferred tax assets are redugea\mluation allowance if, based on
available evidence, it is more likely than not teamme portion or all of the deferred tax assetbneil be realized.

ASC No. 740 clarifies the accounting for incomeetsoy prescribing the minimum recognition thresteotdx position is required to me
before being recognized in the financial statemdthtdso provides guidance on de-recognition, messent, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The guidance contains a two-apgmoach to recognizing and measuring
uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordamite ASC No. 740. The first step is to evaluate thx position for recognition by
determining, based on the technical merits, thapthsition will be more likely than not sustaingmbo examination. The second step is to
measure the tax benefit as the largest amounedfthbenefit that is greater than 50% likely ahigerealized upon settlement. Interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitbaieg included in provision for income-tax expeirsthe consolidated statements of income.

Financial Instruments and Concentration of CreditiBk

Financial Instrumentsi-or certain financial instruments including cash aash equivalents, short-term investments, aceaectivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, and othentliatglities, recorded amounts approximate failue due to the relatively short maturity
periods of such instruments.

Concentration of Credit RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subje& @ompany to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, time déppaccounts receivable and derivative finariostruments. By their nature, all such
financial instruments involve risks including thedit risks of non-performance by counterpartiagsBant to the Company’s investment
policy, its surplus funds are maintained as cagtash equivalents and are invested in highly-ratatual funds, money market accounts and
time deposits to reduce its exposure to marketwith regard to these funds. Trade accounts reb&are incurred pursuant to contractual
terms with customers. Credit losses on accountivalsle have not been material because of a langeentration of revenues with a small
number of large, established companies. The Comeealyates the creditworthiness of its clientsdnjanction with its revenue recognition
processes as well as through its ongoing colldttabssessment processes for accounts receivable.
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As of December 31, 2010, two customers accounteddproximately 17% and 15% respectively, of thenPany’s total accounts
receivable. As of December 31, 2009, two custoraecsunted for approximately 19% and 17% respegtivwdlthe Company’s total accounts
receivable.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividingne®me to common stockholders by the weightedagyenumber of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted earningsspare is computed using the weighted average euofltommon shares plus the
potentially dilutive effect of common stock equieats issued and outstanding at the reporting dabeg the treasury stock method. Stock
options, restricted stock and restricted stocksuthiat are anti-dilutive are excluded from the catapon of weighted average shares
outstanding.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respectitovested shares of restricted stock and restratteak units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstficted stock, without interest, only if and wharch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristedk and restricted stock units are immediatetfefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder’'s employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righagdividends or dividend equivalents and are theesfmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method. However, the Conipargsted restricted stock units against
which the underlying common stock has not beereidscontain non-forfeitable rights to dividendglosidend equivalents and are therefore
after vesting considered as participating securfide the purposes of computing basic earningsbpare pursuant to the two-class method.
Application of this treatment had an insignificafitect on the basic earnings per share.

The following table sets forth the computation asie and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Numerators:
Net income:
Continuing operation $ 26,59 $ 15,79 $ 11,137
Discontinued operatior — (139 3,271
$ 26,59 $ 15,65! $  14,40¢
Denominators:
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 29,281,36. 28,963,77 28,811,04
Dilutive effect of share based awai 1,107,151 454,14( 401,00¢
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 30,388,52! 29,417,91 29,212,04
Weighted average common shares considere-dilutive in computing
diluted earnings per sha 674,50° 2,193,14 1,537,12
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Lo

ASC topic 220, ‘Reporting Comprehensive Incofestablishes rules for the reporting of comprediemincome and its components.
Comprehensive income is defined as all changeguityefrom non-owner sources. For the Company, aemgnsive income/(loss) consists of
net earnings/(loss), amortization of actuarial f&8s) on retirement benefits and changes in timeutative foreign currency translation
adjustments. In addition, the Company enters iatei§n currency exchange contracts, which are dagégl as cash flow hedges in accordance
with ASC No. 815. Changes in the fair values oftcaxcts that are deemed effective are recordedccamponent of accumulated other
comprehensive income until the settlement of tbhatract. The balances of different components @&eafember 31, 2010 and 2009 are as
follows:

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Cumulative translation adjustmet $ (1,499 $ (4,97)
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedc 3,02¢ 1,84:
Retirement benefit (407 (380
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(l¢ $  1,12¢ $ (3,519

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC 85bsequent Eventshich provides guidance on events that occur #fiebalance sheet date
prior to the issuance of the financial statemeh&C 855 distinguishes events requiring recogniiiothe financial statements and those that
may require disclosure in the financial statementgebruary 2010, the FASB released Accountingd&iads Update (ASU) No. 2010-09, an
update to ASC 85%ubsequent Eventshich revised various terms and definitions wittiie guidance and provided new guidance upon the
date which entities must evaluate subsequent evEnits ASU requires that the Company must evalsabsequent events through the date on
which the financial statements are issued, ratiear the date the financial statements are avaitatide issued, and the disclosure of this date is
no longer required in the notes to the financiateshents. The Company has evaluated subsequers ¢wverugh the date of this Annual Reg
on Form 10-K.

In September 2009, the FASB issued Update No. 2@)9-Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a consenéthe FASB
Emerging Issues Task For” (ASU 2009-13). It updates the existing multigkzment revenue arrangements guidance currenilyded unde
ASC topic 605-25, which originated primarily frofmetguidance in EITF Issue No. 00-2IRévenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” The revised guidance primarily provides two siigant changes: (1) eliminates the need for olpjecand reliable evidence of
the fair value for the undelivered element in orfidera delivered item to be treated as a separatefiaccounting, and (2) eliminates the
residual method to allocate the arrangement coratide. In addition, the guidance also expandgiteelosure requirements for revenue
recognition. ASU 2009-13 will be effective for tfiest annual reporting period beginning on or afitane 15, 2010, with early adoption
permitted provided that the revised guidance ioeetively applied to the beginning of the yeaadbption. The Company has chosen to adopt
the new guidance from January 1, 2011. CurrendyGbmpany does not expect there to be any impat fine adoption of ASU 2009-13 as
the number of multiple-deliverable revenue arrangeisare insignificant.
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In January 2010, the FASB issued Update No. 2010+@iproving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurenieiotamend the disclosure
requirements related to recurring and nonrecuffdirgvalue measurements. The guidance requiresdissiosures on the transfers of assets
liabilities between Level 1 (quoted prices in aetmarket for identical assets or liabilities) arel/&l 2 (significant other observable inputs) of
the fair value measurement hierarchy, includingrésons and the timing of the transfers. Additignghe guidance requires a roll forward of
activities on purchases, sales, issuance andrsetits of the assets and liabilities measured wsgrgficant unobservable inputs (Level 3 fair
value measurements). This guidance is effectivénterim and annual reporting periods beginningratecember 15, 2009, except for the
disclosures regarding Level 3 fair value measurésnwhich are effective for fiscal years beginnifigaDecember 15, 2010. The adoption of
this new guidance did not have a material impaahenCompany’s consolidated financial statemergs. i®te 6 to our consolidated financial
statements for further details.

In December 2010, the FASB issued authoritativelgiuie which specifies that if a public entity preasecomparative financial
statements, the entity should disclose revenuesanmings of the combined entity as though the lessitombinations that occurred during the
current year had occurred as of the beginning®ttmparable prior annual reporting period onlythermore, this guidance expands the
supplemental pro forma disclosure requirement. @htboritative guidance is effective prospectivielybusiness combinations with an
acquisition date on or after the beginning of & fannual reporting period beginning on or aBecember 15, 2010. The Company does not
expect the adoption of this guidance to have a mahtffect on its consolidated financial Statensent

3. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Summarized quarterly results for the years endezbdéer 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Three months endec

2010 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Revenue! $ 54,48¢ $ 60,63¢ $ 67,58t $  70,04( $ 252,75
Gross profil 23,00¢ 23,19: 27,00: 28,27 101,46¢
Net income to common stockhold $ 5,62¢ $ 4,86¢ $ 7,80¢ $ 8,29¢ $ 26,59
Earnings Per Shar
Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.17 $ 0.27 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.91
Diluted $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.27 $ 0.8¢
Weightec-average number of shares use
computing earnings per sha
Basic 29,128,74 29,231,81 29,302,86 29,458,50 29,281,36
Diluted 30,157,95 30,201,09 30,385,30 30,806,19 30,388,52
Note:
Stocl-based compensation expel $ 1,82¢ $ 2,40 $ 2,121 $ 2,13¢ $ 8,491
Amortization of intangible: $ 181 $ 52C $ 68¢ $ 63¢ $ 2,02«
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Three months endec

2009 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Revenue! $  40,98¢ $ 42,38t $  48,18¢ $ 59,43¢ $ 190,99
Gross profil 16,63( 16,55¢ 19,38 29,03t 81,60¢
Net income to common stockhold $ 2,88: $ 1,257 $ 3,994 $ 7,522 $ 15,65:
Earnings Per Shar
Basic $ 0.1cC $ 0.04 $ 0.14 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢4
Diluted $ 0.1C $ 0.04 $ 0.14 $ 0.2t $ 0.5:
Weighted-average number of shares usel
computing earnings per sha
Basic 28,843,19 28,906,05 28,930,34 29,044,34 28,963,77
Diluted 29,079,67 29,159,54 29,368,39 29,932,88 29,417,91
Note:
Stocl-based compensation expel $ 1,53¢ $ 1,97« $ 1,87¢ $ 1,70¢ $ 7,097
Amortization of intangible: $ — $ — $ 84 $ 83 $ 167

4. Segment Information

The Company is organized around its outsourcingices and transformation services segments. Thep@oyis recent acquisitions of
the American Express Global Travel Service Certtef 6C”) and Professional Data Management Again, (fRDMA”) are classified as part
of the outsourcing services segment.

The chief operating decision maker generally regiéwancial information at the consolidated statetra# income level but does not
review any information except for revenues and obsevenues of the individual segments. Therefibre Company does not allocate or
evaluate operating expenses, interest expenseami, capital expenditures, and income taxes mpisating segments. Consequently, it is
practical to show assets, capital expendituresedégtion or amortization by segment.

80



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues and cost of revenues for each of the geded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, for ouisguservices and
transformation services segments, respectivelyagfellows:

Year ended December 31, 201

Year ended December 31, 20C

Outsourcing Transformation Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total Services Services Total

Revenue: $192,09! $ 60,65¢ $252,75: $ 152,63t $ 38,35: $190,99!
Cost of revenues (exclusive

depreciation and amortizatio 113,46: 37,82« 151,28t 83,06 26,32¢ 109,38
Gross profil $ 78,63¢ $ 22,83¢ $101,46¢ $ 69,57/ $ 12,03 $ 81,60¢
Operating expenst 74,94 57,20¢
Other income / (expens 5,56¢ (4,906
Income tax provisiol 5,497 3,70z
Income from continuing operatiol 26,597 15,79:
Loss from discontinued operations, net of

taxes — (139
Net income $ 26,59: $ 15,65!

Year ended December 31, 2008
Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total

Revenue! $138,77( $ 42,94« $181,71¢
Cost of revenues (exclusive

depreciation and amortizatio 85,19: 27,23¢ 112,43¢
Gross profil $ 53,57! $ 15,70¢ $ 69,27¢
Operating expenst 53,61
Other income / (expens (5,86¢)
Income tax provision/ (benefi (1,340
Income from continuing operatiol 11,135
Income from discontinued operations,

of taxes 3,271
Net income $ 14,40¢
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5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible gsets

On March 1, 2010, the Company acquired the opersiid the GTSC, a business unit of American Exple@ssted in Gurgaon, India, tt
provides the travel-related business process orgisguservices of American Express. The purcha&e fior the GTSC, which was paid in
cash, was approximately $29,122. The Company pprémium for the GTSC acquisition to provide seesito the travel sector, deepen the
Company'’s relationship with a significant clientdagxpand its capability set in analytics, exceppoocessing and transaction processing.

On May 1, 2010, the Company acquired a 100% stalRbiMA, developer of the LifePR® insurance policyrénistration platform
used by approximately 40 insurance companies. Thehpse price for PDMA, which was paid in cash, agroximately $14,061(including
cash acquired of $1,039), net of working capitglisitnents. The Company paid a premium for the PDAd4uisition to expand its capability
providing a policy administration platform for itfients along a wide range of products.

GTSC PDMA
Tangible fixed asse $ 2,85¢ $ 21¢
Current assets and liabilities, net of ¢ (1,467 (1,715
Customer related intangible ass 10,32¢ 5,20(
Leasehold benefit 972 —
Developed technolog — 2,10(
Non-compete agreeme — 20C
Trade names and tradema — 90C
Goodwill ® 16,09° 7,155
Deferred tax assets, r 331 —
$29,12: $14,06

(1) Includes $900 deposited in an escrow account im@ction with the PDMA acquisitio

Under ASC topic 805, Business CombinatiorifASC No. 805), the preliminary allocation of tparchase price to the tangible and
intangible assets and liabilities acquired may geaup to a period of one year from the date of sitipn. The customer relationship and
leasehold benefits from the GTSC acquisition aiegbamortized over a life of ten years and the riaing period of the lease (approximately
three years), respectively. The customer relatigpnahd developed technology from the PDMA acqusitare being amortized over a life of
ten years each and the non-compete agreemennig &eiortized over a period of two years. The Compeas considered the estimated useful
life of trade names and trademarks to be indefanitg will test these for impairment at least anlyual
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Goodwill
The following table sets forth details of the Comypa goodwill balance as of December 31, 2010:

Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 772 $ 16,78t $17,557
Goodwill arising from acquisitio 2,062 — 2,062
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,83¢ 16,78¢ 19,61¢
Goodwill arising from acquisition 28,551 — 28,551
Purchase accounting adjustme® (5,309 — (5,309
Currency translation adjustmet 497 — 497
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 26,58t $ 16,78t $43,37(

(1) Represent adjustments related to the GTSC and PB&gdisitions

Based on the results of its first step impairmestd performed during the year ended December@D, 2he Company's goodwill was
not impaired. The Company makes every reasonafug & ensure that it accurately estimates thevaiue of the reporting units. However,
future changes in the assumptions used to make tesnates could result in the recording of anaiimmpent loss. In the event the Company
records an impairment loss in the future, such arhaiill not be deductible for tax purposes.

Intangible Asset:
Information regarding the Company’s intangible &ésgeset forth below:

As of December 31, 201

Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationshif $16,59¢ $ (1,726 $14,86¢
Leasehold benefil 1,00z (257) 74E
Developed technolog 2,10¢ (240) 1,96(
Non-compete agreemer 20C (83 117
Trade names and tradema 90C — 90C
$20,797 $ (2,206 $18,59!

As of December 31, 2009

Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationshif $ 79 $ (167) $ 627

$ 794 $ (167

<2
o
N
~l
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Amortization expense for the year ended Decembge2@10, 2009 and 2008 was $2,024, $167 and $58dectvely. The weighted
average life of intangible assets was 9.7 yearsdetomer relationships, 3.2 years for leasehofefits, 10.0 years for developed technology
and 1.7 years for non-compete agreements.

Estimated amortization ofintangible assets during the year ending Decembefl3

2011 $2,42(
2012 $2,19:
2013 $1,91¢
2014 $1,79(
2015 $1,79(

6. Fair Value Measurements

ASC topic 820, ‘Fair Value Measurements and Disclosufg&SC No. 820) defines fair value as the pricettivauld be received upon
sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a lighitian orderly transaction between market paréints at the measurement date and in the
principal or most advantageous market for thattamskability. The fair value should be calculatedsed on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset oriliigh not on assumptions specific to the entity.addition, the fair value of liabilities should
include consideration of non-performance risk, tidahg the Company’s own credit risk.

ASC No. 820 establishes a three-level hierarchfpiofvalue measurements based on whether the inptitdse measurements are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputsctafi@rket data obtained from independent sourckie wnobservable inputs reflect the
Company’s market assumptions. The fair-value hédgnarequires the use of observable market data \ahaitable and consists of the
following levels:

. Level 1- Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets;

. Level 2— Quoted prices for similar instruments in active kets; quoted prices for identical or similar instents in markets thi
are not active; and moc-derived valuations in which all significant inpuiie observable in active markets; i

. Level 3— Valuations derived from valuation techniques inethdne or more significant inputs are unobserve

The following table sets forth the Company’s asaets liabilities that were accounted for at failweaas of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
The table excludes short-term investments, accaentivable, accounts payable and accrued expérsehich fair values approximate their
carrying amounts.
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt
The assets and liabilities measured at fair vatueeourring basis are summarized below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As of December 31, 201
Assets
Money market and mutual fun: $ 83,33t $ — $— $ 83,33t
Derivative financial instrumen — 4,214 — 4,214
Total $ 83,33¢ $4,21¢ $— $ 87,54¢
Liabilities — — — —
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As of December 31, 200
Assets
Money market and mutual fun: $117,37( $ — $— $117,37(
Derivative financial instrumen — 2,47( — 2,47(
Total $117,37( $2,47( $— $119,84(
Liabilities — — — —

Derivative Financial Instrumentsthe Companys derivative financial instruments consist of fgrecurrency forward exchange contra
Fair values for derivative financial instrumente dased on broker quotations and are classifieéges 2. See note 7 for further details on
Derivatives and Hedge Accounting.

7. Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company actively looks to mitigate the exposfrioreign currency market risk by entering infrious hedging instruments,
authorized under Company policies, with counteipaithat are highly rated financial institutionfieTCompany’s primary exchange rate
exposure is with U.K. pound sterling and the Indiapee. The Company also has exposure in Philigp@ses, Czech koruna and other local
currencies in which it operates. The Company usesative instruments for the purpose of mitigatthg underlying exposure from foreign
currency fluctuation risks associated with foreeddtansactions denominated in certain foreignetwies and to minimize earnings and cash
flow volatility associated with changes in foreigmrrency exchange rates, and not for speculatagirtg purposes. These derivative financial
instruments are largely forward foreign exchangetrawts that are designated effective and thatifgued cash flow hedges under ASC topic
815, “Derivatives and Hedging” (ASC No. 815). Then@pany also uses derivatives consisting of foreigmency exchange contracts not
designated as hedging instruments under ASC Not@hBdge intercompany balances and other monasasts or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency.

The Company had outstanding foreign exchange austtataling $166,030, GBP 8,434 and EUR 785 d@3emfember 31, 2010 and
totaling $90,000 and GBP 7,662 as of December 309 2The Company estimates that approximately $3¢f het derivative gains included
accumulated other comprehensive income could Bassified into earnings within the next 12 monthsdd on exchange rates prevailing as of
December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2010, the maximutstanding term of derivative instruments thedde forecasted transactions was
thirty three months.
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The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrttgeaticontract is entered into as well as on aniogdasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in @lirevilue is recorded in the consolidated statemehincome and is included in foreign
exchange gain/(loss). For hedge relationshipsateatliscontinued because the forecasted transastimt expected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatar@ounts recorded in equity are reclassified taiags. No significant amounts of gains or
losses were reclassified from AOCI into earninga assult of forecasted transactions that failedciur during the year ended December 31,

2010 and 2009.

The following tables set forth the fair value oétforeign currency exchange contracts and theatios on the consolidated financial

statements:

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Other current assets:

Foreign currency exchange contre

Other assets

Foreign currency exchange contre

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Other current assets:

Foreign currency exchange contre

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
$ 3,171 $ 1,451
$ 1,02¢ $ 957

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

$ 14 $ 62

The following tables set forth the effect of foneigurrency exchange contracts on the consolida#temsents of income for the years

ended December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Amount of Amount of
Gain or Gain or (Loss) Location of Gain/ Amount of Gain/
(Loss) Location of Reclassified (Loss) Recognized in (Loss) Recognized in
Recognized in Gain or (Loss) from AOCI Income on Derivative Income on Derivative
AOCI on Reclassified from into Income (Ineffective Portion and (Ineffective Portion and
Derivatives in Cash Flow Derivative AOCI into Income (Effective Amount Excluded from Amount Excluded from
Hedging Relationships (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) Portion) Effectiveness Testing) Effectiveness Testing)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Foreign exchange contrac $ 5,45: $ 1,72t  Foreign exchange gain/ (los ~ $3,661  $(6,39¢) Foreign exchange gain/(los $ — $ (11¢)

Derivatives not designated
as Hedging Instruments

Foreign exchange contrac

Location of Gain or (Loss)
Recognized in Income on Derivatives

Foreign exchange gain / (los
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8. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets consist of the following:

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Network equipment, cabling and comput $ 50,28: $ 36,31
Buildings 1,77¢ 1,70¢
Land 1,164 1,11¢
Leasehold improvemen 19,19¢ 13,36:
Office furniture and equipmel 7,43¢ 5,26¢
Motor vehicles 1,591 96&
Construction in progres 2,00¢ 1,04¢
83,45¢ 59,77¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (48,729 (35,819

Depreciation and amortization expense excludingréraion of acquisition related intangibles foethear ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008 was $13,811, $11,238 and $10,62%ctgely.

Construction in progress represents advances paiartls acquisition of fixed assets and the cofiketl assets not yet ready to be placed
in service. The cost and accumulated amortizatfassets under capital leases at December 31,280$879 and $268, respectively, and at
December 31, 2009 were $500 and $228, respectively.

9. Capital Structure
Common Stock
The Company has one class of common stock outstgndi

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coynaeguired 5,472 shares of common stock from engasyn connection with
withholding tax payments related to the vestingestricted stock for a total consideration of $88e purchase price of $16.96 per share was
the average of the high and low price of the Comfsashares of common stock on the Nasdaq GlobalcB#arket on the trading day prior to
the vesting date of the shares of restricted stblokse shares are held as treasury stock. Duringethr ended 2009, the Company acquired
4,329 shares of common stock from employees fotad tonsideration of $39 and 5,621 shares of comstock as part of its previously
announced share repurchase program for a totaidmyation of $34. The Company’s repurchase proggaded in November 2009.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company’s Gratuity Plans in India and the Philes provides a lump sum payment to vested erapkgn retirement or on
termination of employment in an amount based orrékpective employeg'salary and years of employment with the Comphiapilities with
regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by aiglrealuation using the projected unit credit neethCurrent service costs for the Gratuity
Plan are accrued in the year to which they refstéuarial gains or losses or prior service costany, resulting from amendments to the plans
are recognized and amortized over the remainingg®ef service of the employees.
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The benefit obligation has been measured as ofibleee31, 2010. The following table sets forth thévéity and the funded status of the
Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the @my's consolidated financial statements at thedadride relevant periods:

December 31

2010 2009
Change in projected benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the y $1,80¢ $1,101
Service cos 52€ 284
Interest cos 152 11¢
Benefits paic (267) (139
Actuarial loss 15€ 37¢
Acquisitions 411 —
Effect of exchange rate chanc 101 67
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the $2,88¢ $1,80¢
Unfunded amour—nor-current $1,90¢ $1,28:2
Unfunded amour—current $ 98C $ 522
Total Accrued liability $2,88: $1,80¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $2,20¢ $1,39¢

Net gratuity cost includes the following components
Year ended

December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Service cos $52€ $284  $26F
Interest cos 152 11E 89
Actuarial loss 167 73 13€
Net gratuity cos $84E  $47Z2  $49C

The amount in accumulated other comprehensivetiadss expected to be recognized as a componergtgferiodic benefit cost over !
next fiscal year is $106. The components of accatedlother comprehensive income that has not legnized as components of net
gratuity cost in the statement of income as of Ddwer 31, 2010 is as follows:

December 31,

2010 2009
Net actuarial los $39¢ $371
Net prior service (credit)/co. 11 9
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o $407 $38C
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The weighted average actuarial assumptions useetésmine benefit obligations and net periodictatcost are:

December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Discount rate 8.7% 6.1% 10.(%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 8.C% 8.C% 8.C%

The Company evaluates these assumptions annuakylmm its long-term plans of growth and industandards. The discount rates are
based on current market yields on government gezsieidjusted for a suitable risk premium.

Expected benefit payments during the year endingeBbéer 31

2011 $ 98C
2012 97C
2013 88C
2014 817
2015 79¢
2016 to 202( $2,39¢

The Company maintains the Ex| Service Inc. 401(&hPthe Inductis 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan anel BEDMA 401(k) Profit Sharing
Plan, (the “401(k) Plans'ynder Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Cdd¥86 covering all eligible employees, as defiriBlde Compan
may make discretionary contributions of up to a rmasn of 3% of employee compensation within certaiits. The Company’s contribution
to the 401(k) Plans amounted to $269, $251 and $84iRg the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08|, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08, the Company contributed the following amouotgarious defined
contribution plans on behalf of its employees idid the Philippines and the Czech Republic:

Year ended December 31, 2C $3,64¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $2,37¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $1,89:
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11. Leases

The Company leases motor vehicles for certainsaéiihployees. Such leases are recorded as cap#abkld-uture minimum lease
payments under these capital leases at Decemb203Q,are as follows:

Year ending December 3

2011 $274
2012 21¢
2013 173
2014 34
Total minimum lease paymer 69¢
Less: amount representing inter _ 78
Present value of minimum lease payme 62C
Less: current portio 231
Long term capital lease obligatir $38¢

The Company conducts its operations using fadgligased under non-cancelable operating leaseragntée that expire at various dates.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetajstkements expiring after more than twelve monteset forth below:

Year ending December 3

2011 $ 5,08¢
2012 3,84:
2013 1,832
2014 633
2015 533
2016 and thereafte 1,79¢

$13,72°¢

The operating leases are subject to renewal pegtigiand have scheduled rent increases. The Coyrguanounts for scheduled rent on a
straight line basis over the lease period. Renérge under both cancelable and non-cancelabletopeleases was $9,808, $5,854 and $5,384
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 an8, 28€pectively. Deferred rent as of December 8102and 2009 was $3,324 and $1,437,
respectively, and are included in “Accrued expersesother current liabilities” in the consolidatealance sheets.

12. Income Taxes
The components of income from continuing operatioef®re income taxes consist of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Domestic $ 5,964 $ 3,332 $(5,927)
Foreign 26,12¢ 16,16 15,72«

$32,08¢ $19,49¢ $ 9,79i
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The income tax provision/(benefit) relating to doning operations consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Current provision
Domestic $ 4,38( $ 4,62¢ $ —
Foreign 3,492 7,474 728

$ 7,872 $12,10¢ $ 72t

Deferred benefit

Domestic $(1,43)) $(1,59¢) $(1,820)
Foreign (944) (6,804 (245)
$(2,375)  $(8,400  $(2,06%)

Income tax provision/(benefi $ 5,491 $ 3,70¢ $(1,340

The effective income tax rate differs from the amtoeomputed by applying the U.S. federal statutocpme tax rate to income before
income taxes approximately as follows:

December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Expected tax provisio $11,23: $ 6,82¢ $ 3,42¢
Change in valuation allowan 367 71C 93
Deferred tax benef 112 (2,167 194
Impact of tax holida) (4,227) (3,119 (5,72¢)
Reversal of FIN 48 resen (2,84%) — —

State taxes, net of Federal ta 55C 26¢ (37)
Non-deductible no-cash compensatic 11& 962 63¢
Other 197 212 7C
Tax provision/(benefit $ 5,491 $ 3,702 $(1,340)

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actseod March 31. Certain of our operations centetadi| qualify for an exemption
from corporate tax under section 10A or 10B ofltidian Income Tax Act. This exemption is availafiea period of ten consecutive years
beginning with the financial year in which the ogtéwns center begins to manufacture or producé@igoods and services and expires on

April 1, 2011. The tax holiday period for some of @perations centers has already expired and te xpire for some of our other operations
centers on April 1, 2011. Therefore, any profitagrated from the services provided from such opmraitcenters will be fully taxable after that

date. As a result of the expiration of the tax dtayi period during 2011, our tax expense will siigaifitly increase in and after 2011.

During 2010, the Company has established operatienters in Noida and Jaipur, India in special ectio zones that are eligible for tax
incentives for services provided from such locatiantil 2025, under the Special Economic Zones 2@05.
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For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ar@] #@deffect of the income tax holiday was to @dthe overall income tax
provision and increase net income by approxim&kdl227, $3,113 and $5,728, respectively, and iserééduted earnings per share by $0.14,
$0.11 and $0.20, respectively.

The components of the deferred tax balances agoéber 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

December 31

2010 2009
Deferred tax asset

Tax credit carry forwar $ 4,157 $ 4,26¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,44k 4,21°F
Shar-based compensatic 5,84¢ 4,67:
Accrued employee costs and other expe 3,007 1,72(
Net operating loss carry forwar 665 68¢
Unrealized exchange lo 717 49¢
Deferred ren 26¢ 25t
Allowance for doubtful debt 10C 10¢
Others 22 17
$20,22¢ $16,44:
Valuation allowanct (2,62 (2,259
Deferred tax asse $17,60¢ $14,18¢

Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible asset $ 37€ $ 26¢
Unrealized exchange gain on cash flow hec 1,174 56€
Deferred tax liabilitie: $ 1,55( $ 83F
Net deferred tax asse $16,05¢ $13,35¢

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaefuture tax consequences attributable to tempatéferences between the financial
statement carrying values of assets and liabildies their respective tax bases and operatingckosy forwards. At December 31, 2010, the
Company performed an analysis of the deferred sagtavaluation allowance for certain units of itdin subsidiaries and net operating loss
carry forward for its domestic entities. Based lois ainalysis, the Company continues to record a@ati@n allowance on deferred tax assets
pertaining to such units of the Company’s subsiésaunder a tax holiday period. The valuation alloee as of December 31, 2010 and 2009
was $2,621 and $2,254, respectively.

During 2007, the Indian government passed tax ltii® that, among other items, subjects Indiapagers to a Minimum Alternative
Tax (“MAT"). As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, ino®tax credits related to the MAT were approxime$,157 and $4,269, respectively.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, no deferred incaxesthave been provided for the Company’s shanedittributed net earnings of
foreign operations due to management’s intentitovest such amounts indefinitely. The determinatbthe amount of such unrecognized tax
liability is not practical. Those earnings totabggproximately $93,026 and $69,449 as of Decembge2(@l0 and 2009, respectively.
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The Company'’s provision for income taxes also idekithe impact of provisions established for uaggihcome tax positions
determined in accordance with ASC No. 740 as vweethe related net interest. Tax exposures canuevadmplex issues and may require
extended periods to resolve. Although the Compaatigbes that it has adequately reserved for itetam tax positions, no assurance can be
given that the final tax outcome of these mattdtsnat be different. The Company adjusts thesemess in light of changing facts and
circumstances, such as the closing of a tax auditeorefinement of an estimate. To the extentttmatfinal tax outcome of these matters differs
from the amounts recorded, such differences willaot the provision for income taxes in the periogvhich such determination is made.

The following summarizes the activity related te tiross unrecognized tax benefits from Januar@10 2hrough December 31, 2010:

Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 4,15¢
Increases related to prior year tax positi —

Decreases related to prior year tax posit| (2,84%)
Increases related to current year tax posit 2,64¢
Decreases related to current year tax posit —

Effect of exchange rate chanc 184
Balance as of December 31, 2( $4,13¢

The unrecognized tax benefits as of December 310 0 $4,136, if recognized, would impact the effifectax rate.

The Company has recognized interest and penaft&stoduring the year ended December 31, 2010, wikiincluded in the income tax
provision in the consolidated statements of incoffe unrecognized tax benefits may increase ordserin the next twelve months depen
on the Company’s tax positions.

13. Stock Based Compensation

In 2003, the Company instituted the ExIService litald, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan (the “2003 Plai)e 2003 Plan covers all the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.ddrapensation Committee of the board of directdre {Committee”) administers the 2003
Plan and grants stock options to eligible employd#dehe Company and its subsidiaries. The Commitgtermined which employees were
eligible to receive options, the number of optitmbe granted, the exercise price, the vestingpdeand the exercise period. The vesting period
for the options issued was determined on the dateeayrant and was non-transferable during theedffthe option. Options issued under the
2003 Plan expire ten years from the date of gradtgenerally vest incrementally over a period afrfpears from the date of grant with 25% of
the options vesting each year.

Pursuant to the 2003 Plan, the Company reservé@®, D80 shares of common stock after giving effedhe Stock Split and Conversion,
for the granting of options. If an employee is terated, they must exercise any vested options wlbidays after termination or the vested
options are forfeited. On September 29, 2006, tva@any decided to cease making new grants und@0®& Plan. Grants previously made
under the 2003 Plan may continue to be exercisaddnrdance with the terms of the 2003 Plan. ASegftember 29, 2006, the pool of shares
available for grant under the 2003 Plan (329,8%teshof common stock) was added to the pool olaaishares under the 2006 Plan (as
defined below).
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In 2006, the Company instituted the ExIService ktald, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan (the “2006 P)amfiich replaced the 2003 Pl:
The 2006 Plan covers all of the employees of thea@my. Under the 2006 Plan, the Committee may gramtds of nonqualified stock
options, incentive stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock, restricted stock urstsck bonus awards, performance compens
awards (including cash bonus awards) or any contibmaf the foregoing.

The Committee determines which employees are &igibreceive the equity awards, the number oftgqwards to be granted, the
exercise price, the vesting period and the exeprsi®d. The vesting period for the equity awasrlies] is determined on the date of the grant
and is non-transferable during the life of the ggaivard. The options expire ten years from the ddgrant and generally vest incrementally
over a period of four years from the date of graitlh 10% vesting at the end of year one, 20% vgsdinthe end of year two, 30% vesting at
end of year three and 40% vesting at the end offpea. Pursuant to the 2006 Plan, the Companyrvede3,399,384 shares of common stock
(in addition to the available pool of 329,854 slsdrem the 2003 plan) for the granting of equityaass. If an employee resigns or is
terminated, the employee must exercise any vegigdns within 90 days after termination or the eelsbptions are forfeited. At a special
meeting of the Company’s stockholders held on Jgn2@, 2009, the Company’s stockholders approvetray other things, an amendment to
the 2006 Plan to increase the number of shards obimmon stock issuable there under by 4,000,88fks, which brought the total number of
shares reserved under the plan to 7,729,238.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedaguied under ASC topic 718, using the modified prospe method of transition.
Under the provisions of this guidance, the estichéaé value of share-based awards granted undek stcentive plans is recognized as
compensation expense over the vesting period. Uhmgnodified prospective method, compensation es@és recognized beginning with the
effective date of adoption of this guidance forshliire based payments (i) granted after the efedtite of adoption and (ii) granted prior to
effective date of adoption and that remain unvestethe date of adoption.

The following costs related to the Company’s stbeked compensation plan are included in the caleelil statement of income:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Cost of revenu $1,59¢ $1,40¢ $1,11%
General and administrative expen 3,83¢ 3,45¢ 2,71¢
Selling and marketing expens 3,06( 2,23 1,443
Total $8,491 $7,09: $5,27¢

The fair value of each stock option granted to eygés is estimated on the date of grant using thekBScholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (years 4.6t 4.5¢ 5.52

Risk free interest rai 1.848% 1.7% 2.4%
Volatility 44% 50% 39%
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The estimated expected term of options grantedeeas based on historical experience since Octd#,2vhich is representative of the
expected term of the options. Volatility has bealtalated based on the volatility of the Comparmgamon stock and the volatility of stocks
of comparative companies. The risk-free interetgt tlaat the Company uses in the option valuatiodehis based on U.S. treasury zempon
bonds with a remaining term similar to the expedézth of the options. The Company does not antieipaying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future and therefore uses an expentieléiad yield of zero in the option valuation modehe Company is required to estimate
forfeitures at the time of grant and revise thagtérates in subsequent periods if actual forfegutiéfer from those estimates. The Company
uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting ofdtidieitures and records stock-based compensaxiperse only for those awards that are
expected to vest. All stock-based payment awarelsuanortized on a straight-line basis over the s#guservice periods of the awards, which
are generally the vesting periods.

Stock option activity under the Company’s stocknglés shown below:

Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Remaining

Average Contractual

Number of Exercise Aggregate

Options Price Intrinsic Value Life (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,581,81! $ 14.3¢
Granted 469,00( 16.2(
Exercisec (37,219 10.3¢
Forfeited (224,849 16.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,788,75. $ 14.67
Granted 1,658,88! 8.92
Exercisec (66,209 12.0¢
Forfeited (193,370 18.1:
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,188,06! $ 11.57
Granted 326,31¢ 18.0:
Exercisec (278,119 10.8¢
Forfeited (160,650 13.51]

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,075,61 $ 12.17 $ 28,81 7.2F

Vested and exercisable at December 31, : 1,274,92 $ 12.71 $ 11,26¢ 6.2¢

Available for grant at December 31, 2C 3,430,47.

The unrecognized compensation cost for unvestadrapas of December 31, 2010, is $6,682, whiclxpeeted to be expensed over a
weighted average period of 2.32 years. The weightedage fair value of options granted during tharg ended December 31, 2010, 2009 anc
2008 was $7.10, $3.52 and $6.36, respectively.tdtad grant date fair value of options vested dyitime years ended December 31, 2010, .
and 2008 was $3,481, $3,147 and $1,815, respectiVbe aggregate intrinsic value of options exetiduring the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008 was $2,416, $290 and $381gctgely.
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The following table summarizes the status of thenany’s stock options outstanding and stock opti@sted and exercisable at
December 31, 2010:

Options Options Vested

Outstanding and Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Shares Price Shares Price

$0.12 to $0.1° 27,72¢ $ 0.1z 27,72¢ $ 0.1z
$8.00 to $15.0 2,173,67. 9.8 921,94 11.01
$15.01 to $24.0 874,21¢ 18.3¢ 325,25¢ 18.5¢
Total 3,075,61 $ 12.17 1,274,92° $ 12.71

Subsequent to December 31, 2010, the Company hagedr308,367 stock options and 322,432 restritimek units to its employees a
directors.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

An award of restricted stock is a grant of shatdgext to conditions and restrictions set by then@ittee. The grant or the vesting of an
award of restricted stock may be conditioned upnise to the Company or its affiliates or upon dgiminment of performance goals or other
factors, as determined in the discretion of the @ittee. The Committee may also, in its discretigmovide for the lapse of restrictions impo
upon an award of restricted stock. Holders of aardvef restricted stock may have, with respechéorestricted stock granted, all of the rights
of a stockholder, including the right to vote andéceive dividends.

The Committee is authorized to award restrictedistmits to participants. The Committee establigthegerms, conditions and
restrictions applicable to each award of restrictiedk units, including the time or times at whielstricted stock units will be granted or vested

and the number of units to be covered by each awWérelterms and conditions of each restricted séwedrd will be reflected in a restricted
stock unit agreement.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respectitovested shares of restricted stock and restratteak units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstficted stock, without interest, only if and wharch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristedk and restricted stock units are immediatetfefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder’'s employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righasdividends or dividend equivalents and are theesfmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method.
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Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activitgler the Company’s stock plans is shown below:

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Intrinsic Intrinsic

Number Value Number Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 600, 71( $ 19.1¢ 20,00( $ 234
Granted 198,30 18.4z 24,00( 10.2¢
Vested (125,88)) 16.4(C (20,000 23.41

Forfeited (94,885 15.2¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 578,24t 20.1: 24,00( 10.2¢
Granted 12,00( 17.72 28,00( 14.0¢
Vested (157,759 16.4¢ (24,000 10.2¢
Forfeited (52,687) 18.7¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 379,81( 21.7¢ 28,00( 14.0¢
Granted — — 643,81¢ 18.1¢
Vested (134,247 19.2¢ (28,000 14.0¢
Forfeited (9,689 15.6¢ (19,009 18.4:
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 235,88! $ 23.4 624,81} $ 18.1¢

The fair value of restricted stock and restrictixtls units is generally the market price of the @amy’s shares on the date of grant. A
December 31, 2010, unrecognized compensation €8420090 is expected to be expensed over a welghterage period of 2.71 years. The
weightedaverage fair value of restricted stock and regtdatock units under the 2006 Plan granted duhiagyéars ended December 31, 2(
2009 and 2008 was $18.14, $15.14 and $17.72, rissplgc The total grant date fair value of resteittstock and restricted stock units vested
during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08 was $2,913, $2,851 and $2,573, respectively.

Advisory Board Option:

During the year ended December 31, 2010, 2009 @68,2he Company recorded compensation expenseffeicof $58, $80 and ($70),
respectively, related to stock options granted éoniners of the Company’s advisory board. The fdiezand related compensation expense
will be calculated for the unvested portion of theptions at the end of each reporting period soth options are fully vested.

14. Related Party Transactions

The Company provides transformation services toneuReade Holdings, Inc., a New York City drugsitiiain. Duane Reade Holdings,
Inc. was until April 2010, indirectly owned by ek related to Oak Hill Capital Partners, onehef Company’s significant stockholders. The
Company recognized revenue of $17 (until April 208537 and $628 in the years ended December 3D, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for
fees and expense reimbursements from Duane Reddmgk) Inc. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the gammy had an account receivable
$0 and $43, respectively, related to these services

The Company provides services to Oak Hill Capitattiers, one of the Company’s significant stockaddThe Company recognized
revenue of approximately $82, $32 and $0 duringytas ended
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December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivelyffefs and expense reimbursements from Oak Hillt&lapartners. At December 31, 2010
and December 31, 2009, the Company had an acoecgitable of $9 and $13, respectively, relatedhésé services.

15. Geographical Information

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Revenues
United State: $182,04: $121,90° $102,56¢
United Kingdom 61,43¢ 64,697 77,80¢
Rest of worlc 9,27¢ 4,391 1,33¢
$252,75: $190,99! $181,71
Year ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Fixed assets, ne
India $30,44 $18,76¢
United State: 1,14z 1,03¢
Philippines 2,04¢ 3,26%
Rest of world 1,094 89¢

$34,73: $23,96¢

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Fixed Asset Commitments

At December 31, 2010, the Company has committepémd approximately $4,114 under agreements tdasecfixed assets. This
amount is net of capital advances paid in respitttase purchases.

Other Commitments

Certain units of the Company’s Indian subsidiahiase been established as 100% Export-Oriented unitsr the “Export Import Policy”
or Software Technology Parks of India units (STiRdler the STPI guidelines issued by the Governmielmdia that has provided the
Company with certain incentives on imported andgedous capital goods on fulfillment of certain ditions. In the event that these units are
unable to meet those conditions over the specifextbd, the Company may be required to refund tirasentives along with penalties and
fines. However, management believe that these baits in the past and will continue to satisfy thosnditions.

ExI Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT gpmige with the Philippines Economic Zone Autharithe registration has also
provided us with certain incentives on the impdrtapital goods. Ex| Philippines has an exportgdtion of approximately $39,300 during the
three year period ending March 31, 2011.
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Contingencies

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regiirat any international transaction involving @ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-length
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidianmg the Company may be required to satisfy sephirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its associtégtprises on the basis of a detailed functiandleconomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsaife not under common control. The tax authertigve jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determanettie transfer price applied was not appropriae Company may incur increased tax
liability, including accrued interest and penalti€ee Company is currently involved in disputeshvifie Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing polgi@he Company has received the following assedsondars from the Indian tax authorities
with respect to their audit of certain of the Comya subsidiaries. The Indian tax authorities at@neining income tax returns for other tax
years. The details of the assessment orders asagfriber 31, 2010 are as bel

Bank
Amount Guarantee
Amount Depositec Issued
Demandec (Including (Including
(Including additional additional
Entity Tax Year Issue Interest) Interest) Interest)
Exl India 2003904 The assessment order alleges that the transfer waapplied to $ 2,17¢ $ 2,17¢ $ —
transactions between EXL India and EXL Inc. in 20©3-04 tax year wa
not appropriate and also disallows certain expecdsésied as tax
deductible by EXL India
Exl India 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that the transfer wacapplied t 2,10¢ 2,10¢ —
transactions between EXL India and EXL Inc. for #@©4-05 tax year
was not appropriate and also disallows certain es@® claimed as tax
deductible by EXL India
Exl India 200%5-06 The assessment order alleges that the transfer weapplied t¢ 3,97 5,60z —
transactions between EXL India and EXL Inc. for #895-06 tax year
was not appropriate and also disallows certain es@® claimed as tax
deductible by EXL India
Exl India 200¢-07 The assessment order alleges that the transfer wacapplied t 4,04¢ — —
transactions between EXL India and EXL Inc. for #©6-07 tax year
was not appropriate and also disallows certain es@® claimed as tax
deductible by EXL India
Exl Inc. 200z-04 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishme 3,28( 1,56¢ 2,44¢
in India.
Exl Inc. 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishme 10t 45 58
in India.
Exl Inc. 2005906 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagoent establishme 77¢ 403 457
in India.

Exl Inc. 2006907 The assessment order alleges that EXL Inc. hasnagment establishment 1,33¢ — —
in India.

$17,80( $11,89¢ $ 2,96¢

* The original demand was $5,548, which is reducebBt873 in the first appes
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Based on advice from its Indian tax advisors, #ed underlying its position and its experiencénliese types of assessments, the
Company believes that the probability of loss imo&e and accordingly has not accrued any amouhtre#ipect to these matters in its
consolidated financial statements. The Company doesxpect any impact from these assessments futtutre income tax expense. The
Company is subject to U.S. income taxes on thdtpribrecognizes in the United States. The Comgeas/deposited the entire amount
demanded by the Indian tax authorities with respetiie assessment orders received by ExI Indisbgiriekl Inc. with the exception of the
assessment orders relating to the 2006-07 taxofdax| India and the 2006-07 tax year of Ex| Ins.disclosed above. There is a likelihood that
the Company might receive similar orders for subgegyears until the above disputes are resolved.

Amounts paid as deposits in respect of the assedgsmdescribed above aggregating to $11,898 and$ &3 of December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively, are included in “Other assatal amounts deposited for bank guarantees aggrgdati2,963 and $2,847 as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, arediedun “Restricted cash” in the Company’s constéidebalance sheet as of December 31,
2010 and 2009.

In order to resolve the outstanding transfer pgand permanent establishment tax disputes witinttian tax authorities, the Company
has filed requests with the competent authoritighé U.S. to invoke a Mutual Agreement Procedoird/ AP, under the United States — India
Tax Treaty. As a result of invocation of the MARe ttompetent authorities in the U.S. worked with@bhmpetent authorities in India and
proposed a resolution to the outstanding tax desppertaining to transfer pricing matters. The ltggm proposed was legally not binding on
the Company and after a detailed and careful aisayge Company decided not to accept the resaolutifered and pursue normal tax litigation
process. In respect of the Permanent Establishismmns faced by Exl Inc. in India, the competetharities of U.S. and India could not reach
a conclusion and therefore the application wasadisg of with no resolution offered. The Companylistentinue to pursue normal tax
litigation process for resolution of the said disgsu
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SERVICE

March 20, 2008

Mr. Rembert de Villa
7 Park Ave., Apt. 12D
New York, New York 1001¢

Re: Employee Offer Letter

Dear Mr. de Villa:

We are pleased to offer you employment with ExI®enecom, Inc. (“ ExIServicé or the “ Company’) for the position ofManaging Principal
and Head of Transformation. ExIService is a wholly owned subsidiary of ExMee Holdings, Inc. (“* Pareri). This is a Vice President
(Level 3) position and shall be based in New Y&f&u will report directly to Rohit Kapoor, Presideantd Chief Operating Officer.

Your annual salary (* Base Saldywill be $350,000 (Three Hundred and Fifty Thondalollars only), payable as per the Company’sqhyr
policies. Currently, our payroll period ends on figh and 30" of each month. Your start date of wark &ull time employee with ExIService

is April 15, 2008 (“_Joining Dat8.

Your employment will be at will. This offer is ntt be considered a contract guaranteeing employfaeany specific duration and is subject
to approval of your work authorization by the UD@partment of Homeland Security. The Company vpdirssor you and provide you with
reasonable assistance in connection with obtaiappgopriate work authorization for you.

Stock Options and Restricted Stocks

Employees of Parent and its subsidiaries and atfii are generally eligible to participate in ttxéSErvice Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Awi
Plan (as amended) (the “ PIgnYou will be recommended for a grant of optidogpurchase 40,000 shares of Parent common statk,860
shares of restricted Parent common stock (collelstithe “Initial Equity Grant”) at the next regulascheduled meeting of the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of Parent (ti@ompensation Committe®. The Initial Equity Grant will be subject to tlapproval of the
Compensation Committee in its sole discretion. fEmms and conditions of the Initial Equity Gramtdluding the date of grant, the exercise
price of the stock options, and the vesting scredulll be determined and approved by the Compéns&ommittee and shall be evidencet

a stock option award agreement and a restrictexd stoéard agreement consistent with the terms oPtha. As per the current policy approved
by the Compensation Committee, you will also bgikele, subject to
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performance and other conditions considered byCmapensation Committee, to receive equity awardsially during the term of your
employment. As with all equity compensation, tisigi the sole discretion of the Compensation Cotamit

Bonus:
You will be eligible to receive an annual cash mequivalent to 70% of your Base Salary, subjeectievement of the following objectives:

» 30% of your total bonus potential shall dependh@nachievement of enterprise revenue and EBIT §telji) targets set for each calen
year;

» 30% of your total bonus potential shall dependhenachievement of revenue and gross margin tafgretise Company’s Transformation
business line that are set for each calendar ged

*  40% of your total bonus potential shall depend crievement of personal objectives set for eacmdaleyear

You may be eligible for bonus payment in excesg8h of your base salary, if and to the extent targad objectives are exceeded. Other
terms of your bonus will be determined in accor@awith the Company Bonus Policy.

In accordance with current Company Bonus policg,ahnual bonus is paid in March for the performahagng the preceding calendar year.
You must be employed and must not be serving atigenperiod on the date bonuses are paid for ydoeteligible for receipt. For calendar
year 2008, you will be eligible to receive a bonusrated to reflect the number of days you werpleged by the Company in 20C

Benefits:

As an ExlIService employee, you will be immediateligible to participate in the health, dental, oisilife insurance and disability plans in
accordance with their terms as in effect from timéme. You will also be eligible to participate the Company’s 401(k) plan in accordance
with its terms as in effect from time to time. Undee 401(k) plan, you can save up to 13% of ydigitde compensation (subject to IRS-
mandated maximum limits) through pre-tax payrotlaigtion. You will become eligible to participatetine 401(k) plan on the first day of the
month following your Joining Date.

Vacation and Sick Leave

You will be entitled to four weeks vacation andedgpnal choice days per calendar year prorate@(f@8 to reflect the number of days you
were employed by the Company in 2008. Any unusedtian time at the end of the calendar year wilfdréeited. Please refer to your
employee’s package (to be separately provided ) fgr further details.
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Business Expenses

ExIService will pay for or reimburse authorized imgss related expenses that you may incur in digat@your duties, subject to presentation
of appropriate documentation in accordance witHiegiple Company policy.

Severance:

If the Company terminates your employment withoatu€e (as defined below), then you shall be entileéceive severance payments in an
aggregate amount equal to 3 months Base Salargpfain accordance to Company’s regular payroktjicas. The severance payments will
not be made unless and until you execute (and toemoke during any applicable revocation period)wtually agreeable waiver and releas
all claims against the Company, Parents, theiraethge subsidiaries and affiliates, their respectivedecessors and successors, and the
employees, officers, directors, shareholders, pestrmembers, agents, and representatives of é#uh fmregoing, and such waiver and rele
becomes effective in accordance with its terms,sdradl be subject to your compliance with the teafihe non-disclosure and non-compete
agreement referenced below.

For purposes of this offer letter, * Cadsmeans (A) a final non-appealable conviction afagleading of no contest to, (i) a crime of moral
turpitude which causes serious economic injuryeoiosis injury to the Company’s reputation or (ifledgony; or (B) fraud, embezzlement, gross
negligence, self-dealing, dishonesty or other gamgbwillful misconduct which has caused seriou$ @monstrable injury to the Company;
(C) material violation by you of any material Comgaolicy; (D) willful and continuing failure to fstantially perform your duties (other than
for reason of physical or mental incapacity) whiahure to perform continues beyond fifteen (15yslafter a written demand for substantial
improvement in your performance, identifying spieeilly and in detail the manner in which improvermnsnsought, is delivered to you by the
Company; providethat a failure to achieve performance objectives| stot by itself constitute Cause and no act duffa to act by you shall

be considered “willful” unless done or failed to d@ne by you in bad faith and without a reasonbblef that your actions or omission was in
the best interest of the Company; (E) your faitareeasonably cooperate in an investigation invgithe Company by any governmental
authority; (F) your material, knowing and intentibfailure to comply with applicable laws with resp to the execution of the Company’s
business operations, including, without limitatiarknowing and intentional failure to comply wittetPrevention of Corruption Act of India,
1988, or the United States Foreign Corrupt Prasthet of 1977, as amended; providetiat, if all of the following conditions existiére will

be a presumption that you have acted in accordaithesuch applicable laws: you are following, inogifaith, the written advice of counsel,
such counsel having been approved by the Boardretirs of the Company as outside counsel to ragany for regulatory and compliance
matters, in the form of a legal memorandum or dtamilegal opinion, and you have, in good faitlgyided to such counsel all accurate and
truthful facts necessary for such counsel to resdeh legal memorandum or written legal opinion); Y&ur failure to follow the lawful
directives of your supervisor which is not remedigthin fifteen (15) days after your receipt of #en notice from the Company specifying
such failure; or (H) your use of alcohol or drugsiehh materially interferes with the performanceyotir duties.
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Proprietary Information Agreement :

Prior to commencement of employment, you will bguieed to execute additional documentation inclgdimon-disclosure and non-compete
agreement

Outside Employment:

Your position with ExIService is a full time resmibility requiring your full loyalty and dedicatioiso that you can do your best, you may not
work for another employer while still employed wixIService. In addition, ExIService prohibits éployees from investing money in any
competitor of ExIService or conducting their owrsimess in competition with ExIService whether dgrigxlService working hours or after
ExIService work hours.

Please contact your on-site supervisor if you aite as to whether any work you perform is in cetitipn with ExIService. Furthermore,
should you need to engage in any outside busiraisstys you would need to get written approvalrfryour on-site supervisor.

Miscellaneous:

You represent and warrant to the Company that eeitte execution, delivery and performance of ltier agreement and the non-disclosure
and non-compete agreement nor the performanceuwfdudies to the Company or any of its affiliatéslates or will violate the provisions of
any other agreement to which you are a party oxliigh you are bound.

On you first day of employment you will be provideith information regarding Company’s policies aygheral employment conditions. To
fulfill federal identification requirements, youalld bring documentation to support your identitygl aligibility to work in the United States.
Please contact ExIService’s HR administrator facsjcs.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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We hope this job offer demonstrates our commitnb@icteate a flexible and successful partnershipwioaks for both of us. The job deserves
and requires 110% commitment from you. | am comfideat with you on the team we can reach greatiej both now and in the future.

To indicate your acceptance of the Company’s offerase sign and date this letter in the spacegedwbelow, and return it to me.

Regards

/s/ Rohit Kapool /s/ Vikram Talwal
Rohit Kapoot Vikram Talwar
Presiden Vice-Chairman & CEC

Accepted and Agreel

/s/ Rembert de Villa March 26, 2008
Rembert de Ville Date:
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Name of Subsidiary
ExIService.com, Inc

ExIService Philippines, In
exlService.com (India) Private Limite

Ex| Support Services Private Limit
ExIService (U.K.) Limitec

ExIService Mauritius Limitet

ExIService SEZ BPO Solutions Private Limil
ExIService Romania Private Limited S.R
ExIService Czech Republic S.R.

Inductis Inc.

Inductis LLC

Inductis (India) Private Limite

Inductis (Singapore) PTE Limite
Professional Data Management Again, |
PDMA International Limitec

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

Delaware
Philippines
India

India

United Kingdom
Mauritius

India

Romanis
Czech Republi
Delaware
Delaware

India
Singapore
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-162335) of ExIService Holdings, In

(2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-139211) pertaining to the 2006 Omnibus Award PlaBxService Holdings, Inc., ar

(3) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-157076) pertaining to the 2003 Stock Option Pl&93India Stock Employee Option Pl:
2006 Omnibus Award Plan, 2006 Omnibus India Subfland 2006 Omnibus India Subplan 2 of ExIServioditgs, Inc.;

of our reports dated March 16, 2011, with respet¢hé consolidated financial statements of ExISertoldings, Inc. and subsidiaries, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsidéarincluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-
K) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 16, 2011



Exhibit 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vikram Talwar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicdditms, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 201 /s/ Vikram Talwal

Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairma



Exhibit 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vishal Chhibbar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicdditms, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 2011 /s/ Vishal Chhibba

Vishal Chhibbai
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 31.3
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rohit Kapoor, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicddit@s, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officers and | are responsiloiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (G
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantbd report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlzet tnaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofmancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 16, 2011 /s/ Rohit Kapoo

Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiotthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Vikram Talwkxecutive Chairman of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ap#etbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxteyf 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Vikram Talwai
Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairma

March 16, 2011



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Vishal Chhihb@hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01258 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@mley Act of 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Vishal Chhibba
Vishal Chhibba
Chief Financial Office!

March 16, 2011



Exhibit 32.3
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServideldings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for tiiear ended December 31, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Rohit Kapderesident and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®8b0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of thea8as-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementse€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Rohit Kapoo!
Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Offic

March 16, 201:



